
MARK A.KEAN 
CtlAIRMAN 

Ooslric: 5 
LONNIE MOSLEY 
VICE-CtfAIRMAN 

BOARD MEMBERS 

01$1/\ct 1 
AOBERi L, AL•EN. JR 

OISll«:t 2 
JOAN I, MclNTOSH 

OiSl(C13 
OLIVER W HAMILTON. SR 

D,s11,c14 
NICIJOLAS J, MlLLEA 

OiSlrlCI 6 
ROY MOSLEY, JR 

IJ,s11,c17 
EDWIN L COC�REU, SR, 

D•slrtCI 6 
KEN EASTERLEY 

OtslfiCI 9 
C. RICHARD VERNIER 

Dis1nct 10 
OlXIE M SEIBERT 

Disl�tl 11 
JERRY J. DINGES 

Olstur.l 12 
ANGELA L. GROSSMANN-ROEWE 

Dlslnct 13 
STEPHEN E. AEE8 

D1Sl1tCI 14 
ROBERT J TRENTMAN 

D1,1ricl 15 
JOHN W _  WEST 

OfslriCI 16 
JUNE CHARTRAND 

Olslnel 17 
CURTIS JONES, l.tD, 

Dls�ict 18 
CRAIG W, HUBBARD 

Dl.slllCI 19 
C .  DAVID TIEDEMANN 

Dlslricl20 
IAICHAEL L BAKER 

Olstrlcl 2t 
FRANK)(, HEILIGENSTElN 

Oistr<:I 22 
MICHAEL O'DONNELL 

Di,;loicl23 
FRED BOCH 

D,s1ne1 24 
MARTY 1: CRAWFORD 

Oislroct25 
CURTIS L McCALL. JR 

OiS,rlcl 26 
LARRY W STAMMER_ JR. 

Oislficl 27 
KENNETH G. SH/\RKE'I 

OiSIJICI 28 
JOSEPH J .  KASSLY JR,  

Oisi,ici 29 
CAROL D. CLARK 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD 
10 PUBLIC SQUARE, ROOM 8-561, BELLEVILLE, ILLINOIS 62220-1623 

(618) 277-6600 Ext. 2201 • FAX: 825-2740 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING - May 26, 2015 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Public Participation 

Approval of Minutes of April 27, 2015 Meeting 

Reports & Communications from the Chairman 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

Presentation of Certificates of Recognition 
Res. #2076-15-R - Announcing a Vacancy on the County Board 
Appt. - Member, St. Clair County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appt. - Member, Emergency Telephone System Board 

Miscellaneous Reports 

Committee Reports 

a. 

b. 

c. 

Emergency Readiness Committee: 
1. Approval of Renewal of 

County and St. Clair 
Association 

Environment Committee: 
1. Report 

Agreement Between St. Clair 
Special Emergency Services 

2. Ord. #15-1119 and Res. #2077-15-RZ through Res. #2078 
-15-RZ 

Finance Committee: 
I. Treasurer's Monthly Report 
2. Treasurer's Report of Funds Invested 
3. Ord. #15-1120 - Ordinance Authorizing and Providing for 

the Issuance of Taxable General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2015 of the 
County, for the Purpose of Refunding Certain Outstanding 
Alternate Bonds of the County, Authorizing the Sale of 



d. 

said Bonds to the Purchaser thereof and Authorizing and Directing the 
Execution of an Escrow Agreement in Connection Therewith 

4. Approval of Financial Reimbursement Intergovernmental Agreement 
between the St. Clair County Transit District and the County of St. 
Clair and Sheriff of St. Clair County 

5. Approval of Contract between Southwestern Illinois Flood Prevention 
District Council and Treviicos for $15,390,000 to Build the Lower Wood 
River Deep Cutoff Wall, Clay Cap, Relief Walls 

6. Salary Claims 
7. Expense Claims - Claims Subcommittee 

Grants Committee: 
1. Res. #2079-15-R - Authorizing St. Clair County Board Chairman to 

Enter into Fee for Service Agreements with Youth Service Providers as 
Approved by the Mid America Workforce Investment Board 

2. Res. #2080-15-R - Authorizing St. Clair County Board Chairman to 
Prepare, Submit and Execute an Application (2015-2019 Five Year 
Consolidated Plan) to the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

e. Judiciary Committee: 
1. Review of Executive Session Minutes 

f. Transportation Committee: 
1. Highway Res. #2081-15-RT through #2089-15-RT 

g. Trustee Committee: 
1. Res. #2090-15-R- Delinquent Taxes 
2. Extension Requests 

10. Grants Payroll and Expenses 

11. County Health Department Report 

12. Department of Revenue Report 

13. Comments by the Chairman 
Executive Session - Pending Litigation/Workers' Compensation 

14. Any other Pertinent Business 

15. Adjournment 



May 26, 2015 

Honorable Mark A. Kern 
Chairman, St. Clair County Board 
10 Publ Sq re, Room B-561 
Belleville, IL 20 

County Board M bers: 

We, the Jud ry Committee, wish to report 
minutes from the April 27, 2015 County Board M 
been entered on record. 

The Comm checked the minutes and recommend 
they be approved by this Honorable Body. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
St. Clair County Board 



------ - _,,. -- ' � .. / -.. . . . . 
. . -. 

� 
. � 

I 

2014 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 2015 �r 
» l / I 

I 
• 

I I 

« 

� .• . . 
lt�.,.. .... 

PRESENTED TO 

In recognition of your accomplishment 

Althoff Catholic High School Crusaders Dance Team 
IOTA State Championship 

Sing1e A Jazz Division 
the County Board and the residents of St. Clair County say 

CONGRATULATIONS for a job well done! 

BY THE COlJNTY BOARD OF SAINT CLAIR COUNTY, 

STATE OF ILLI:'"01S, THIS ____ _  DAY OF ______ _ 

20 _ _ __ _ 

• 

MARK A. KEH�, CHAIH:'.'-IAl-..; 
ST. CLAIR COlJ�TY BOARD 

r 
' 
' 

r 

l. 
I 

' :� ( 
-- '·,, �� 

• �'. I . . I . . . 
.•J 

I 

I 

. . . ..., . . . 
¥ • ¥ . • . 

� • • -� . 1/ � 



RESOLUTION NO. 2076-15-R 

ANNOUNCING A VACANCY ON ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD 

WHEREAS, due to the resignation of CURTIS L. McCALL, JR. from 

District No. 25, a vacancy will exist on the County Board, effective May 7, 2015. 

WHEREAS, the County Board District No. 25 seat will be vacant and the 

unexpired term to be filled will be for the period of the term elected thereto expiring in 

December 2016. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board of St. Clair 

County certifies there to be available and open a seat on the County Board due to the 

resignation of member, Curtis L. McCall, Jr., effective May 7, 2015. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the County Board of St. 

Clair County, State of Illinois, this 26th day of May 2015. 

Chairman of the Board 

ATTEST: 

County Clerk 



Resolution No. 2076-15-R 

REVIEWED BY: 

State's Attorney's Office 

Director of Administration 

Presented and Approved by: 

JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



MARK A, KERN 
CHAIRMAN 

D-slricl 5 
LONNIE MOSLEY 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 

BOARD MEMBERS 

01stnci 1 

ROBERT L .  ALLEN, JR, 

Dist,1c! 2 
JOl>N 1,MCINTOSH 

D;swc13 
OLIVER W HAMILTON, SA. 

0.-stoct 4 
NICHOLAS J. MILLER 

0.str\cl 6 
ROY MOSLEY, JR. 

Dislricl 7 
EDWIN L,COCKRELL. SA. 

o,s1nc1 8 
KEN EASTEALEY 

01sllk19 
C RICHARD VERNIER 

D;sHJCI 10 
DIXIE M .  SEIBERT 

O,slricl 11 
JERRY J .  DINGES 

OlslrlCI 12 
ANGELA L. GROSSMAIIIN,ROEWE 

Disrricl 13 
STEPHEN E REEB 

01slntl lif 

ROBEITT J. TRENTMAN 

01s10c1 ,s 
JOHN W WEST 

O,stncl 16 
JUNE CHARTRAND 

Oisu)d 17 
CURTIS JONES, M.D .  

D,slr'lcl 18 
CRAIG W. HUBBARD 

OjsJrid 19 
C DAVID TIEDEMANN 

01S1ncl 2-0 
MICHAEL L BAXEA 

Oisur.c:121 
FRANK X, HEILIGENSTEIN 

D,slr'lcl 22 
MICHAEL O'DONN!;LL 

Oisli>CI 2J 
FRED BOCH 

DiSU)cl 24 
MARTY T CRAWFORD 

Ofsu,c125 
CURTIS l ,  McCALL JR 

Oistnc: 26 
LARRY W STAMMER, JR. 

o,sr�ci 27 
KENNETH G. SHARKEY 

Oistricl 28 
JOSEPH J, KASSLY JR 

DislnCI 29 
CAROL 0 .  CLARK 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD 
10 PUBLIC SQUARE, ROOM B-561', BELLEVILLE, ILLINOIS 62220-1623 

(618) 277-6600 Ext. 2201 • FAX: 825-2740 

May 26, 2015 

St. Clair County Board 
#10 Public Square 
Belleville, IL 62220 

Members or the Board: 

Since the following appointments shaU be made by the Chairman of tbe St. Clair County 
Board with the approval of the Members of the County Board, I respectively submit the 
following appointments for your consideration and approval: 

1. 

2. 

Member, St. Clair County Zoning Board of Appeals: 
Appointment of SCOTT E. PENNY to complete the unexpired term of Charles 
Arriola due to his resignation effective immediately and expiring on December 
31, 2017. 

Member, Emergency Telephone System Board: 
Reappointment of DONALD R. FEHER to a four (4) year term effective 
immediately and expiring on Febniary l, 2017. 

.. ��~·· A. KERN, Chairman 
St. Clair Cou.nty Board 



Personal Information 

Home Address: 

Marital Status: 

Age: 

Health: 

Educational Background 

B.A. 

A.A. 

Police/Administrative Experience 

Experience 

1988 -Present 

RESUME 

Scott E. Penny 

2949 North 63rd Street 
Fairmont City, IL 62201 
Home Telephone (618) 271-1091 
Work Telephone (618) 274-4504 
Cell Telephone ( 618) 781-8187 

Married; Two Children 

Wife's Name: Sheila 

61 

Excellent 

McKendree College 1975 
Administration of Justice 

Belleville Area College 
Law Enforcement 

Duties: 

Chief of Police, and Village Administrator 
for Fairmont City, Illinois (Pop. 2,600). 
The Fairmont City 
Police Department consists of 7 
full time and 10 part-time sworn 
officers, and four support personnel. 

All aspects of operating a municipal 
police agency. Planning, organjzing 
and directing mobile patrols, 
bicycle patrols, investigations, 
teJecommu.nications, and administrative 
support staff: Prepare and implement 
operational policies and budget. 
Represent the department during publjc 
and inter-agency presentations. 



Scott E. Penny, Page 2 

1987 - 1988 Special Agent, Chicago, Missouri and 
Western Railway Police, East St. Louis, 
Illinois. 

Duties: Criminal investigations in violations 
of Federal and State laws, civil 
im,estigations, executive protection, 
employee injury and discipline cases. 

Participate in asset protection, 
safety programs, and fire inspections. 

1983 - 1987 Accountant, Harris Held and Company, 
East St. Louis, Illinois. 

Duties: Staff accountant and office manager for 
public accounting firm, preparing 
financial statements, budgets, and tax 
returns for small businesses and 
corporations. 

1978 - 1983 Police Officer, Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Department, Las Vegas, Nevada 
(Pop. 500,000) 1, I 00 sworn officers, 
700 civilian employees. 

Duties: Unifonn Patrol Officer. Assigned to 
high crime district for 3- l/2 years. 

Participated in street crime suppression 
unit and vice detail. 

Participated in numerous violent felony 
investigations, and financial crime cases. 

1975 - 1978 Police Officer, Fairview Heights Police 
Department, Fairview Heights, Illinois. 
(Pop. 15,000) 32 sworn officers, 
12 civilian members. 

Duties: Uniform patrol duties. 
197 6 Officer of the Year 



Teaching Experience (Part-Time) 

1 992 - Present 

I l l inois Licenses & Certificates 

Licensed Private Detective 

Duties : 

Licensed Private Security Contractor 

Scott E. Penny, Page 3 

Adjunct Faculty, Southwestern I l linois 
College, Belleville, I l linois 

Instructor in "Introduction to Private 
Security", "Introduction to Firearms", and 
"Basic First Aid, CPR with AED". 

In February of 2002, I developed and wrote 
the curriculum for a new private security 
training course, "Issues in Private Security." 

Certified Firearms Instructor by Il linois Department of  Professional Regulation 
Director of Civil Defense, Fairmont City 

Professional Memberships 

Southern I l linois Police Chief's Association 
I ll inois Association of Chiefs of Police 
Law Enforcement Commission Advisory Board 
American Society for Industrial Security 
Fraternal Order o f  Police 

Professional Activities 

Appointed by Governor to Serve on the Il l inois Department of  Professional Regulation 
Disciplinary and Licensing Board, Regulating Private Detectives, Security Contractors, 
Alarm Installers and Locksmiths 

Served on Pol ice Training Committee, Southwestern lll inois Law Enforcement 
Commission 

Belleville Area College, Administration of Justice Curriculum Committee Member 

Commissioner, Southwest Regional Port District 

Instructed Belleville Area College Public Safety Officers in Investigation 
Techniques 

Board Member, Fairmont City Police Athletic League 

Presented Programs to Civic and Community Groups 

Wrote Training Bulletins Distributed to Southern I l l inois Police Agencies, 
Police Academy, and Law Enforcement Commission 



Scott E. Penny, Page 4 

Professional Activities (Continued) 

Attended State and Local Law Enforcement Conferences 

Member of Committee on Drug Education (C.O.D.E.) 

Community Activities 

Elected to Collinsvi l le Community Unit 1 0  Board of Education - 1 995 - 1 999 

Former Board Member, Childrens' Home and Aid Society of I l l inois 

Recipient of Jaycees Governor's Award For Organizing and Recruiting Charter Members 
For Local Jaycee Chapter. 

Coached amateur wrestlers for the Granite City Junior Warriors Wrestling Club. 

Organized Neighborhood Watch Groups 

Organize and Present Local Crime Prevention Seminars 



Hours 
* 4 
* 1 6  

40 
* 24 
* 8 
* 8 
* 1 6 

4 
24 
8 
4 

24 
3 2  
1 6  
8 

1 32  
8 

* 8 

4 
8 

* 24 
* 1 6 

1 9  
* 32 

24 
24 
1 6  
40 
8 

* 44 
8 

1 6  
40 
4 

1 6  
8 

1 6  
24 
40 
32 

SCHEDl LE "A" 

Special ized Training Program 
Utah Concealed Carry Instructor 
NRA Personal Protection in the Home 
[) F•: .\ C landestine Lali1)ratory lnvcst 1gation Course 
Red Cross Instructor Training F i r:, l Aid CPR//\ED 
Advanced Taser Instructor Certification 
O.C .A.T. Instructor CertificatiorJRe Cert . 
ASP (Expandable Baton) Impact Weapon Instructor 
La1,v Fnfr1rcernent Scoped Rifle Phase 2 
Landiord/Tcnant Managcrnent Trnin lhc Traim:r 
Law Enforcement Scoped Rifle 
Less Than Lethal i'\nmmnition Seminar 
Ruger Armorer Course 
FAT� ffi lnstnJct, ir 
Executive l)evelopmcnt Workshup 
Tactical Use of Force Report Wri ting 
Northwestern University Executive Management Program 
Assault Weapon Familiarization 
Sen i , , : s & Wrnnen ·s Protection in ;,tn1ctor 
Firearrns Instructor Course N .R.A 
Oleoresin Capsicu.rn Training (Pepper Spray) 
Grade Crossing Col lision Investi gation 
Police Shotgun Instnictor Course 
Incident Conunand Svstcrn Instructor 
Dak Carnegie Leadership Training 
Firearms Automated Training System Instructor 
Medicolegal Death Invest igation 
Crime Scene Photography 
Asset Forfeiture 
Crirninai Drug Patrul Enforcernent 
Commercial Truck Enforcement 
Police Handgun Instructor 
Hazardous Materials Response 
lnve.st. igat ion of H:i tC Crimes 
Hornicide & Sexual Assault Investigation 
Asset Forfeiture 
Advanced Course, Reid Interview & Interrogation 
Hazardous Materials Training 
High Risk Incident Management 
Internal Affairs Investi gations 
Crime Scene I nvestigations 
Jo hn Reid Interview & Interrogation 

* Instructor Status. 

Scott E.  Penny, Page 5 

09- 1 4  
02- 1 4  
2 ... 0 5  
1 .. ()5 
8-03 
8-02 
8-02 
7 .. ()() 
5-00 
4-00 
4-99 
4-99 
2 . . 99 

1 0-98 
7-98 
8-97 
5-97 
9 ... ()6 
8-96 
7-96 
9-95 
9-95 
(, ... 95 
6 -95 
3 -95 
9-94 

1 0-93 
8 •91 
1 -92 

1 1 -92 
1 0-92 
3 -92 
3 -9 1  
4-90 

1 1 -89 
1 1 - 89 
9-89 
5-89 
4-89 
3-89 
9-88  



TO: ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD 

FROM: MARK A. KERN, Chairn1an 

St. Clair County Board 

SUBJ : 

DATE: 

Miscellaneous Reports 

May 26, 2015 

The following routine informational reports are by various department 
heads for you to receive and to have placed on file by voice vote; no 
other action being necessary: 

Emergency Management Agency 

The activities during the month of April, 2015 - May, 2015 were 
routine and the report of same wil l  be placed on file in the County 
Board Office. 

County Jail 

The Jai ler reports the prisoners for the period from April 22, 2015 
through May 19, 20 1 5  an average of 375 Prisoners per day.  The 

report of same wil l  be placed on file in the Cou nty Board Office. 

Detention Home 

The tota l population of the Detention Home for the period from 
April 22, 2015 throug h May 19, 2015  was 593 chi ld ren 567 boys 
and 26 girls. The report of same wil l  be placed on file i n  the 
County Board Office. 

This Miscellaneous Report will become a part of the County 
Board Meeting Minutes. 

f. 



Herbert Simmons 
EMA Director 

St. Clair County 
Emergency Management Agency (EMA) 

110 West Washington • Belleville, IL 62220 • (618) 825-2683 
(After hours (618) 277-3500) Fax# (618) 825-2750 

Report of Activities 
April \ May 2015 

Emergency Readiness Committee 
J .  Report of phone outage i n  the Millstadt area, handled by  Frontier Co. 
2. Large fire in Fairmont City, multiple fire departments were called into assist, good job done 

by all. We are looking into an issue where one department wasn't recommended by the 
CAD, we are assuming that since that department was moved into a posting up status it 
removed them from the availability list. I have requested through the CAD vendor an 
explanation why the substitution list didn't recommend the next available department, still 
awaiting an answer. 

3. Attended ETSB Board meeting 
4. Held meeting with all ETSB staff 
5. Prepared ETSB Board Package for meeting 
6. EMA is sending staff member to Atlanta Georgia in June to the CSX Rai )road training 

facility for training on Crude Oil. This is at no cost to the County. 
7. Staff has meeting scheduled for June 3rd with representatives from the VA on the proposed 

training exercise to be held on August 25th at Mid-America Airport. I have invited the Chief 
from the FD at Mid-America to attend. 

8. Mobil Command post was deployed for a Show and Tell at the Altoff School, requested by 
County Board member Angie Rowe. 

9. Staff prepared monthly newsletter show casing the ETSB staff. There are several projects 
taking place at the ETSB that is going to have a positive impact in regards to Public Safety 
in the very near future. They are in the process of implementing the NG 9-1-1 County wide. 

10. EMA and ETSB staff is currently in training for the Microwave system. This is being done 
at no expense to the county, i s  funded by STARRS. 

11. Staff attended the ITTF meeting in Springfield and voted on this year's budget. 
1 2. Staff attended the STARRS Board Meeting in St. Louis. 
13. Attended several County meetjng and County Board Meeting 
14. Hosted A T8T meeting for the ETSB board on the NG 9-1-1 project 
15 .  Special Service was deployed to Albers on a water rescue. 
1 6  Attended Special Services meeting. 

Respectfully Submitted 
He.,r-h- S� 
Herb Simmons 



SI. Clair County Sheriff Department 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY, I LL INOIS 

JAIL MANANGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM 
As of Wednesday May 20, 20 1 5  a t  7 : 1 5  am 

Dally Peak Population Report 

Richard Watson 

Sheriff 

For Period Beginning on April 22, 20 1 5  Through May 1 9 ,20 1 5  - Current Capacity: 330 

!Date Popu lation 
Wednesday, Apri l  22 ,  201 5  386 

Thu rsday,  Apri l  23, 201 5 380 

Friday, Apri l  24, 201 5 367 

Satu rday, Apri l  25 ,  201 5 374 

Sunda� Apri l 26, 201 5 375 

Monday, April 27, 201 5 37 1 

Tuesda� Apri l 28, 201 5 365 

Wednesday, Apri l  29 , 201 5 374 

Th ursday, Apri l  30 , 201 5 372 

Fr iday, May 1 ,  201 5 368 

Saturday,  May 2 ,  20 1 5 362 

Sunday, May 3 ,  201 5  373 

Monday, May 4, 201 5 373 

Tuesday, May 5, 201 5 375 

Wednesday, May 6 ,  201 5 376 

Thursday, May 7,  201 5 376 

Fr iday,  May 8, 201 5 372 

Satu rday,  May 9 ,  201 5 381  

Sunda� May 1 0, 201 5 387 

Monday, May 1 1 ,  201 5  386 

Tuesday, May 1 2, 201 5 383 

Wednesday, May 1 3, 20 1 5  380 

Thursday,  May 1 4, 201 5 373 

F riday, May 1 5, 201 5 373  

Saturday, May  16 ,  201 5 362 

Sunday ,  May 1 7, 201 5 383 

Monday,  May 1 8, 201 5 379 

Tuesda� May 1 9 , 20 1 5 381 

Average Dai ly Population : 
Days I n  Reporting Period:  

• Designates M i n  a nd  Max Dates 

. . .  End of Report . . .  

Over/Under Status 
-56 Over C a pacity 

-50 Over Capacity 

-37 Over Capacity 

-44 Over Capacity 

-45 Ove r Capac ity 

-4 1  Ove r C a pacity 

-35 Ove r Capacity 

-44 Over Capacity 

-42 Over Capacity 

-38 Over Capacity 
-32 Over Capacity 

-43 Over Capac ity 

-43 Over Capacity 

-45 Ove r Capacity 

-46 Ove r Capacity 

-46 Over Capacity 

-42 Over Capacity 

-51 Over Capacity 

-57 Over Capacity 

-56 Over Capacity 

-53 Over Ca pacity 

-50 Ove r Capacity 

-43 Over Capacity 

-43 Over Capacity 

-32 Over Capacity 

-53 Over Capacity 

-49 Over Capacity 

-5 1 Over Capacity 

375 

28 

I. 



Apri l  22 

April 2 3  

April 24 

Apri l  25 

Apri l  26 

April 27 

April 28 

Apri l  29 

April 30 

M ay 0 1  

May 02 

M ay 03 

May 04 

M ay 05  

May 06 

May 07 

May 08 

May 09 

May 1 0  

M ay 1 1  

May 1 2  

M ay 1 3  

M ay 1 4  

May 1 5  

May 1 6  

M ay 1 7  

May 1 8  

May 1 9  

Mi! 

POPULATION REPORT 

Apri l  22,  20 1 5  th ru May 1 9, 20 1 5  

1 2  

1 5  

1 5  

2 5  

2 6  

1 6  

1 5  

1 8  

1 9  

1 5  

3 1  

30 

1 8  

1 8  

1 5  

1 5  

1 6  

3 1  

2 9  

20 

23 

1 9  

1 7  

1 7  

25 

27 

2 1  

1 9  

ai,1s 

00 

00 

00 

00 

02 

02 

0 1  

03 

0 1  

0 1  

0 1  

0 2  

0 1  

00 

02 

0 2  

0 0  

0 1  

0 1  

00 

00 

00 

0 1  

00 

0 1  

02 

0 1  

0 1  

1 2  

1 5  

1 5  

2 5  

2 8  

1 8  

1 6  

2 1  

2 0  

1 6  

32 

32 

1 9  

1 8  

1 7  

1 7  

1 6  

32 

30 

2 0  

23 

1 9  

1 8  

1 7  

26 

29 

22 

2 0  



ST. CLAIR COUNTY DETENTION CENTER 

MlCHAEL J. BUETTNER 
DIRECTOR 

Coun SeNIC-cs &. Probtuion. O,pru1n�n1 
2� )tadl<:f:tl Cirt:"il 

May 1 9, 201 5 

Public Safety Committee 
St. Clair County Building 
1 0 Public Square 
Belleville, IL 62220 

Dear Committee Members 

9006 LEBANON ROAD 
BELLEVILLE, IL 62223-1503 

PHONE: 61 8-397-0766 
FAX: 618-397-5284 

DONALD H. SCHAEFER 
SUPEJIINTEND!!NT 

BEVERLY 1. WTLLIAMS 
ASSISTAl\.'1' SUPERINTENDENT 

Please be advised, as indicated by my Population Report, that we did not 
exceed the D.O.C.  rate capacity of 38 for the reporting period of April 22, 201 5  
thru May 1 9, 201 5. 

If you have any questions about this matter, please contact me. 

Sincerely 

��H� 
Superintendent 

OHS/cc 

Enclosure 

cc: County Board 

Detention Center 

f. 



RENEWAL OF 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN ST. CLAIR COUNTY AND 

ST , CLAIR SPECIAL EMERGENCY SERVICES ASSOCIATION 

The ST. CLAIR SPECIAL EMERGENCY SERVICES ASSOCIATION 
and the COUNTY OF ST . CLAIR hereby agree to renew the 
quasi- intergovernmental Agreement Between St.  Clair County 
and St . Clair Special Emergency Services Association dated 
June 4 ,  2007  and attached hereto as Exhibit "A" . 

Thi s  renewal 
renewal/continuation 
County Board. 

is limited to one 
requires approval by 

year 
the 

and any 
St.  Clair 

DATED this lat day of _Ma_y ______ , 2015 . 

ST. CLAIR SPECIAL EMERGENCY SERVICES ASSOCIATION 

BY:---'-----'-/l���----
DON FEHER 

COUNTY OF ST , CLAIR 

BY : 
MARK A .  KERN, Chairman 
St . Clair County Board 



Exh i bit "A" 

AGREEM ENT BETWEEN ST CLAIR COU NTY AND 
ST CLAIR SPECIAL EMERGENCY SERVICES ASSOCIATION 

The St. C la i r  Speci a l  Emergency Services Association ( here inafter "SCS ESA") and the 
County of St. C la i r  ( hereinto after "the County") enter i nto and execute this quas i ­
intergovern menta l Ag reement.  The parties hereby agree as fo l lows : 

I. AUTH ORITY 

This Agreement is ente red i nto pursuant to the I ntergovern menta l 
Cooperation Act SILCS 220/1 et seq as SCSESA qua l ifies as a Fire 
Department in accordance with the office of the State Fi re M a rsha l l  a s  wel l as  
ma inta in ing  i ts status as not-for  profit corporation . Thi s  agreement is subject 
to a l l  appl ica b le  State , Federa l ,  and l oca l statutes and regu latory 
requ i rements.  

II.  PARTI ES TO THE AGREEM E N T  

1 .  The SCSESA is a not for p rofit corporation formed for the purpose of 
d eve lop ing ,  esta b l ish ing  a nd admin isterin g  a Techn ica l Advisory Group 
a n d  wel l tra ined membersh ip  g roup .  SCSESA i s  i ntended to  provide 
l oca l e mergency responders with haza rdous m ateria ls  tra in ing ,  
response advise, equ ipment, and such oth er  needs as may be 
identified for the Co u nty,  I l l inois com m u n ity I i nc l ud ing  hazardous 
mate ria l  response, techn ica l  rescue, a nd furthe r  techn ical  services, 
that may be needed in the  future to lesson the burden of Govern ment 
in our co m m u n ity , and to further  engage in charitab le ,  educationa l ,  
civ i l ,  and  benevo lent purposes. 

2 .  The Cou nty i s  organ ized a n d  existi ng  u nder the l aw of I l l i no is .  

III. PUPROSE OF THE AGRE E M E NT 

Th e pu rpose of this agreement between SCS ESA a nd the  County is for the 
County to assist SCS ESA in  appropriately responding  to s ituat ions i nvo lv ing 
haza rdous materia l s  by provi d i ng financia l assistance and to he lp  defray 
operationa l  cost for a bu i l d i ng  i ntended to be used for the housing of 
e merg ency response veh ic les and  equ ipment, as a meeti ng place for 
tra i n i ng ;  and  for oth er purposes consistent w ith corporate charter and 
SCSESA. The Cou nty a lso agrees to provide fund i ng  for workman's 
compensation i nsurance and  insura nce on the veh ic les and equipment 
subject to each of these expend itures as described in  Section V a nd is to be 
fo r one yea r  on ly .  

IV. N EGATION OF RELATIONSHI P  

N oth ing contained i n  th is  agreement sha l l  b e  construed to create, either 
expressly of by i m p l ication an agency rel ationsh ip  between SCSESA and the 



County. The County including its employees, agents, and contractors, is not 
authorized to represent or act on behalf of SCSESA in any matter relating to 
this Agreement and SCSESA (including its employees, agents and 
contractors) is not authorized to represent or act on behalf of the County in 
any matter relating to this agreement. 

V. PAYMENT IN SUPPORT O F  ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES 

1 .  Payments are in support of activities to provide technical assistance for 
incidents involving hazardous materials, technical rescue, water rescue, 
regional emergency response, and K-9 search. 

2. Monthly payments of $3,000 to help defray insurance on building, 
equipment, workman's compensation, and maintenance cost of equipment 
and building. 

Vl. BUILDING DESCRIPTION 

The building intended to house the SCSESA including vehicles and equipment 
is on three acres of land located at 2900 Falling Springs Road, Sauget, 
Ill inois. The building includes approximately 10,200 square feet of warehouse 
space and 2,100 square feet of office space. 

VII. THIRD PARTIES 

1 .  This agreement benefits only Illinois SCSESA and the County. It 
extends no benefit or right to any third party not a signatory of this 
Agreement. 

2. By Entering into this Agreement, the County does not assume any 
liabil ity to third parties with respect to losses due to bodily injury or 
property damage occurring in conjunction with SCSESA activities. 

VIII. TERMINATION 

St. Clair County at its sole discretion may terminate this agreement upon 60 
days notice, SCSESA may terminate this agreement upon 60 days notice. St. 
Clair County may recover any termination costs from SCSESA. 

IX. LIMITATION OF RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT (IEPA} 

This agreement is effective for one year only and any renewal shall be 
subject to prior approval of IEPA pursuant to the provision of 415 ILCS 
5/22.15 

X. LIMITATION ON COUNTY FUNDING SOURCES IN SUPPORT OF THIS 
AGREEMENT 

This agreement with the exception of expenditures described in Section V (3) 
is l imited to County funding derived only from monies generated pursuant to 
415 ILCS 5/22.15 and expenditure of no other County funds is authorized. 



XI. LIMITATIO N  OF TERM Of AG RE EM ENT 

This agreement is l i m ited to one  year. Renewa l/cont inuat ion of any provis ion 
of th is  agreement req u i res a n ew agreement, review, and  a pprova l  by the St. 

Cla i r  County Board and its com mittees. 

XII. AMENDMENTS 

This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  N o  
amendm ent t o  this agreement s h a l l  ta ke effect u nt i l  executed by the Cou nty 
and  SCSESA i n  writing  and  ap proved by the County Board and  its 
Comm ittees. 



MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM 

FIRST ADDENDUM TO MABAS MASTER AGREEMENT 

This First Addendum to the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System ("MABAS") 
Master Agreement in the State of Illinois, last amended prior to 2000, is 
meant to incorporate in its entirety the terms included within the Master 
Agreement except as specifically changed herein. In the event there is a 
conflict between the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement and this 
Addendum, this Addendum shall be controll ing. 

As the cost of lending mutual aid support has increased in recent 
times, communities have determined it necessary to agree in advance on 
cost reimbursement issues prior to the occurrence of an actual emergency. 
Mutual aid agreements such as the MABAS Master Agreement have served 
as the foundation for navigating cost issues and engaging in these 
agreements prior to the emergency avoid post-emergency concerns on cost 
reimbursement. 

SECTION FIVE - Compensation for Aid is amended to read as follows: 

Equipment, personnel, and/or services provided to this Agreement 
shall be at no charge to the party requestrng aid for the first eight (8) 
consecutive hours of aid provided to the Stricken Unit; however, any 
expenses recoverable from third parties shall be equitably distributed among 
responding parties. Day to day mutual aid should remain free of charge and 
the administrative requirements of reimbursement make it unfeasible to 
charge for day-to-day mutual aid. Nothing herein sha l l  operate to bar any 
recovery of funds from any state or federal agency under any existing 
statue. 

Any Aiding Unit is empowered to and may change a Stricken Unit for 
reimbursement for costs of equipment, personnel, and/or services provided 
under thi's Agreement for terms of more than eight (8) consecutive hours 
under the following terms and conditions; 

1 .  

2 .  

The amount of charges assessed by a n  Aiding Unit to a Stricken Unit 
may not exceed the amount necessary to make the Aiding Unit whole 
and should only include costs that are non-routine in nature. 

The Aiding Unit must assess no more the "usual and customary" 
charges for personnel costs pursuant to a collective bargaining 
agreement, benefit ordinance or compensation policy. 

-1-



3 .  The fee structu re for a ppp ratus  a nd eq u i pment  s h a l l  b e  based on  FE MA 
or OSF fv'! rate schedu les .  If a pa rt icu l a r  p i ece cf a ppc:iratus or 
equ ipment  i s  n ot l i sted with i n  th e FEMA / O S FM rate sched u l es ,  a 
market rate for rei m b u rsement  sha l l  be  esta b l i s hed . 

4 .  I n  no  eve n t  sha l l  th e a m o u nt assessed by  an  A id i ng U n it to  a Stricken 
U n i t  exceed t l1 e  a mo u n t  of fees oerrn i tted tc be a ssessed u nder  I l l i no i s  
l aw .  

5 .  A id i ng U n its must i nvo ice the Stricken U n it with i n  t h i rty ( 3 0 )  days afte r  
the  co m o !et ion  of  the  emergency ;  Once th i rty ( 30 )  days pass ,  th t:'. j�JQ 
sha l l  be cons idered  to be a d o n at io n of serv ice . 

6 .  M utua l  A i d  a n d  a ssess i ng  costs for m utua l a i d  ca n n ot l n  a n y  way be 
cond it io ned u po n  a nv decla rati on  of a federa l  d i sa ster .  

M e m be r  U n its a re enco u raged to cons ider  the  adopt ion of i n te rna l  
po l i cies esta b l i sh i ng  proced u res for  cost re im b u rsement  on  MABAS 
mob i l i zations  pu rsua nt  to esta b l i shed fv1ABAS procedu res for co l lect ion  a n d  
subrn i ss i on  o f  fu nds . 

S ig nato ry be low that th i s  Fi rst Addend u m  to the �.,1ABAS 
Master Ag ree ment  has been adopted a n d  a pp roved by o rd n a nce,  reso l u tio n ,  
o r  ethe r  rna n r: e r  a pp roved b y  law,  a co py o f  wh ich  docu rncnt  i s  ched 
hereto . 

C la i r  Cou n ty rma n 

ATTEST: 

Date Clerk 

-2-



ORDINANCE NO. 10-1033 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A 
MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII , Section 10, authorizes units of 

local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohiblted by law or 

ordinance; and, 

WHEREAS, the "Intergovernmental Cooperation Act", 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., provides that any power or 

powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of local government may be 

exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other unit of local government; and. 

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the ''Intergovernmental Cooperation Act", 5 ILCS 220/5, provides that any one 

or more public agencies may contract with any one or more public agencies to perform any governmental 

serv'ice, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law 

to perform. provided that such contract shall be authorized by the gov(;!rning body of each party to the contract; 

and. 

WHEREAS, the County Board of St. Clair County, Illinois have determined that it is in the best 

interests of the County and its resfdents to enter into an intergovernmental agreement to secure to each the 

benefits of mutual aid in fire protection. firefighting and the protection of tife and property from an emergency or 

disaster and to provide for communications procedures, training and other necessary functions to further the 

provision of said protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board of St. Clair County, Illinois as follows: 

SECTION ONE: That the Chairman of the St. Clair County Board is hereby authorized to execute an 

Agreement for participation in the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System, a copy of said Agreement being attached 

hereto and being made a part hereof. 

- 2
-



SECTION TWO: That the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Executive Board By-Laws attached hereto and 

made a part hereof are hereby approved. 

ADOPTED this o{ 9 c,/ day oP}:� ; 20 Io, by a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: ___ ___._<J _____________________ _ 

NAYS: 0 --------------------------------

ABSENT: ___ / _______________________ _ 

St. Clair County Board Chairman 

ATTEST: 

County Clerk a= 



Ordinance No . 10-1033 

REVIEWED BY : 

JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

This Agreement made and entered into the date set forth next to the signature of the respective 

parties, by and between the units of local government subscribed hereto (hereafter "Unit(s)" that have 

approved this Agreement and adopted same in manner as provided by law and are hereafter listed at the end 

of this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Artfcle VI I ,  Section 10, authorl.zes units of 

local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohibited by law or 

ordinance; and, 

WHEREAS, the '1lntergovernmental Cooperation Ad', 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq . .  provides that any power or 

powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of local government may be 

exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other unit of local government: and, 

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/5, provides that any one 

or more public agencies may contract with any one or more public agencies to perform any governmental 

service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law 

to peiior111, pro·v-ided that such contract shall be authorized by the governing body of each party to the corJract; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have determined that il is In their best interests to enter into this 

Agreement to secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in fire protection, firefighting and the protection of l ffe 

and property from an emergency or disaster; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have determine that it is in their best interests to form an association to 

provide for communications procedures, training and other necessary functions to further the provision of said 

protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster. 

- 1 -



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the Unit's membership in the Mutual Aid Box 

Alarm System and the covenants contained herein, 

THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE 

Purpose 

It is recognized and acknowledged that in certain situations, such as, but not limited to, emergencies, 

natural disasters and man-made catastrophes, the use of an individual Member Unit's personnel and 

equipment to perform functions outside the territorial limits of the Member Unit is desirable and necessary to 

preserve and protect the health, safety and welfare of the public. It is further expressly acknowledged that in 

certain situations, such as the aforementioned, the use of other Member Unit's personnel and equipment to 

perform functions within the territorial limits of a Member Unit is desirable and necessary to preserve and 

protect the health, safety and welfare of the public. Further, i t  is acknowledged that coordination of mutual aid 

through the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System is desirable for the effective and efficient provision of mutual aid. 

SECTION TWO 

Definitions 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms as used in this agreement shall be defined as follows: 

A. "Mutual Aid Box Alarm System" (hereinafter referred to as "MABAS"): A definite and prearranged plan 

whereby response and assistance is provided to a Stricken Unit by the Aiding Unit(s) in accordance with the 

system established and maintained by the MABAS Member Units and amended from time to time; 

B. "Member Unit": A unit of local government including but not limited to a county, city, village or fire protection 

district having a fire department recognized by the State of Illinois, or an intergovernmental agency and the 

units of which the intergovernmental agency is comprised which is a party to the MABAS Agreement and has 
~ 2 ~  



been appropriately authorized by the governing body to enter into such agreement, and to comply with the 

rules and regulations of MABAS; 

C. "Stricken Unit": A Member Unit which requests aid in the event of an emergency: 

D. "Aiding Unit": A Member Unit furnishing equipment, personnel, and/or services to a Stricken Unit; 

E. "Emergency": An occurrence or condition in a Member Unit's territorial jurisdiction which results in a 

situation of such magnitude and/or consequence that it cannot be adequately handled by the Stricken Unit and 

such that a Member Unit determines the necessity and advisability of requesting aid. 

F. "Division": The geographically associated Member Units or unit which have been grouped for operational 

efficiency and representation of those Member Units. 

G. "Training": The regular scheduled practice of emergency procedures during non-emergency drills to 

implement the necessary joint operations of MABAS. 

H. "Executive Board": The governing body of MABAS comprised of Division representatives. 

SECTION THREE 

Authority and Action to Effect Mutual Aid 

A. The Member Units hereby authorize and direct their respective Fire Chief or his designee to take 

necessary and proper action to render and/or request mutual aid from the other Member Units in 

accordance with the policies and procedures established and maintained by the MABAS Member Units. 

The aid rendered shall be to the extent of available personnel and equipment not required for adequate 

protection of the territorial limits of the Aiding Unit. The judgment of the Fire Chief, or his designee, of 

the Aiding Unit shall be final as to the personnel and equipment available to render aid. 

~ 3 ~  



B. Whenever an emergency occurs and conditions are such that the Fire Chief, or his designee, of the 

Stricken Unit determines it advisable to request aid pursuant to this Agreement he shall notify the 

Aiding Unit of the nature and location of the emergency and the type and amount of equipment and 

personnel and/or services requested from the Aiding Unit. 

C. The Fire Chief, or his designee, of the Aiding Unit shall take the following action immediately upon 

being requested for aid: 

1 .  Determine what equipment, personnel a nd/or services are rnquested according to the system 

maintained by MABAS; 

2. Determine if the requested equipment, personnel, and/or services can be committed in response to 

the request from the Stricken Unit; 

3. Dispatch immediately the requested equipment, personnel and/or services, to the extent available, to 

the location of the emergency reported by the Stricken Unit in accordance with the procedures of 

MABAS; 

4. Notify the Stricken Unit if any or all of the requested equipment, personnel and/or services cannot be 

provided. 

SECTION FOUR 

Jurisdiction over Personnel and Equipment 

Personnel dispatched to aid a party pursuant to this Agreement shall remain employees of the Aiding 

Unlt. Personnel rendering aid shall report for direction and assignment at the scene of the emergency to the 

Fire Chief or Senior Officer of the Stricken Unit. The party rendering aid shall at all times have the right to 

withdraw any and al l  aid upon the order of its Fire Chief or his deslgnee: provided, however, that the party 

withdrawing such aid shall notify the Fire Chief or Senior Officer of the party requesting aid of the withdrawal of 

such aid and the extent of such withdrawal. 

~ 4 ~  



SECTION FIVE 

Compensation for Aid 

EquJpment, personnel, and/or services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be at no charge to the 

party requesting aid; however, any expenses recoverable from third parties shall be equitably distributed 

among responding parties. Nothing herein shall operate to bar any recovery of funds from any state or federal 

agency under any existing statutes. 

SECTION SIX 

Insurance 

Each party hereto shall procure and maintain, at Hs sole and exclusive expense, insurance coverage, 

including: comprehensive liability, personal inJury0 property damage, worker's compensation, and, if applicable, 

emergency medical service professional liabillty. with minimum limits of $1 ,000,000 auto and $1,000,000 

combined single limit general liability and professional liability. No party hereto shall have any obligation to 

provide or extend insurance coverage for any of the items enumerated herefn to any other party hereto or its 

personnel. The obligations of the Section may be satisfied by a party's membership in a self-insurance pool, a 

self-insurance plan or arrangement with an insurance provider approved by the state of jurisdiction. The 

MABAS may require that copies or other evidence of compliance with the provisions of this Sectron be 

provided to the MABAS. Upon request, Member Units shall provide such evidence as herein provided to the 

MABAS members. 

SECTION SEVEN 

Indemnification 

Each party hereto agrees to waive all claims against all other parties hereto for any loss, damage, 

personal injwy or death occurring in consequence of the performance of this Mutual Aid Agreement; provided, 

however, that such claim is not a result of gross negligence or willful misconduct by a party hereto or its 

personnel. 



Each party requesti ng o r  provid ing a id pursuant to th is Agreement hereby expressly agrees to hold 

harmless, indemnify and defend the party rendering aid and i ts personnel  from any and a l l  c la ims, demands, 

l iab il i ty, losses, su its i n  law or in  equity which a re made by a th i rd party. Th is i ndemnity sha l l  i nclude attorney 

fees and costs that may arise from p rovid ing a id pursuant to th is Agreement. Provided , however, that al l  

employee benefits, wage and disabi l i ty payments, pensions, worker's compensation cla ims ,  damage to o r  

destruction of equ ipment and cloth ing, and medical expenses of the party rendering a id sha l l  b e  the sole and 

exclusive responsib i l i ty of the respective party for its employees, p rovided, however, that such claims made by 

a th i rd party a re not the resu l t  of g ross negl igence or wi l lful m isconduct on the part of the party rendering aid .  

SECTION EIGHT 

Non-Liabi l ity for Fai lure to Render Aid 

The renderi ng of assistance under the terms of this Agreement shal l  not be mandatory if l ocal 

condit ions of the Aid ing U ni t  proh ib i t  response. It is the responsib i l ity of the Aid ing Unit to i mmediately notify 

the Stricken Un it of the Aiding Un it's inab i l ity to respond; however, fai lure to immed iately notify the Stricken  

Un i t  of  such inab i l ity to  respond shal l  not  constitute evidence of noncompl iance with the terms of th is  section 

and no l iab i lity may be assigned. 

l\lo l iabil ity of any kind or nature shal l  be attributed to or be assumed, whether expressly or implied ,  by a 

party hereto, its du ly authorized agents and personnel ,  for fa i l u re o r  refusal to render a id . Nor  shal l  there be 

any l iab i l i ty of a party for withdrawal of a id once provided pursuant to the terms of th is Agreement. 

SECTION NINE 

Term 

This Agreement sha l l  be in effect for a term of one year from the date of signature hereof and shal l  

automatical ly renew for successive one  year terms un less terminated i n  accordance with t h i s  Section .  

Any party hereto may terminate its participation i n  this Agreement a t  any t ime, p rovided that the party 

wish ing to terminate its participation in th is Agreement sha l l  g ive written notice to the Board of their Division 

~ 6 ~  



and to the Executive Board specifying the date of termination, such notice to be given at least 90 calendar 

days prior to the specified date of termination of participation. The written notice provided herein shall be given 

by personal delivery, registered mail or certified mail. 

SECTION TEN 

Effectiveness 

This Agreement shall be in full force and effective upon approval by the parties hereto in the manner 

provided by law and upon proper execution hereof. 

SECTION ELEVEN 

Binding Effect 

This Agreement shall be blnding upon and Inure lo the benefit of any successor entity which may 

assume the obligations of any party hereto. Provided, however, that this Agreement may not be assigned bya 

Member Unit without prior written consent of the parties hereto; and this Agreement shall not be assigned by 

MABAS without prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

SECTION TWELVE 

Validity 

The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not render invalid any other provision. If, for any 

reason. any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed severable and thi.s Agreement may be enforced with that 

provision severed or modified by court order. 

SECTION THIRTEEN 
~ 7 -



Notices 

All notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served personalty, by registered mail or certified 

mail to the parties at such addresses as may be designated from tfme to time on the MABAS mailing lists or, to 

other such addresses as shall be agreed upon, 

SECTION FOURTEEN 

Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Ill inois. 

SECTION FIFTEEN 

Execution in Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed iri multiple counterparts or duplicate originals, each of Which shall 

conslltute and be deemed as one and the same document. 

SECTION SIXTEEN 

Executive Board of MABAS 

An Executive Board is hereby established to consider. adopt and amend from time to time as needed 

rules, procedures, by-laws and any other matters deemed necessary by the Member Units. The Executive 

Board shall consist of a member elected from each Division within MABAS who shall serve as the voting 

representative of said Division on MABAS matters, and may appoint a deslgnee to serve temporarily in his 

stead. Such designee shall be from within the respective division and shall have all rights and privileges 

attendant to a representative of that Member Unit. 

- 8 ~  



A President and Vice President shall be elected from the representatives of the Member Units and shall 

serve without compensation. The President and such other officers as are provided for in the by-laws shall 

coordinate the activities of the MABAS. 

SECTION SEVENTEEN 

Duties of the Executive Board 

The Executive Board shall meet regularly to conduct business and to consider and publish the rules, 

procedures and by laws of the MABAS, which shall govern the Executive Board meetings and such other 

relevant matters as the Executive Board shall deem necessary. 

SECTION EIGHTEEN 

Rules and Procedures 

Rules, procedures and by laws of the MABAS shall be established by the Member Units via the 

Executive Board as deemed necessary from time to time for the purpose of administrative functtons, the 

exchange of information and the common welfare of the MABAS. 

SECTION NINETEEN 

Amendments 

This Agreement may only be amended by written consent of all the parties hereto. This shall not 

preclude the amendment of rules, procedures and by laws of the MABAS as established by the Executive 

Board to this Agreement. The undersigned unit of local government or public agency hereby has adopted, and 

subscribes to, and approves this MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM Agreement to which this signature page 

will be attached, and ag�ees to be a party thereto and be bound by the terms thereof. 



This Signatory certifies that this Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Agreement has been adopted and 

approved by ordinance, resolution ,  or other manner approved by l aw, a copy of which document is 

attached hereto. 

Saint Cla ir County. I l l inois 
Politic I Entity 

Date 

ATTEST: 

Title 

Date 

~ 10 ~  



Payment Code 

Payment category zoning - Zoning & Mapping 

M9000 • Miscellaneous Mapping receipts 
ZBlOO - AZC-APP Zoing Compliance Permit 
ZB101 • Commercial & Industrial Permit 
ZB103-l • Electrical Permit 1 lnsp 
ZB104 • Garage/Pole Bldg/Shed Permit 
ZB105-l • Deck Permit 
ZB106· l • Modular/Manuf Home Permit 
ZB 108 • Reinspection fee • new constr 
ZB109·1 • B/P Renewal 
ZBll0-1 -Res Additions Permit <$50,000 
ZBlll- 1 - Res Remodel Permit < $10,000 
ZB111·3 - Res Rem Permit $10,000 • $50,000 
ZB113·1 • Single Fam Res Permit <2500 sqft 
ZB113·2 • Single Fam Res Permit >2500 sqft 
28114 • Stormwater Erosion Permit 
ZB114--l • Stormwater Control Permit 34% 
ZB115-l - Swimming Pool Permit-In Ground 
28115·2 - Swimming Pool Permit-Above Gnd 
2CO100 • OCC Village of East carondelet 
ZCO102 • OCC Village of Millstadt 
2Hl00 • ABV-Area/bulk Variance 
ZH102 • Special Use Permit 
2Hl03 • Zoning Amendment 
Z-MB Inv - Misc Billing by Invoice 
20100 - ace Multi-famlly 
ZO101 • OCC Single Family 
20102 • OCC Manuf/Mobile Home Insp 
20103 • Reinspection Fee-Occupancy 
20104 - Certification of Ocrupancy 
ZO 105 - Certification of Ocrupancy-Mod 
ZO106 - ace Duplex/Condo Inspection 

Payment category 

APRIL, 2015- FEE REPORT 
Payment Date Range 04/01/15 - 04/30/15 '-4, Summary Listing 

Default Bank Ao:ount Number of T ransactloos Total Amount Collected 

BOE-Investment Pool 1 35.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 29 725.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 8 2,755.57 
BOE-Investment Pool 16 800.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 6 840.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 5 420.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 2 300.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 225.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 35.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 2 400.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 200.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 250.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 500.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 2 1,400.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 238.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 5 561.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 3 450.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 100.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 100.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 3 300.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 3 900.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 3 900.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 1 300.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 41 9,372.05 
BOE-Investment Pool 35 2,400.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 79 8,000.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 9 675.()() 
BOE-Investment Pool 39 2,000.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 151 4,530.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 9 180.00 
BOE-Investment Pool 8 800.00 

Zoning - Zoning & Mapping Totals 468 !40,691.62 
Grand Totals 468 $40,691.62 

Value of Construction on which permits were issued for April, 2015: $1,418,285.00 
Total Fee Report for the month of April, 2014: $32,566.38 

Run by Pam Click on 05/19/2015 10:56:44 AM Page 1 of 1 

http:32,566.38
http:1,418,285.00
http:40,691.62


COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR 
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & ZONING 

PHONE (61 8) 825-271 5  

FAX (6 1 8 )  277-0482 

May 26, 20 1 5  

RE: 20 1 5-03-ZA -- Michael W. Muskopf, Owner & Appl icant 
Rosemary Mathis, Applicant 
Mil lstadt Township 
(County Board District 22) 

To the Members of the County Board of St. Clair County, I l l inois: 

10  PUBLIC SQUARE 

BELLEVILLE, I LLINOIS 62220·1 623 

www.co.st-clai r . i l .us 

A public hearing was held on May 1 1 , 20 1 5  at 7:00 P.M., in the County Board Room, St. 
Clair County Building, # 1 0  Public Square, Belleville, I l l inois, by the Zoning Board of Appeals to 
consider a request for a Zoning Amendment to change the zone d istrict classification of a certain 
tract of land from "A" Agricultural Industry Zone District to "RR-3 1 1  Rural Residential Zone 
District, on property described as: Pt of the N 1 /2 of the NE 1 /4 of the SW 1 /4 of Section 1 3 , T. 1 
S . ,  R .  9 W., of the 3rd P.M., St. Clair County, I l linois containing 1 5 .0 1 -acres more or less, which is 
known as XXXX Urbana Road, Mil lstadt, I l l inois, in Mil lstadt Township. 

During the hearing, the appl icants offered testimony and evidence in support of the 
appl ication and there were no objectors present at the hearing. County Board Member, Michael 
O'Donnell was present at the hearing and gave testimony in support of the zoning request. This 
testimony and evidence was heard and duly noted by the Zoning Board. The Zoning Board after 
having considered all relevant sections of the St. Clair County Zoning Code granted the application 
for the following reasons: The board feels granting the request is compatible with the surrounding 
area; the division of property wil l  be for three members of the family to build one house each; and 
the applicants stated they are aware that a portion of the property falls within the Gateway Corridor 
Protection area. # / S- 111 'f 

Respectfully Submitted, 

�'f l?J:C� 
By: Anne Markezich, Secretary 

/pc 



PHONE ( 6 1 8) 825-2715 

FAX (618)  277-0482 

May 26, 20 1 5  

RE: 20 1 5-0 1 -SP --

COUNTY OF ST. CLAI R 
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & ZONING 

Vernon & Susan Thacker, Owners 
STL Equities, LLC, Applicants 
Stookey Township 
(County Board District I 7) 

To the Members of the County Board of St. Clair County, I l l inois : 

1 0  PUBLIC SQUARE 

BELLEVILLE, ILUNOIS 62220-1 623 

www,co,sl-clair ii. us 

Public hearings were held on April 6, 20 1 5  and May 1 1 , 20 1 5, in  the County Board Room, St. Clair 
County Building, # 1 0  Public Square, Bel leville, I l l inois, by the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider a 
request for a Special Use Permit for a Planned Building Development to allow a Dollar General Store in a 
"HB" Highway Business Zone District, on property described as: A tract of land being part of Lot 5 in the 
SW 1 /4 of Section 1 1 , T. 1 N . ,  R. 9 W., of the 3rd P.M., St. Clair County, I l l inois containing 1 .92-acres more 
or less, which is known as 1 0 1  Ei ler Road, Belleville, I l l inois, in  Stookey Township. 

During the hearing the applicant offered testimony and evidence in  support of the application, and 
several objectors offered testimony and evidence in support of their respective positions. This testimony and 
evidence was heard and duly noted by the Zoning Board. This case was taken under advisement at the April 
6, 20 1 5  hearing to allow the appl icant time to submit additional information to the Zoning Board. The matter 
came back to the Zoning Board on May 1 1 , 20 1 5 . The Zoning Board after having considered all relevant 
sections of the St. Clair County Zoning Code granted the application with the following 
conditions/stipulations: The proposed design, location, development and operation of th.is proposed Special 
Use Permit adequately protects the publ ic's health, safety & welfare and physical environment; the request is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; the request wil l  not have an adverse affect on the value of 
neighboring properties or on the County's overall taxbase; a traffic survey was performed by Kaskaskia 
Engineering Group, LLC and wi l l  be placed on file; and the building will connect to public utilities. The 
appl icant agreed to the fol lowing stipulations : The applicant agreed to connect to municipal sewers per St. 
Clair County Health Department regulations; the applicants will properly abandon the existing septic tank on 
the property; the applicants wil l  comply with the letter dated May 7, 20 1 5  from the St. C lair County 
Department of Roads and Bridges regarding the proposed entrance to the development; the applicant 1wil l  
adhere to  the fencing requirements l isted in the S t .  C lair County Zoning Ordinance Section 40-4A8; the 
applicant stated the fence wil l  be vinyl ; al l  setbacks will be met for the "HB" Highway Business Zone 
District; the applicant agreed that all lighting on the property wil l  be dovvn lighting and will not go off site; 
the hours of operation will be from 8:00 AM 9 :00 PM, seven days per week; and the applicant wil l  design 
an adequate stormwater retention and drainage plan. # ,At:J??- 1..:;-- R L 

ResRectfully Submitted, 
w,!ING B

r�
,O!(APPµA 

� �//1' 
By: Anne M e;ich, Secreta 



PHONE (618) 825-2715 
FAX (618) 277-0482 

May 26, 20 1 5  

RE: 2015-02-SP --

COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR 
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & ZONING 

Norbe11 M. Friederich 
Owner & Applicant 
Mascoutah Township 
(County Board District 20) 

10 PUBLIC SQUARE 
BELLEVILLE, ILUNOIS 62220-1623 

www co.s1-cla1,.t1.us 

To the Members of the County Board of St. Clair County, Illinois: 

A public hearing was held on May 11, 2015 at 7: 10 P.M., in the County Board Room, St. 
Clair County Building, # 10 Public Square, Belleville, Illinois, by the Zoning Board of Appeals to 
consider a request for a Special Use Permit for a Planned Building Development pursuant to Section 
40-9-3(H)(3) of the St. Clair County Zoning Code to allow a Vacuum/Camera Truck Dealer, 
Storage and Repair Shop in an 11A" Agricuhmal Industry Zone District, on property described as: Pt 
of  the SW l /4 of Section 28, T. l N ., R. 6 W ., of the 3rd P.M ., St. Clair County, Illinois containing 
5.46-acres more or less, which is known as 7627 Richter Road, Mascoutah, Illinois, in Mascoutah 
Township. 

During the bearing, the applicant offered testimony and evidence in support of the 
application and there were no objectors present at the hearing. County Board Member, Mike Baker 
was present at the hearing and gave testimony in support of the application. This testimony and 
evidence was heard and duly noted by the Zoning Board. The Zoning Board after having 
considered all relevant sections of the St. Clair County Zoning Code granted the application for the 
following reasons: ·n1e board feels granting the request is compatible with the area; the proposed 
design, location, deveopment and operation of the Special Use Permit would adequately protect the 
public's health, safety and welfare and physical environment; there will be no adverse affect on 
traffic circulation; the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and the request is 
compatible to the trucking company which operated on this parcel from 1982-2009. The applicant 
agreed to the following stipulations: Hours of oper:ation will be from 7:30 AM to 4:00 PM -
Monday tlu'Ough Friday; there will no more than six trucks stored outside on the property; all 
equipment will be stored inside the building; and the site plan submitted by the applicant includes 
the construction of a 45' x I 00' storage building. #cRP?J-ls-� 2.. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

�1.!f!ltefrlj 
/pc 



.' 

Honorable County Board Members 
St. Clair County 
Belleville, Illinois 

Gentlemen: 

We your Finance Committee recommend the approval of the 

following report of Charles Suarez, County Treasurer of 

receipts and disbursements for the month of April 20 J 5 .  

This report being filed as per Il l inois Compiled Statutes 

Chapter 30, Section 1 5/ l .  

w 



Asset Num Fund DescrlpUon 

100-1000 Gen County Fund 

1 15-1150 Gen Co Escrow 

116-1160 Working Cash Fu 

117-1170 Pers Prop Repla 

120-1200 Co Auloma1Ion F 
130-1300 Geographlc Inf 

140-1400 Pari-Mutual Fun 

150-1500 Ton Liabllily 
160-1600 Capltal Replace 

160-1601 Cap Repl 2013 0 

170-1700 Mel/ollnk Secur 

180-1800 SA Offender Ace 

190-1900 Payroll Escrow 

200-2000 County Highway 

201-2010 County Bndge F 

202-2020 Malching Taw Fu 
203-2030 Mo1or FueJ Tax 

205-2050 Highway Special 

205-2051 Hwy Spec Proj 2 

206-2060 Htghway Equ1pme 

207-2070 Township Motor 

209-2090 Highway Payroll 

210-2100 Lea,se Payat>le F 

211 -2110 Social Security 

212-2120 Rellrement Fund 

215-2150 Sale In Error 

216-2160 Indemnity Fund 

217-2170 Recorder's Olfl 

216-2180 Trustee E, St 

220-2200 Tourism Fund 

221-2210 Parlls Granl Com 

221A,2211 Par�s Grant Com 

225-2250 Veterans ASSISI 

237-237-Ni=W Special Grants 

Oala Updated; -REPORT-: 05/1312015 12:52 
Run Dale· 05/1312015 • 12' �2 

FUND SUMMARY 
Cash/Checking Activity 

April 1 ,  2015 - April 30, 2015 

Beginning Balance Deposits 

1 ,409, 163,24 2,268,177.51 

6,144,951.33 6,089.72 

1,200,687, 79 0.00 

20,330,914.85 668,256.52 
-131,005.80 2,786,00 

503,219.24 28,862.75 

-39,824.95 60,626.96 

2,181,024.03 15,600.66 
2,466,578.11 8,114.13 

4,780,813.10 0.00 

-30,093.82 106,922.40 

133,403.93 13,273.67 

678,285.56 0.00 

2,834,150.18 12,029.25 

5,544,000.41 4,145.89 

6,079,601.48 198.86 

5,154,611.54 119,136.47 

6,24J,017 .35 0.00 

21,763,044.35 0.00 

302,703.44 52,430.79 

1,1 75,199.36 29,569.60 

340,676.60 305,166.42 

485,765.74 1',425.93 

5,070,260.61 25,145.84 

4,179,851.38 101,709.31 

320,879.05 0.00 

1,000,000.00 0.00 

844,757.47 26,391.50 

3,044,817 ,41 0.00 

19,637.35 0.00 

1,407,565.86 38,788.81 

3,595,230.10 40,627.86 

191,291. 50 422.73 

173,542.22 198,1 52.49 

St. Clair County 

Wilhdraw'als Interest Received Ending Balance 

3,632,04J.01 1,021.57 46,319.31 

0.00 3,530.70 6,154,571.75 

0.00 690.18 1,201,377.97 

11,702.07 11,702.07 2.0,,999,171.37 

16S,754.62 -68.71 -294,043.13 

19,S42.18 276.71 512,816.S2 

14,074.64 -14.8'3 6,712.48 

639,195.05 1,345.81 1,358,775.67 
29,646.15 1,450.35 2,446,496.44 

0.00 2,715.99 4,783,529.09 

126,281.96 51.75 -49,401.63 

1,678.63 78.10 145,077.07 

0.00 389.30 678.674.86 

227,562.45 1,741.29 2,620,358.27 

46,684.45 3,207.13 5,504, 668.98 

16,026.71 3,522.97 6,067,296.60 

223.969.34 2,995.38 5,052,774.05 

0.00 3,588.49 6,246,605.84 

0.00 12,509.45 21,775,553.80 

1 1 ,986.67 165.86 343,313.42 

62,775.48 674.87 1,142,668.35 

305,335.94 169.52 340,676.60 

0.00 358.26 487,549.9:l 

347,450.54 3,008.37 4, 7 so ,964. 28 

861,374.08 2,480.39 3,422,667.00 

29,123.01 190.70 291,946,74 

576.83 576.83 1,000,000.00 

28,886.71 490.74 842,753. 00 

0.00 1,719.99 3,046,537.40 

0.00 19.96 19,657.31 

17,492.16 792.83 1,429,655.34 

20,577.29 2,044.49 3,617,325, 16 

27,992.44 121.85 163,843.64 

89,128.52 76. 64 282,642.83 

Portfolio CFUN 

cc 
lP (PRF _ L P � )  7 . 1  1 

Repo" Vor 7 3,5 



Asset Num Fund Description 

240-2400 County Health F 
241-2410 Landfill Surcha 
245-2450 Mental Heallh F 
250-2500 CiVil Defense E 
253-2530 Emergency Telep 
257-2S70 Pet Populahon 
260-2600 Cot.1rtAuloma1io 
261-2610 Court Document 
262-2620 E.lectonic Cllal 
264-2640 Circuil Clerk T 
26S-2650 Malnl/Child Sup 
266-2660 Forecl osure Med 
267-2670 Visllat,on Cent 
268-2680 Law library Fun 
269-2690 Bailiff Fund 
2'70-2700 S A  Title IV-D 
273-2730 Chlli:lren·s Advo 
275-2750 ACCS State's At 
277-2770 SA Records Auto 
278-2780 SA Forfeiture B 
285-2850 Prob Service Ou 
285-2851 Probation Servi 
286-2860 Mental Health C 
290-2900 County De1en110 
295·29SO Coroner's Fvnd 
300-3000 0(UQ Traffic P( 
300-3001 Anti Drug lniti 
305-3050 Shentfs DUI F 
315-3150 Sheriffs Asset 
330-3300 Commissary Fund 
3,35.3350 Jail Medical Fu 
350-3500 Victim Wilness 
355-3550 Domestic Violen 
370-3700 Project Renee G 

Data Updated: ~REPORT- 05/13/2015 12:52 
Run o·a,e 05/1312015 - 12.52 

FUND SUMMARY 
Cash/Checking Activity 

Aprll 1 ,  2015 - April 30, 2015 

Beginning Balanc<i Deposits 

2,921,:451 .53 587,162.15 

S,S89,8S'7.21 128,896.22 

1,316,562.14 531.10 

392,564.26 0.00 
1,009,794.53 186,600.44 

232,715.46 14,700 .. 00 

579,781.85 94,851.53 

1,192,987.25 101,395.30 
417,650.70 9,!128.32 

-6,050.63 0.00 

928,566.68 7,349.71 

92,932.30 7,700.00 

27,260.30 7,755.00 

147',924.29 20,213.00 

-30,390.22 91,594.60 

22,121.77 94,629.48 

34,953.56 9.29 

4,648.62 382.13 

72,392.00 3,047.79 

38,166.47 160.00 

454,192.61 90,00 

1,221,321.75 56,008,51 

22,057.98 1,772.99 

396,118.21 4,214,22 

73,029.77 2,250.00 

25,S52.28 1,760.63 

34,869.79 0.00 

60,292.56 2,888.35 

316,566.62 3,289.99 

275,667.39 30,358.20 

2,663.80 l,354.34 

7,611.60 0.00 

2,055.58 0.00 

226,620.57 0.00 

Withdrawals 

659,163.21 

259,195.72 

201,043.75 

0.00 

259,403.06 

5,872.90 

29,447.72 

43,057.48 
0.00 

12,032.55 

8,384.17 

0.00 

19,034.28 

17,907.4-5 

105,315.93 

60,718.62 

5,500-.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,375.00 

58,403.59 

51,466.27 

2,511.01 

166,914.42 

16,889.06 

0.00 

13,257.10 

0.00 

5,295.01 

26,808.85 

0.00 

5,540.58 

5,393.54 

33,309.34 

Interest Received 

1,707.67 

J,337.23 
877.83 

225.64 

758,91 

135.03 

32S.13 
670.29 

237.22 
-1.38 

534.27 

49.36 

12.67 

86.29 

-18.54 

10.78 

23.18 

2.49 

40.71 

21.46 

225.02 

676,59 

9.22 

199.24 

41.33 

17.52 

16.48 

34.09 

177.14 

153.87 

1.48 

2.16 

0.19 

116.73 

Page 2 

Ending Balance 

2,851,158.14 

5,462,894.94 
1,116,927.32 

.392,789.90 

937,750.82 

241,677.59 

645,510.79 

1,251,995.36 
427,816.24 

-18,084.56 

928,066.49 

100, 681.66 

15, 993.69 

150,316.13 

-44,130.09 

56,043.41 

29,486.03 

5,033.24 

75,480,50 

36,972..93 

396,104.04 

1,226,540.58 

21,329.18 

233,617,2S 

58,432,04 

27, 430.43 

21,629.17 

63,215.00 

314,7J8.74 

279,370.61 

4,019.62 

2,073.18 

-3,337.77 

193,427.96 

Portfolio CFUN 
cc 

Lr (!'RF _LPF) 1 1  1 
Repon Ver. 7.3 5 



Asset NlJm Fund Descrfption 

384-3840 Auto Task Force 
386-3860 DUI Alcohol Sal 
450-4500 Bonds Payable F 
455-4550 Joint Use Bond 
500-5000 MIdAmerica Airp 
500-5001 MidAmerica Alrp 
550-5500 Employees Medic 
570-5700 sec Unenemploym 
600-6000 Post Employment 
610-6100 Prior Year Prot 
GlOA-6100 Bankrvptcy 
650-6500 Uncla

i

med Prope 
700-7000 Arb)lratlon Fu[l 
710-7100 Condemnation Fu 
720-7200 Estates or Dece 
725-7250 Gen Co Escheat 
930�00 County Flood Pr 
9913 CC Returned Che 
9915 Cir Clk 8onds$F 
9920 Cir Clk Cr Caro 
9940 Ctr Clk Pool 4 
9950 sec Marriage Fu 

Data Updated: ~REPORT-: 0511312015 12:52 
Run Dall>; 05/13/20t5 • 1i.; s2 

FUND SUMMARY 

Cash/Checking Actfvity 

April 1, 2015 - April 30, 2015 

Beginning Balance Deposits 

-27,204.93 o.oo 

56,878.84 0.00 

750.21 0.00 

10,254,916.79 0.00 

349,592.47 7,251.01 

99,854.93 0.00 

3,716,191. 1 8  844,691.19 

256,682.35 0.00 

1,040.33 o.oo 

269,6.35,57 0.00 

2,357.56 0.00 

105,460.99 o.os 

14,016.12 n,9oa.oo 

918,431.54 0.00 

63,9.40.24 0.00 

8,172.13 0.00 

10,749,294.83 0.00 

4,220.69 0.00 

546,787.10 779,725.79 

1,747,11"61.95 55,096.77 

213,821.20 37.33 

1,000.00 590.00 

Withdrawals 

15,,213.32 

32.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

974,450.27 

324.11 
o.oo 

5,801.08 

0.00 

55.54 

13,564.61 

23,800.00 

n.oo 
0.00 

44.85 

0.09 

1,123,158.30 

41,22 

0.00 

640.02 

tntere�t Received 

-13.71 

32.00 

45.25 

6,420.14 

198.32 

57.37 

2,359.35 

152.85 

0 . 54  

167.61 

1 .39 
55.54 

4.61 

511.09 

36.76 

4-.69 

5,930.09 

0,09 

-4.00 

41.22 

4.97 

0.02 

Page3 

Ending Balance 

-42,431,96 

56,878.84 

795.46 

10,261,336.93 

357,041.80 

99,912.30 

3,588,791,45 

256,511.09 
1,040.87 

264,002.10 

2,358.95 

105,461.04 
14,364.12 

895.142.63 

63,977.00 

8,176. 82 

10,755,180.07 

4,220.69 

203,350.59 

1,802,958.72 

213,863.50 

950.00 ------------------------------ - - - -------- - - - - - --
156,857,032.68 7,296,245.72 1 1,387,226.95 90,338.43 152,856,389.88 

Portfol
i

o CFUN 

cc 

LP (PRF _LPF) 7 1, I 
Report Ver 1 3 5 

http:23,800.00
http:13,564.61
http:5,801.08
http:15,213.32


'il. Clair L,iunl.v t)lc:J;:; 
10 Public 6querc­

fklh1IIC"'., lllan�,,11 62'2'20· I u'2'\ 

CttJ\QLE6 OUJ\Q�Z 
TreRsurer 

6L Clnir < _'"'univ 

May 1 ,  2015  

Honorable Mark Kern, Chairman 
S t .  Clair County Board 
County Court House 
Belleville ,  Ill inois 

Dear Sir : 

In accordance with 55 ILCS 5 / 3 - 11007 of the 2 0 0 8  

Illinois Compiled Statues, the County Treasurer 

submits the attached report on investments of funds as 

of April 3 0th, 2015 . 

CS/ML 
Attachments 

Respectfully, 

C\�� 
Charles Suarez 
Treasurer 
St . Clair County 

Db nc: 
(u[�) •n; t'l(X.)\) 

r& ... 
(H�) '.!�4 l l  



FUND NAME 

TREASURER IN'JESTMENT POOL#1 

CIRCUIT CLERK POOL #4 

GRAr<D TOTAL 

Sl .  Cl f.\lR cou •HV 

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS 

POS'TION REPORT 

HY FUND 

AS OF 04130120 1 5  

COST 8ALANC E  

$1 50,631 ,046.38 

$2,226,343.liO 

$1 52,856,389.88 



FINANCIAL 

INSTITUTION 

ASSOCIATED BANK 

BANK Oi' BELLE\l!U..E 

BANK OF SPRINGFiELD 

CENTRUE BANK 

CITllf.. riS COMMlJNlr"r BAN I< 

COMMUNITY FlRST BANK 

THE Bt>.NK OF EDV\IARDSVILLE 

FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK 

FIRST iLLINOIS BANK 

MORGAN STANLEY SMITH BARNEY 

PEOPLES NATIOW\L BAN V  

REGIONS BANK 

UMB 

VILLAGE BANK 

GRAND TOTAL 

ST. ClA IR cour,TY 

INVESTMENT HOLDiNGS 

POSITIO N  REPORT 

DY Fl�JM✓C!Al . .  I NST!TUTION 

AS OF 04/30rl 5 

COST BALANCE 

3,686,365 .22 

2 ,006.008 .86 

s1 1,,os.so 

1 3,o-rn ,c; n. n 

250,000.00 

2,21 0,000.00 

3,1 32,984.04 

3,663, 3(J-.1.66 

80,283 906 ,66 

1 ,298.E68 ,55 

31 ,775.46 

522,000 ,00 

1 52,856,389.88 

http:152,856,389.88
http:522,000.00
http:31,775.46
http:1,298,868.55
http:254,810.30
http:80,283,906.66
http:3,663,304.66
http:3,132,984.04
http:2,210,000.00
http:2,360,017.62
http:39,215,434.10
http:250,000.00
http:13,078,927.77
http:617,106.50
http:244,781.31
http:2,006,008.86
http:3,686,365.22


ORDlNANCEN0. 15-1120 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing and providing for the issuance of 
$____ Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2015, of The County of 
St. Clair, Illinois, providing for the payment of certain outstanding 
alternate bonds of said County, providing for the levy of a direct 
annual tax sufficient to pay the principal and interest thereon, 
authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof and 
authorizing and directing the execution of an Escrow Agreement in 
connection therewith. 

* 

WHEREAS, The County of St. Clair, I l l inois (the "County"), is a duly organized and 

existing unit of local government created and existing under the provisions of the laws of the 

State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the Counties Code, as amended 

(the "Counties Code"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has heretofore issued and now has outstanding General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 1999, dated June 24, 1999 (the "Series 

1999 Bonds ''), and General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 

Series 2009 (the ''Series 2009 Bonds", and together with the Series 1999 Bonds, the "Prior 

Bonds"), the proceeds of which were used to refund and continue to refund bonds issued to 

finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Scott Joint Use Airport and related 

facilities (the "Airport "); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds are presently outstanding and unpaid and are binding and 

subsisting legal obligations of the County; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms of the Prior Bonds, certain maturities of the Prior 

Bonds (the "Prior Bonds") may be called for redemption in advance of their maturity; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County (the "Board" or the "County Board") Board 

hereby finds that it is in the best interests of the County to refund a portion of the Prior Bonds 



(said portion of the Prior Bonds to be refunded being referred to herein as the "Refunded 

Bonds") in order to restructure the debt burden of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Refunded Bonds are described more particularly in the escrow agreement 

referred to in Section 13 hereof (the "Escrow Agreement''); and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to rnake such call for the redemption of such 

Prior Bonds on their earliest possible call date, and provide for the giving of proper notice to the 

registered owners of such Prior Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of refunding the Refunded Bonds (the "Refunding "), 

including legal, financial, bond discount, capitalized interest, printing and publication costs and 

other expenses, is not less than $ _____ and the Board has determined that the County has 

insufficient funds on hand and lawfully available to refund the Refunded Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, such costs will be paid for from the proceeds of alternate bonds authorized to 

be issued at this time pursuant to the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the State of Illinois, 

as amended (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and for the best interests of the County that the Refunding be 

undertaken and in order to raise the funds required for such purpose it will be necessary for the 

County to borrow the amount of $ ____ and in evidence thereof to issue alternate bonds, 

being general obligation bonds payable from, together with the Prior Bonds, (i) passenger facility 

charges imposed by the County pursuant to the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 

1990, as supplemented and amended, or substitute charges, fees or taxes therefor as may be 

imposed by the County or the federal government in the future; (ii) grants related to the Airport 

received from the federal government; (iii) revenues derived from the operation of the Airport 

and related facilities; and (iv) collections distributed to the County from the I ncorne Tax Act of 

the State of Illinois, as supplemented and amended, or substitute taxes therefore as provided for 

in the future (collectively, the "Pledged Revenues"); and 

-2-



WHEREAS, the Refunding constitutes a lawful corporate purpose within the meaning of 

the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board, on the 30th day of March, 2015. adopted an ordinance (the 

"Authorizing Ordinance") authorizing the issuance of alternate bonds, being general obligation 

bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues, as provided by the Act, in an amount not to exceed 

$39,820,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Authorizing Ordinance, together with a notice in the statutory form (the 

"Notice"), was published in the Belleville News-Democrat, the same being a newspaper of 

general circulation in the County, and an affidavit evidencing the publication of the Authorizing 

Ordinance and the Notice has heretofore been presented to the County Board and made a part of 

the permanent records of the County Board; and 

WHEREAS, more than thirty (30) days have expired since the date of publication of the 

Authorizing Ordinance and Notice, and no petition with the requisite number of valid signatures 

thereon has been filed with the County Clerk requesting that the question of the issuance of the 

alternate bonds be submitted to referendum; and 

WHEREAS, i t  is necessary and in the best interests of the County that alternate bonds in 

the amount of$ _____ of said authorized sum be issued (the ''Bonds''); and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds to be issued will be payable from the Pledged Revenues and the 

Pledged Taxes (as hereinafter defined); and 

WHEREAS, the County Board hereby determines that the Pledged Revenues will provide 

in each year an amount not less than 1.25 times debt service of the Bonds to be issued, and the 

Prior Bonds not being refunded, the same being the only obligations of the County payable from 

the Pledged Revenues; and 

-3-



WHEREAS, such determination is supported by the mosl recent audit of the County (the 

"Audit''), which Audit has been presented to the County Board and is now on file with the 

County Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 1999 Bonds were issued pursuant to and in accordance with an 

ordinance adopted by the Board on the 24th day of May, 1999 (the ''Series 1999 Bond 

Ordinance "): and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2000 Bonds were issued pursuant to and in accordance with an 

ordinance adopted by the Board on the 26th day of May, 2009 (the "Series 2009 Bond 

Ordinance"); 

WHEREAS, the Series 1999 Alternate Bond Ordinance and the Series 2009 Bond 

Ordinance permit the issuance of additional alternate bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues 

on a parity with the Prior Bonds provided that the requirements of the Act for the issuance of 

alternate bonds payable from the Pledged Revenues shall have been met; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds proposed to be issued will be payable on a parity with the Prior 

bonds with respect to the Pledged Revenues, and will also be payable from the Pledged Taxes; 

and 

WHEREAS, in order to properly provide for the payment of the Refunded Bonds, it will be 

necessary to deposit the proceeds of the Bonds and funds of the County on hand and legally 

available for such purpose in trust with the Escrow Agent (as hereinafter defined) to be invested 

by the Escrow Agent, on behalf of the County, in direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed 

by the full faith and credit of the United States of America (the "Government Securities"), the 

principal of and interest on which will be used to pay principal of and interest on the Refunded 

Bonds when due or upon redemption prior to maturity, pursuant to and in accordance with the 

Escrow Agreement: 

-4-



Now, THEREFORE. Be h Ordained by the County Board of The County of St. Clair, 

I l linois, as follows: 

Section 1. DefinUions. The following words and terms used in this ordinance shall 

have the following meanings unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different 

meaning is intended: 

A. The following words and terms at'e as defined in the preambles: 

Act 
Airpot1 
Audit 
Authorizing Ordinance 
Board 
Bonds 
Counties Code 
County 
County Board 
Escrow Agreement 
Government Securities 
Notice 
Prior Bonds 
Pledged Revenues 
Refunded Bonds 
Refunding 
Series 1999 Alternate Bond Ordinance 
Series 1999 Bonds 
Series 2009 Alternate Bond Ordinance 
Series 2009 Bonds 

B. The following words and terms are defined as set forth. 

"Additional Bonds '' means any alternate bonds issued in the future in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act or any revenue bonds issued in the future in accordance 

with the applicable laws of the State on a parity with and sharing ratably and equally in 

all or any pottion of the Pledged Revenues with the Bonds and the Outstanding Alternate 

Bonds. 

"Airport" means the Scott Joint Use Airport and related facilities. 

-5-



"Airport Project" or "Project" means the acquisition, construction and equipping 

of the Airport, including, but not limited to, the acquisition and construction of runways, 

taxiways, a terminal, hangars, access roads, parking facilities. wetlands mitigation and 

related facilities and the acquisition of land therefor. 

"Airport Project Bond Fund" means the Airport Project Bond Fund heretofore 

established and described in Section 12 hereof. 

"Airport Revenues" means net revenues derived from tJ1e operation of the 

Airport. 

"Authorized Officer 1
' means the Administrator or the Finance Director of the 

County or any other individual appointed by the Board to act as an authorized officer 

hereunder. 

"Bond Register" means the books of the County kept by the Bond Registrar to 

evidence the registration and transfer of the Bonds. 

"Bond Registrar" means Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, Chicago, lllinois. 

'' Bond Year" means the J 2-month period commencing on January 1 of each year 

and ending on the following December 31. 

"Chairman " means the Chairman of the Board. 

"Code" means the lntemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"County Clerk" means the County Clerk of the County and ex-officio Clerk of 

the Board. 

"County Treasurer" means tJ1e County Treasurer of the County. 

"Escrow Agent" means the bank or trust company serving as the Bond Registrar 

hereunder. 

-6-



"Fiscal Year"  means that twelve-calendar month period beginning January I of 

any calendar year and ending on the last day of December of the same calendar year, 

"Grant Revenues'' means grants received from lhe federal government with 

respect to the Airport, the Bonds or the Project. 

"Income Taxes" means collections distributed to the County pursuant to the 

Income Tax Act of lhe State of Ulinois, as suppJemenled and amended, or substitute taxes 

therefore as provided for in the future. 

"Insurer" means the insurer, if any, of all or of a portion of the Bonds. 

"Ordinance '' means this Ordinance as originally adopted and as the same may 

from time to time be amended or supplemented in accordance with the terms hereof. 

"Outstanding Alternate Bonds" means those Prior Bonds not being refunded at 

this time and the Bonds. 

"Outstanding Bonds" means the Bonds which are outstanding and unpaid; 

provided that such term shall not include Bonds that have matured and for which monies 

are on deposit with proper paying agents or are otherwise sufficiently available to pay all 

principal thereof and interest thereon. 

"Passenger Facility Charges 1
' means charges imposed by the County pursuant to 

the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1 990, as supplemented and amended, 

or substitute charges, fees or taxes therefor as may be imposed by the County or federal 

government in the future. 

"Pledged Moneys " means Pledged Revenues and Pledged Taxes as both are 

defined herein. 

"Pledged Revenues" means the Airport Revenues, the Grant Revenues, the 

Passenger Facility Charges and lhe Income Taxes. 

-7-



''Pledged Taxes '' means the ad valorem taxes levied against all of the taxable 

property in the County without limitation as to rate or amount under this Ordinance and 

pledged by the County as security for the Bonds. 

''State" means the State of Illinois. 

Section 2. Incorporation of Preambles. The Board hereby finds that all of the recitals 

contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are full, true and correct and does incorporate them 

into this Ordinance by this reference. 

Section 3. Determination To Issue Bonds. It is necessary and in the best interests of 

the County to refund the Refunded Bonds, and that the Bonds he issued by the County for such 

purpose and for the purpose of paying the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

Section 4. Bond Details. There be borrowed on the credit of and for and on 

behalf of the County the sum of $ ___ for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds and 

for paying costs associated therewith; and that the Bonds shall be issued to said amount and 

designated as a "Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 

Series 2015. '' The Bonds shall be dated the date of their issuance, and shall also bear the date of 

authentication, shall be in fully registered fonn, shall be in denominations of $5,000 each or 

authorized integral multiples thereof (but no single Bond shall represent installments of principal 

maturing on more than one date), and shall be numbered I and upward. The Bonds shall become 

due and payable serially (subject to option of prior redemption as hereinafter set forth) on 

October l of the years, in the amounts and bearing interest at the rates per annum as follows: 

YEAR OF MATURITY 

2015 
2030 
203 1 
2032 

2033 
2034 

PRINCIPAL A MOUNT 

$ 

-8-

RATE OF INTEREST 

% 



2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 
2042 
2043 
2044 

The Bonds shall bear interest from the later of its date or from the most recent interest 

payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, tullil the principal amount of 

such Bond is paid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon the basis of a 360-day year 

consisting of twelve 30-day months) being payable on April 1 and October 1 of each year, 

commencing on October I ,  2015. Interest on each Bond shall be paid by check or draft of the 

Bond Registrar, payable upon presentation in lawful money of the United States of America, to 

the pei:son in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the 15th day of the 

month next preceding the interest payment date. The principal of and premium, if any, on the 

Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the principal 

corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar. 

Section 5. Execution; Authentication. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the 

County with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman of the County Board and attested 

with the manual or facsimile signature of the County Clerk and shall have impressed or 

imprinted thereon the corporate seal of the County. In case any officer whose signature shall 

appear on any Bond shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bond, such 

signature shaH nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such officer 

had remained in office until delivery. 

All Bonds shall have thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form 

hereinafter set forth duly executed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent of the Counry 

-9-



and showing the date of authentication. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any pu111ose or 

be entitled to any security or benefit under this Ordinance unless and until such certificate of 

authentication shall have been duly executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature, and 

such certificate of authentication upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such 

Bond has been authenticated and delivered under this Ordinance. The certificate of 

authentication on any Bond shat I be deemed to have been executed by it if signed by an 

authorized officer of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign 

the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 6. Registration of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners. (a) General. The 

County shall cause the Bond Register to be kept at the principal corporate ttust office of the 

Bond Registrar, which is hereby constituted and appointed the registrar of the County for the 

Bonds. The County is authorized to prepare, and the Bond Registrar or such other agent as the 

County may designate shall keep custody of, multiple Bond blanks executed by the County for 

use in the transfer and exchange of Bonds. 

Any Bond may be transferred or exchanged, but only in the manner. subject to the 

limitations, and upon payment of the charges as set forth in this Ordinance. Upon surrender for 

transfer or exchange of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, 

duly endorsed by or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or exchange 

in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or an 

attorney for such owner duly authorized in writing, the County shall execute and the Bond 

Registrar shal I authenticate, date and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees or, in the 

case of an exchange, the registered owner, a new fully registered Bond or Bonds of like tenor, of 

the same matur,ity, bearing the same interest rate, of authorized denominations, for a like 

aggregate principal amount 

-10-



The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the 

period from the close of business on the l5th day of the calendar month preceding an interest 

payment date on the Bonds to the opening of business on such interest payment date, nor to 

transfer or exchange any Bond during the period of 1 5  days preceding the giving of notice of 

redemption of the Bonds or to transfer or exchange any Bond al I or a portion of which has been 

called for redemption. 

The execurion by the County of any fully registered Bond shall constitute full and due 

authorization of such Bond, and the Bond Registrar shall thereby be authorized to authenticate, 

date and deliver such Bond; provided that the principal amount of Bonds of each maturity 

authenticated by the Bond Registrar shall not at any one time exceed the authorized principal 

amount of Bonds for such maturity less the amount of such Bonds which have been paid. 

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as 

the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or 

interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or 

the owner's legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and 

discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

No service charge shall be made for any transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the County or 

the Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 

governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any transfer or exchange of Bonds, 

except in the case of the exchange of a Bond for the unredeemed portion of a Bond sunendered 

for redemption. 

(b) Global Book-Entry System. The Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a 

separate single fully registered Bond for each of the maturities of the Bonds as provided in 

Section 4 hereof, and the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in the Bond. Register 

-1 1-



in the name of Cede & Co., or any successor thereto ( "Cede "), as nominee of The Depository 

Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and assigns ( "DTC"). All of the 

outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede, as nominee of 

OTC, except as hereinafter provided. The Chairman of the County Board and the County Clerk 

are hereby authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the County such letters to or 

agreements with OTC and the Bond Registrar as shall be necessary to effectuate such book-entry 

system (any such letter or  agreement being referred to herein as the ''Representation Letter"). 

With respect to the Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede, as 

nominee of DTC, the County and the Bond Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to 

any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which DTC holds Bonds from time to 

time as securities depository (each such broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution being 

referred to herein as a "DTC Participant") or to any person on behalf of whom such a OTC 

Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, 

the County and the Bond Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to 

(i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede or any OTC Participant with respect to any 

ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any OTC Participant or any other person, 

other than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond Register, of any notice with 

respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC 

Participant or any other person, other than a regislered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond 

Register, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. 

The County and the Bond Registrar may treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond 

is registered in the Bond Register as the holder and absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose 

of payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to such Bond, for the purpose 

of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of 

- 12-



registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The Bond 

Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon 

the order of the respective registered owners of the Bonds, as shown in the Bond Register, or 

their respective anorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and 

effective to fully satisfy and discharge the County's  obligations with respect to payment of 

principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

No person other than a registered owner of a Bond as shown in the Bond Register, shall receive a 

Bond certificate evidencing the obligation of the County to make payments of principal, 

premium, if any, and interest with respect to any Bond. Upon delivery by DTC to the Bond 

Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in 

place of Cede, the name "Cede" in this ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

In the event that (i) the County determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its 

responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (ii) the agreement among the 

County, the Bond Registrar and DTC evidenced by the Representation Letter shall be terminated 

for any reason or (iii) the County determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial 

owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the County shall notify DTC 

and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of Bond certificates and the Bonds shall 

no longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede, as nominee 

of DTC. At the time, the County may determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name 

of and deposited with such other depository operating a global book-entry system, as may be 

acceptable to the County, or such depository's agent or designee, and if the County does not 

selecl such alternate global book-entry system, then the Bonds may be registered in whatever 

name or names registered owners of Bonds transfe1Ting or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 6(a) hereof. 

-13-



Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any 

Bond is registered in the name of Cede, as nominee of OTC, all payments with respect to 

principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such 

Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

Section 7. Redemption. (a) Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall be subject to 

redemption prior to maturity at the option of the County as a whole, or in part in integral 

multiples of $5,000 in any order of their maturity as determined by the District (less than all of 

the Bonds of a single maturity to be selected by the Bond Registrar), on October 1. 20_, and on 

any date thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrned interest to the redemption date. 

(b) Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds due on October l .  20_, are subject to 

mandatory redemption, in integral multiples of .$5,000 selected by lot by the Bond Registrar, at a 

redemption price of par plus accrned interest to the redemption date, on October l of the years 

and in the principal amounts as follows: 

YEAR 

20_ 
20_ 
20_ 

PR!NCfPAL AMOUNT 

$ 

The principal amounts of Bonds to be mandatorily redeemed in each year may be reduced 

through the earlier optional redemption thereof, with any partial optional redemptions of such 

Bonds credited against future sinking fund requirements in such order of the mandatory 

redemption dates as the Board may determine. In addition, on or prior to the 60th day preceding 

any mandatory redemption date, the Bond Registrar may, and if directed by the Board shall, 

purchase Bonds required to be retired on such mandatory redemption date. Any such Bonds so 

purchased shall be cancelled and the principal amount thereof shall be credited against the 

sinking fund payment required on such next mandatory redemption date. 

- J  4-



(c) General. The Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 and 

integral multiples thereof. The County shall, at least forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption 

date (unless a shorter time period shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar) notify the Bond 

Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal amount and maturity or maturities of 

Bonds to be redeemed. For purposes of any redemption of less than all of the outstanding Bonds 

of a single maturity, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected 

by lot by the Bond Registrar from the Bonds of such maturity by such method of lottery as the 

Bond Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate; provided that such lottery shall provide for the 

selection for redemption of Bonds or portions thereof so chat any $5,000 Bond or $5,000 portion 

of a Bond shall be as likely to be called for redemption as any other such $5,000 Bond or $5,000 

portion. The Bond Registrar shall make such selection upon the earlier of the irrevocable deposit 

of funds with an escrow agent sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds to be 

redeemed or the time of the giving of official notice of redemption. 

The Bond Registrar shall promptly notify the County in writing of the Bonds or portions 

of Bonds selected for redemption and, in the case of any Bond selected for partial redemption, 

the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. 

Section 8. Redemplion Proced.ure. Unless waived by any holder of Bonds to be 

redeemed, notice of the call for any such redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar on 

behalf of the CoW1ty by mailing the redemption notice by first class mail at least thirty (30) days 

and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner 

of the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register 01
1 at such other 

address as is furnished in writing by such registered owner to the Bond Registrar. 

All notices of redemption shall state: 

( l )  the redemption date, 

-15-



(2) the redemption pricel 

(3) if less than all outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, 
in the case of partial redemption1 the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, 

( 4) that on the redemption date the redemption price wi II become due and 
payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that interest 
thereon shall cease to accrne from and after said date. 

(5) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the 
redemption price, which place of payment shall be the principal corporate trust office of 
the Bond Registrar, and 

(6) such other information then required by custom, practice or industry 
standard. 

Unless moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed shall 

have· been received by the Bond Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such 

notice may, at the option of the County, state that said redemption shall be conditional upon the 

receipt of such moneys by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If 

such moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the County shall not 

redeem such Bonds, and the Bond Registrar shall give notice, in the same manner in which the 

notice of redemption shall have been given, that such moneys were not so received and that such 

Bonds will not be redeemed. Otherwise, prior to any redemption date, the County shall deposit 

with the Bond Registrar an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the 

Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed on that date. 

Subject to the provisions for a conditional redemption described above, notice of 

redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed 

shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, 

and from and after such date (unless the County shall default in the payment of the redemption 

price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear in1erest. Upon surrender of such 

Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Bond 

- 16-



Registrar at the redemption price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date 

shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial 

redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the registered holder a new Bond or Bonds 

of the same maturity in the amouot of the unpaid principal. 

If any Bond or portion of Bond called for redemption shall not be so paid upon surrender 

thereof for redemption, the principal shall, until paid, bear interest from the redemption date at 

the rate borne by the Bond or portion of Bond so called for redemption. All Bonds which have 

been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar and shall not be reissued. 

Section 9. Form of Bond. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form hereinafter set 

forth; provided that if the text of the Bonds is to be printed in its entirety on the front side of the 

Bonds, then the second paragraph on the front side and the legend ''See Reverse Side for 

Additional Provisions" shall be omitted and the text of the paragraphs set forth for the reverse 

s ide, as appropriate, shall be inserted immediately after the firs� paragraph. 

- 1 7-



[Form of Bond - Front Side] 
REGLSTERED 
No. _ _  _ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

ST A TE OF ILLINOIS 

THE COUNTY OF ST. CLAtR. 

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND 

(AL TERN ATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2015 

See Reverse Side for 
Additional Provisions 

fnterest Maturity 
Rate: _ _ % Date: October l ,  20_ 

Registered Owner: CEDE & Co. 

Principal Amount: 

Dated 
Date: _____ ., 2015 

REGISTERED 
$ __ _ 

CUSIP __ 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that The County of St. Clair, Illinois, a unit of 

local government and political subdivision of the State of Illinois (the ,; County''), hereby 

acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the Registered Owner 

identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, on the Maturity Date identified 

above, the Principal Amount identified above and to pay interest (computed on the basis of a 

360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) on such Principal Amount from the Dated 

Date of this Bond identified above or from the most recent interest payment date to which 

interest has been paid or duly provided for at the Interest Rate per annum identified above, such 

interest to be payable on _____ , 20_, and semiannually thereafter on April 1 and 

October l of each year until the Principal Amount is paid or duly provided for. The principal of 

and premium, if any, on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America 

upon presentation a t  the. principal corporate trust office of Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, 

- 1 8-



Chicago, lll inois, as paying agent and bond registrar (the "Bond Registrar"). Payment of 

interest shall be made to the Registered Owner hereof as appearing on the Bond Register of the 

County maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day of the month 

next preceding the interest payment date and shall be paid by check or draft of the Bond 

Registrar, payable upon presentation in lawful money of the United States of America, mailed to 

the address of such Registered Owner as i t  appears on such registration books or at such other 

address furnished in writing by such Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar or, at the request of 

a Registered Owner of more than $1,000,000 total principal amount of the Bonds, by wire 

transfer pursuant to the Registered Owner's instmctions. 

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Bond set forth on the reverse 

hereof, and such further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at 

this place. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be done 

precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been done and have happened and have been 

perfonned in regular and due form of law; that the indebtedness of the County, including the 

issue of Bonds of which this is one, does not exceed any limitation imposed by law; that 

provision has been made for the collection of the Pledged Taxes and the segregation of the 

Pledged Moneys to pay the interest hereon as it falls due and also to pay and discharge the 

principal hereof at maturity; and that the County hereby covenants and agrees that it will 

properly account for the Pledged Moneys and will comply with all the covenants of and maintain 

the funds and accounts as provided by the Bond Ordinance. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obi igatory for any purpose until the certificate of 

authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Bond Registrar. 

-19-



IN  \V JTNESs WJI FREOF, The County of SL C la ir ,  Hl inoi ,; ,  by its County Board, bas cu1•;cd 

this  Bond to be executed by its Chairman of the County B oard and attested by its County C lerk 

and its corporate seal impressed or reproduced hereon, all as appearing hereon and as of the 

Dated Date ident ified above . 

Attest : 

County C lerk 

(SEAL) 

Date elf Authcnt irnt ion :  

CERTIFICATE 

OF 

AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one \lf the Bonds 
described in the within-mentioned Bond 
Ordinance and i s  one of the Taxable General 
Obl igation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 20 1 5 , of The County 
of SL Clair, Hlirmis . 

AMi\LGAMATED B .�'\iK OF CHICAGO, 

as Bond Registrar 

By _____________ _ 
Authorized Officer 

-20-

Chairn ian of the CounLy Board 

Bond Registrar and Paying Agent :  
Amalgamated B ank of Chicago, 
Chicago, I i l inois 



[Form of Bond - Reverse S ide] 

THE COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR, ILLINOIS 

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND 

(AL TERNA TE REVENUE SOURCE), SERJES 2015 

This bond and the bonds of the series of which it forms a part ( "Bond" and "Bonds " 

respectively) are of an authorized issue of ___________ Dollars ($ _____ ) 

of l ike dated date and tenor except as to maturity, rate of interest and privi lege of redemption and 

are issued pursuant to the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the State of Il l inois, as 

amended (the "Act"), and the Counties Code, as amended (the "Code "), for the purpose of 

refunding bonds heretofore issued by the County to continue to refund bonds issued to pay the 

costs of acquiring, constructing and equipping the Scott Joint Use Airport (the "Project ") in and 

for the County (the "Airport "). The Bonds are issued pursuant to Ordinance No. __ _ 

adopted by the County Board of the County (the "County Board") on the 26th day of May, 20 1 5  

(the "Bond Ordinance "), to which reference is hereby expressly made for further definitions and 

terms and to al l  the provisions of which the Registered Owner by the acceptance of this Bond 

assents. This Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any 

constitutional or statutory provision or l imitation, unless the Pledged Taxes shall have been 

extended pursuant to the general ob l igation ful l  faith and credit promise supporting the Bonds, in 

which case the amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall be included in the computation of 

indebtedness, of the County for purposes of all statutory provis ions or l imitations unti l  such time 

as an aud it of the County shall show that the Bonds have been paid from the Pledged Revenues 

for a complete Fiscal Year. 

The Bonds are payable ratably and equally from (i)(a) passenger facil ity charges imposed 

by the County pursuant to the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1 990, as 

-2 1 -



supplemented and amended, or substitute charges, fees or taxes therefor as may be imposed by 

the County or the federal government in the future, (b) grants received from the federnl 

government with respect to the Airport, the Bonds or the Project, (c) net revenues derived from 

the operation of the Airport, and (d) collections distributed to the County pursuant to the Income 

Tax Act of the State of Illinois, as supplemented and amended, or substitute taxes therefore as 

provided for in the future (collectively, the "Pledged Revenues"), and (ii) ad valorem taxes 

levied against all of the taxable property in the County without limitation as co rate or amount 

(the "Pledged Taxes") (the Pledged Revenues and the Pledged Taxes being collectively referred 

to as the ''Pledged Moneys''), all in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Code. The 

Bonds are issued on a parity with the Outstanding Alternate Bonds to the extent the Outstanding 

Alternate Bonds and the Bonds are payable from the Pledged Revenues. Additional parity and 

subordinate obligations payable from any portion or all of the Pledged Revenues are permitted to 

be issued in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth in the Bond Ordinance. For the 

prompt payment of this Bond, both principal and interest at maturity, the full faith, credit and 

resources of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged. 

Under the Act and the Bond Ordinance, the Pledged Moneys shall be deposited into the 

Airport Project Bond Fund, as created by the Bond Ordinance, Moneys on deposit in said Fund 

shall be used first and are pledged for paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Any Bond may be transferred or exchanged, but only in the manner, subject to the 

limitations, and upon payment of the charges as set forth in the Bond Ordinance. Upon surrender 

for transfer or exchange of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar 

in Chicago, Illinois, duly endorsed by or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of 

transfer or exchange in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly executed by the 

Registered Owner or an attorney for such Registered Owher duly authorized in writing, the 

-22-



County shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, date and deliver in the. name of 

the transferee or transferees or, in the case of an exchange, the Registered Owner, a new fully 

registered Bond or Bonds of like tenor, of the same maturity, bearing the same interest rate, of 

authorized denominations, for a like aggregate principal amount. 

The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the 

period from the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding an interest 

payment date on the Bonds to the opening of business on such interest payment date nor to 

transfer or exchange any Bond during the period of 15 days preceding the giving of notice of 

redemption of Bonds or to transfer or exchange any Bond all or a portion of which has been 

called for redemption. 

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the County from 

any available funds, on and after October 1, 20_, in whole at any time or in part on any interest 

payment date, and if in part, from such maturity or maturities as the County may determine, and 

if less than an entire maturity, in integral multiples of $5,000, selected by lot by the Bond 

Registrar. at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption as 

follows: 

The Bonds maturing on October l ,  20_, are subject to mandatory redemption, in integral 

multiples of $5,000 selected by lot by the Bond Registrar, at a redemption price of par plus 

accrued interest to the redemption date, on October I . of the years and in the principal amounts as 

follows: 

-23-



YEAR 

20_ 
20_ 
20_ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$ 

The Bonds maturing on October I ,  20_, are subject to mandatory redemption, in integral 

multiples of $5,000 selected by lot by the Bond Registrar, at a redemption price of par plus 

accrued interest to the redemption date, on October 1 of the years and in the principal amounts as 

follows: 

YEAR 

20_ 
20_ 
20_ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

$ 

Unless waived by the Registered Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, notice of any such 

redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the County by mailing the 

redemption notice by first class mail not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) 

days prior to the date fixed for redemption to each Registered Owner of the Bond or Bonds to be 

redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register or at such other address as is furnished ln 

writing by such Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar. When so called for redemption, this 

Bond will cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date, provided funds for redemption 

are on deposit at the place of payment at that time, and shall not be deemed to be outstanding. 

The County and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the Registered Owner hereof as 

the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal 

hereof, premium, if any, and interest due hereon and for all other purposes. and neither the 

County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

-24-

9-- c-3 



AsSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto _______ _  _ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint __________ _ 

________ ____ ___ _ ___ __ ___ as attorney to transfer the said 

Bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: 

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name of che Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every particular, without 
alteration or enlargement or any change whatever. 

Section JO. Sale of the Bonds. The Bonds hereby authorized shall be executed as in this 

Ordinance provided as soon after the passage hereof as may be, and thereupon be deposited with 

the Treasure, and after authentication by the Bond Registrar, be by said Treasurer delivered to 

Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., Chicago, Ulinois (the "Purchaser"), upon receipt of the purchase price 

therefor, the same being $ ____ _,· the contract for the sale of the Bonds heretofore entered 

into (the 1
' Purchase Contract '') is in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed, it being 

hereby found and determined that the Bonds have been sold at such price and bear interest at 

such rates that neither the true interest cost (yield) nor the net interest rate received upon such 

sale exceed the maximum rate otherwise authorized by Illinois law and that the Purchase 

Contract is in the best interests of the County and that no person holding any office of the 

County, either by election or appointment, is in any manner financially interested directly in his 

or her own name or indirectly in the name of any other person, association, trust or corporation, 

in the Purchase Contract. 

-25-



The use by the Purchaser of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds is 

hereby ratified, approved and confirmed, The Board hereby authorizes the preparation and 

circulation of another Preliminary Official Slatement, if neoessary, and a final Official Statement 

in substantially the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement incorporating such changes 

therein as may be necessary to reflect the pricing of the Bonds. The Chairman of the County 

Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver said final Official Statement. 

Section 11.  Treatment of Bonds As Debi. The Bonds shall be payable from the Pledged 

Moneys as provided herein and shall not constitute an indebtedness of the County within the 

meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation, unless the Pledged Taxes shall have been 

extended pursuant to the general obligation, full faith and credit promise supporting the Bonds, 

as detailed in Section 14 herein, in which case the amount of the Outstanding Bonds shall be 

included in  the computation of indebtedness of the County for purposes of all statutory 

provisions or limitations until such time as an audit of the County shall show that the Bonds have 

been paid from the Pledged Revenues for a complete Fiscal Year, in accordance with the Act. 

Section 12. Bond Fund; Accounts. There is hereby expressly continued a special fund 

of the County, which fund is and shall be held separate and apart from all other funds and 

accounts of rhe County and is and shall be known as the ''Airport Project Bond Fund. " All of 

the Pledged Moneys designated to pay the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds 

shall be set aside and deposited by the County Treasurer into the Airport Project Bond Fund in 

accordance with the terms hereof, which is a trust fund established for the purpose of carrying 

out the covenants, terms and conditions imposed upon the County by this Ordinance and the 

Outstanding Alternate Bond Ordinances. The Outstanding Bonds are secured by a pledge of all 

of the moneys on deposit in the Airport Project Bond Fund, and such pledge is irrevocable until 

the obligations of the County are discharged under this Ordinance. 

-26-



The Pledged Moneys are to be paid to the County Treasurer by the officers who collect or 

receive the Pledged Moneys. The County Treasurer shall transfer and deposit the Pledged 

Moneys into the Airport Project Bond Fund in accordance with the te1ms of this Ordinance and 

the Outstanding Alternate Bond Ordinances. The moneys on deposit in  the Airport Project Bond 

Fund shall be used by the County solely and only for the purpose of canying out the terms and 

conditions of this Ordinance and the Outstanding Alternate Bond Ordinance and shall be 

deposited as hereinafter provided to the separate accounts hereby created within the Airport 

Project Bond Fund to be known as the ''Pledged Revenues Account" and the "Pledged Taxes 

Accoum ". 

Pledged Revenues Account. On the date of the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the 

County Treasurer shall deposit into the Pledged Revenues Account in the Airport Project Bond 

Fund the accrued interest received upon the delivery of the Bonds. Furthermore, in each 

calendar year, the County Treasurer shall transfer and deposit into the Pledged Revenues 

Account on such dates prescribed by an Authorized Officer such amount of the Pledged 

Revenues as may be necessary until there is accumulated and held, in cash and investments, in 

such Pledged Revenues Account in that calendar year and before the abatement of the Pledged 

Taxes levied for such calendar year (and for extension and collection in the following calendar 

year), an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds and 

Outstanding Alternate Bonds due up to and including the end of the Bond Year commencing in 

the next succeeding calendar year. The amount of Airport Revenues, Grant Revenues, Passenger 

Facility Charges and Income Taxes to be deposited in the Pledged Revenues Account shall 

c01Tespond to the methods of financing set forth in the financial plan which shall be approved 

each year by the Board; provided, however, that it no such financial plan is approved in any year, 

or no directions are issued by any Authorized Officer with respect Lo the transfers and deposits 

-27-



ref erred to herein. the County Treasurer shall deposit all the Pledged Revenues into the Pledged 

Revenues Account until the amount necessary to pay debt service on the Outstanding Bonds and 

Outstanding Alternate Bonds referred to above is on deposit therein. 

Credits to the Pledged Revenues Account may be suspended in any calendar year at such 

time as there shall be a sufficient sum, held in cash and investments, in said Account to meet the 

principal and interest requirements hereinabove described with respect to the abatement of taxes, 

but such credits shall again be resumed at the beginning of the next calendar year. 

It is hereby expressly stated that the Bonds are being issued on a parity with the 

Outstanding Alternate Bonds to the extent the Bonds and the Outstanding Alternate Bonds are 

payable from the Pledged Revenues. 

Pledged Taxes Account. The County Treasurer shaJI deposit the Pledged Taxes to the 

credit of the Pledged Taxes Account, and the Pledged Taxes are irrevocably pledged and shall be 

used only for the purpose of the paying principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds. 

In the event that there shall be moneys to the credit of both the Pledged Revenues 

Account and the Pledged Taxes Account on any interest payment date for the Outstanding 

Bonds, the Pledged Taxes Account shall be fully depleted before moneys to the credit of the 

Pledged Revenues Account sha.11 be used to pay principal of or interest on the Outstanding 

Bonds, 

The moneys on deposit in the Airport Project Bond Fund and the various accounts therein 

shall be invested from time to time in such investments as may be authorized under the laws of 

the State of Illinois. Investments in the various accounts shall mature or be subject to 

redemption at the option of the County Treasurer prior to the time when needed. Any such 

investments shall be sold from time to time by the County Treasurer as moneys may be needed 

for the purposes for which the Airport Project Bond Fund and such accounts have been created. 

-28-



In addition, the County Treasurer shall sell such i nvestments when necessary to remedy any 

deficiency in the Airport Project Bond Fund or such accounts created therein.  Any investment 

earnings shall be attributed to the account within the Airport Project Bond Fund for which the 

investment was made. All uninvested money on hand shall be deposited  in banks selected as 

depositories by the Board from time to time so as to be available when needed. 

Notwithstand ing the foregoing, moneys in any of the various accounts shall be invested 

by the County Treasurer, if necessary, ( i) in obl igations the interest on which is tax-exempt under 

the provisions of Section 103 of the Code as long as such obl igations are l awful investments for 

public funds under the laws of the State, and ( i i )  in investments restricted as to y ield, which 

investments may be in United S tates Treasury Obl igations-State and Local Government Series, 

if available, and to such end the County Treasurer shall refer to any investment restrictions 

covenanted by the County or any officer thereof as part of the transcript of proceedings for the 

issuance of the Bonds, and to appropriate opinions of counsel. 

Al l  moneys remaining in the Airport Project Bond Fund, after crediting the required 

amounts to the respective accounts hereinabove provide for and after making up any deficiency 

in said accounts , may be used for any lawful corporate purpose of the County . 

Section 13. Use of Bond Proceeds; Appropriation of Other Funds. The proceeds 

derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be used as follows: 

(a) Accrued interest received by the County upon the sale of the Bonds shall be 

deposi ted into the Pledged Revenues Account and be used to pay first interest due on the 

Bonds. 

(b) The remaining proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds, together with 

such additional amounts as may be necessary from the general funds of the County, shall 

be used e ither for payment of expenses of issuing the Bonds or be deposited in escrow 

-29-



pursuant to the Escrow Agreement to be entered into between the County and the Escrow 

Agent, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof by 

this reference, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the officers of the 

County executing the Escrow Agreement, such execution to constitute evidence of the 

approval of such changes, for the purpose of paying the principal of, premium and 

interest on the Refunded Bonds as the Refunded Bonds are redeemed. The Board 

approves the form, terms and provisions of the Escrow Agreement and directs the 

Chairman and the County Clerk to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Escrow Agreement 

in the name and on behalf of the County. Said amount in the escrow shall be used to 

purchase Government Securities to provide for the payment of the principal of, premium 

and interest payable on the Refunded Bonds on their redemption date. The Escrow 

Agent, Cityview Capital Securities. LLC and the Purchaser are each hereby authorized to 

act as agent for the County in the purchase of the Government Securities. The expenses 

of issuing the Bonds may be paid from Bond proceeds by the Purchaser on behalf of the 

County at closing. 

Section 14. Pledged Taxes; Tax levy, For the purpose of providing additional funds to 

pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, and as provided in Section 1 5  of the Act, there is 

hereby levied upon all of the taxable property within the County, in the years for which any 

Bonds remain unpaid (other than as set forth in Section 16 hereot). a direct annual tax for each of 

the years white the Bonds remain unpaid, in amounts sufficient for that purpose, and there be and 

there hereby is levied upon all of the taxable property in the County the following direct annual 

taxes (the "Pledged Taxes"); 

-30-



FOR THE YEAR 

2015 

20 16 
20l7 
20 1 8  
20 1 9  
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
203 1 
2032 
2033 
2034 
2035 
2036 
2037 
2038 
2039 
2040 
2041 
2042 
2043 

A TAX SUFFICIENT TO PRODUCE THE SUM OP: 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

for principal and interest up to and including 
April l ,  2017-
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 
for principal and interest 

Following the extension of any Pledged Taxes, interest or principal coming due at any 

time when there are insufficient funds on hand from the Pledged Taxes to pay the same shall be 

paid promptly when due from current funds on hand in advance of the collection of the Pledged 

Taxes herein levied; and when the Pledged Taxes shall have been collected, reimbursement shall 

be made to said funds in the amount so advanced. 

To the extent that the taxes levied above exceed the amount necessary to pay debt service 

on the Bonds, the County Treasurer is hereby authorized to direct the abatement of such taxes to 

-3 1 -



the extent of the excess of such levy in each year over the amount of debt service payable on the 

Bonds in the year in which such taxes are col lectable. Proper notice of such abatement shall be 

filed with the County Clerk in a timely manner to effect such abatement. 

Section 15. Filing with County Clerk. After this Ordinance becomes effective, a copy 

hereof, certified by the County Clerk, shal l be filed with the County Clerk, as the tax extension 

officer in and for the County. The County Clerk shall in and for each of the years required, 

ascertain the rate percent required to produce the Pledged Taxes hereinbefore provided to be 

levied in each of said years ; and the County Clerk shal l  extend the same for collection on the tax 

books in connection with other taxes levied in said years in and by the County for general 

corporate purposes of the County; and the County Clerk, or other appropriate officer or designee, 

shall remit the Pledged Taxes for deposit in the Bond Fund, as described in Section 12, and in 

said years the Pledged Taxes shal l  be levied and col lected by and for and on behalf of the County 

in l ike manner as taxes for general corporate purposes of the County for said years are levied and 

collected, and in addition to and in excess of all other taxes . 

Section 16. Abatement of Pledged Taxes. Whenever the Pledged Revenues shall have 

been determined by the County Treasurer to provide in any calendar year an amount not less than 

1 .25 times debt service of al l Outstanding Bonds in the next succeeding Bond Year and 

whenever the Pledged Revenues have been deposited in the Airport Project Bond Fund in an 

amount sufficient to pay debt service on al l  Outstanding Bonds due up to and including the end 

of the Bond Year commencing in the next succeeding calendar year, the County Treasurer shall ,  

prior to the time the Pledged Taxes levied for such calendar year are extended, direct the 

abatement of the Pledged Taxes ,  and proper notification of such abatement shall be filed with the 

County Clerk in a timely manner to effect such abatement. 

-32-



The County wi l l  not levy a d irect annual tax to pay debt service on the B onds for levy 

year 20 1 4. Interest on the B onds due up to and includ ing April 1 ,  20 16 ,  wil l  be payable from 

Pledged Revenues . 

Section 17. Certificate of Reduction of Taxes. The Chairman of the County Board and 

County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of the County Board and the County Treasurer who receives 

the taxes of the County be and the same are hereby directed to prepare and file with the County 

Clerk of the County a Certificate of Reduction of Taxes Heretofore Levied for the Payment of 

Bonds showing the Refunded B onds and directing the abatement of the taxes heretofore levied to 

pay the Refunded Bonds.  

No taxes heretofore levied to pay principal and interest on the Refunded Bonds have ever 

been extended. 

Section 18. General Covenants. The County covenants and agrees with the registered 

owners of the Outstanding B onds that, so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding: 

(a) The Pledged Revenues are hereby pledged to the payment of the 
Outstanding B onds as provided herein and the B oard covenants and agrees to provide for, 
col lect and apply the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Outstanding Bonds and 
Outstanding Alternate B onds as provided herein and the provision of not less than an 
additional .25 times debt service, all in accordance with Section 1 5  of the Act. 

(b) The County wil l  punctual ly pay or cause to be paid from the Airport Project 
B ond Fund the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Outstanding Alternate Bonds in 
strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds and this Ordinance on the Outstanding 
Alternate B ond Ordinance, and it wil l  faithfully observe and perform all of the 
conditions, covenants and requirements thereof. 

(c) The County wil l  pay and d ischarge, or cause to be paid and d ischarged, from 
the Airport Project B ond Fund any and all lawful claims which, if unpaid ,  might become 
a l ien or charge upon the Pledged Revenues, or any part thereof, or upon any funds in the 
hands of the B ond Registrar, or which might impair the security of the B onds.  Nothing 
herein contained shall require the County to make any such payment so long as the 
County in good faith shal l contest the validity of said claims . 

(d) The County wil l  keep, or cause to be kept, proper books of record and 
accounts, separate from all other records and accounts of the County, in which complete 

-33-



and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Airport, the Bonds, the 
Airport Project, the Pledged Revenues and the Airport Project Bond Fund. Such books of 
record and accounts shall at all times during business hours be subject to the inspection of 
the registered owners of not less than ten percent ( 1 0%) of the principal amount of the 
B onds or their representatives authorized in writing. 

(e) The County wil l  preserve and protect the security of the Bonds and the 
rights of the reg istered owners of the Bonds, and wil l  warrant and defend their rights 
against all claims and demands of all persons . From and after the sale and del ivery of 
any of the B onds by the County, the Bonds shall be incontestable by the County. 

(f) The County wil l  adopt, make, execute and del iver any and all such further 
ordinances, resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or 
proper to carry out the intention of, or to faci l itate the performance of, this Ordinance, 
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the registered owners of the Bonds of the 
rights and benefits provided in this Ordinance. 

(g) As long as any B onds are Outstanding, the County wil l  continue to deposit 
the Pledged Revenues and, if appl icable, the Pledged Taxes to the Airport Project Bond 
Fund as provided herein. The County covenants and agrees with the purchasers of the 
B onds and with the registered owners thereof that so long as any Bonds remain 
Outstanding, the County wil l  take no action or fai l  to take any action which in any way 
would adversely affect the abi l ity of the County to col lect the Pledged Moneys. The 
County and its officers wil l  comply with all present and future appl icable laws in order to 
assure that the Pledged Moneys may be collected as provided herein and deposited into 
the Airport Project B ond Fund. 

(h) Once issued, the B onds shall be and forever remain until paid or defeased 
the general obl igation of the County, for the payment of which its ful l  faith and credit are 
p ledged, and shall be payable, in addition to the Pledged Revenues, from the levy of the 
Pledged Taxes as provided in the Act. 

Section 19. Additional Bonds. The County covenants that as long as there are any 

Outstanding Bonds, it shall not issue any obl igations having a l ien on any of the Pledged 

Revenues prior to or senior in any respect whatsoever to the lien of such Outstanding Bonds on 

any such Pledged Revenues. 

The County reserves the right to issue parity Additional Bonds from time to time payable 

from any portion or all of the Pledged Revenues, and any such Additional Bonds shall share 

ratably and equal ly in such Pledged Revenues with the Outstanding B onds and Outstanding 

Alternate Bonds; provided that no Additional B onds shall be issued as alternate bonds except in 

-34-



accordance with the provisions of the Act and no Additional Bonds shall be issued as revenue 

bonds unless the coverage test set forth in Section 15(c) of the Act as set forth at the time of the 

adoption of this Ordinance is satisfied. 

The County further reserves the right to issue obligations payable from any portion or all 

of the Pledged Revenues that are subordinated and junior to all Outstanding Bonds, Outstanding 

Alternate Bonds and Additional Bonds; provided, however, that such subordination does not 

require that the payment of principal on the subordinate obligations be delayed until the 

retirement of all of the Outstanding Bonds, Outstanding Alternate Bonds and Additional Bonds. 

Any such Additional Bonds or any subordinate obligations which may be issued in 

compliance herewith shall be payable as to principal on October I and as to interest on October 1 

and/or April 1 in each year in which principal and interest come due. 

Section 20. Defeasance. Bonds which are no longer Outstanding Bonds as defined in 

this Ordinance shall cease to have any lien on or right to receive or be paid from Pledged 

Moneys and shall no longer have the benefits of any covenant for the holders or registered 

owners of Outstanding Bonds as set forth herein. 

Section 21. Call of the Refunded Bonds. In accordance with the redemption provisions 

of the Prior Bonds, the County does hereby make provision for the payment of and does hereby 

call (subject only to the delivery of the Bonds) the Refunded Bonds for redemption and payment 

prior to maturity on the date or dates set forth in the Escrow Agreement. 

Section 22. This Ordinance a Contract. The provisions of this Ordinance shall 

constitute a contract between the County and the registered owners of the Bonds, and no 

changes, additions or alterations of any kind shall be made hereto, except as herein provided. 

Section 23. Bond Registrar Covenants. If requested by the Bond Registrar, the 

Chairman of the County Board and the County Clerk are authorized to execute the Bond 

-35-



Registrar' s  standard form of agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar with respect 

to the obligations and duties of the Bond Registrar hereunder. Subject to modification by the 

express terms of any such agreement, such duties shall include the fol lowing: 

(a) to act as bond registrar, authenticating agent, paying agent and transfer agent 
as provided herein; 

(b) to maintain a l ist of Bondholders as set forth herein and to furnish such list 
to the County upon request, but otherwise to keep such list confidential to the extent 
permitted by law; 

(c) to give notice of redemption as provided herein; 

(d) to cancel and/or destroy Bonds which have been paid at maturity or upon 
earl ier redemption or submitted for exchange or transfer; 

(e) to furnish the County at least annually a certificate with respect to Bonds 
cancelled and/or destroyed; and 

(f) to furnish the County at least annually an audit confirmation of Bonds paid, 
Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the B onds. 

The County C lerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the 

Bond Registrar. 

Section 24. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. The Chairman of the County Board 

is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking under Section (b)(5) of Rule 1 5c2- 1 2  adopted by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1 934, as amended (the "Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking "). When the Continuing D isclosure Undertaking is executed and 

del ivered on behalf of the County as provided herein, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 

wil l  be b inding on the County and the officers, employees and agents of the County, and the 

officers, employees and agents of the County are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to 

carry out and comply with the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as executed. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the sole remedy for failure to comply 

-36-



with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall be the ability of the beneficial owner of any 

Bond to Seek mandamus or specific perfonnance by court order to cause the County to comply 

with its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

Section 25. Record-Keeping Policy and Post-Issuance Compliance Matters. On March 

25, 2013, the County Board adopted a record-keeping policy (the "Policy") in order to maintain 

sufficient records to demonstrate compliance with its covenants and expectations to ensure the 

appropriate federal tax status for the debt obligations of the County, the interest on which is 

excludable from ''gross income" for federal income tax purposes or which enable the County or 

the holder to receive federal tax benefits, including, but not limited to, qualified tax credit bonds 

and other specified tax credit bonds. The County Board and the County hereby reaffirm the 

Policy. 

Section 26. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision 

shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 27. Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

-37-

9- e.-.3, 



Section 28. Effective Date . Pursuant to the Act, this Ordinance shal l be effective 

immediately upon its passage and approval , without pub l ication or posting or any further act or 

requirement. 

ADOPTED by the County Board of The County of St . C lair, I l l inois, this 26th day of May , 20 1 5 .  

ATTEST: 

County Clerk and ex-officio 
Clerk of the County Board of 
The County of St .  C lair, I l l inois 

-38-

Chairman of the County Board of 
The County of St .  Clair, I l l inois 



EXHIBIT A 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 

This Escrow Agreement, dat½d as of ____ , 2015, but actually executed on the date 

witnessed hereinbelow, by and between The County of St. Clair, Illinois (the "County"), and 

Amalgamated Banlc of Chicago, a trust company organized and operating under the laws of the 

United States of America, located in Chicago. Illinois (the ''Escrow Agent"), in consideration of 

the mutual promises and agreements herein set forth: 

W I T N E S S  E T H: 

ARTlCLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

The following words and terms used in this Agreement shall have the following 

meanings unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning: 

Section 1.01. ''Agreement'' means this Agreement between the County and the Escrow 

Agent. 

Section 1.02. "Board" means the County Board of the County. 

Section 1.03. "Bond Ordinance" means Ordinance No. _ ___ adopted by the Board 

on the 26th day of May, 2015, providing for the issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 1.04. "Bonds" means the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Source), Series 2015, of the County authorized to be issued by the Bond Ordinance. 

Section 1.05. "Code'' means Section 1 48 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and all 

lawful regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Section 1.06. "County" means The County of St. Clair, Illinois. 

Section 1.07. "Escrow Account" means the tmst account established under this 

Agreement by the deposit of the Government Securities and the beginning cash. 

3785579 01 08 

2229144 



Section 1.08. "Escrow Agent'' means Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, a trust company 

organized and operating under the laws of the United States of America, located in Chicago, 

Illinois, not individually but in the capacity for the uses and purposes hereinafter mentioned, or 

any successor thereto. 

Section I. JO. "Government Securities" means the non-callable direct obligations of or 

non-callable obligations guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America as 

to principal and interest deposited hereunder as more particularly described in  Exhibit A to this 

Agreement and also including any direct obligations purchased pursuant to Section 3.02. 

Section 1.11. "Intended Government Securities" means the Government Securities 

labeled as such in Exhibit A. 

Section 1.12. "Paying Agent" means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 

National Association, St. Louis, Missouri, as successor to BNY Trust Company of Missouri, 

St. Louis1 Missouri, as bond registrar and paying agent for the Refunded Bonds. 

Section 1.13. "Refunded Bonds" means the outstanding obligations of the County as 

follows: 

(a) $333,697 30 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 1999, being a portion of the bonds outstanding from an issue in the 
original principal amount of $60,8 13,465.90, fully registered and without coupons, due 
serially on October 1 of the years and in the amounts and bearing interest at the rates as 
follows: 

YEAR OF 

MATURITY 

2016 
2017 

PRJNClPAL 

AMOUNT 

$ 1.50,762.30 
1 82,935.30 

(the ''Series 1999 Refunded Bonds") 

RATEOF 

INTEREST 

5.58% 
5.58% 

(b) $32,430,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2009, dated July 7, 2009, being a portion of the bonds outstanding from 
an issue in the original principal amount of $50, 1 05,000, fully registered and without 

-2-

http:182,935.30
http:150,762.30
http:60,813,465.90
http:333,697.30


coupons, due or subject to mandatory redemption on October 1 of the years, in the 
amounts and bearing interest at the rates per annum as fol lows : 

YEAR OF PRINCIPAL RATE OF 

MATURITY AMOUNT INTEREST 

20 1 8  $ 1 ,350,000 4 .50% 
20 1 9  1 ,535,000 5 .00% 
2020 1 ,740,000 4 .50% 
202 1 1 ,945,000 5.00% 
2022 2, 145,000 5 .00% 

2023 2,425,000 5 .25% 

2024 2,700,000 5.25% 
2025 3 ,005,000 5 .25% 

2026 3,335,000 5 .25% 

2027 3 ,690,000 5.25% 
2028 4,075 ,000 5 .25% 

2029 4,485,000 5 .00% 

(the "Series 2009 Refunded Bonds") 

Section 1 . 14. "Substitute Government Securities " means the Government Securities 

identified as such in Exhibit A-1 . 

ARTICLE II 

CREATION OF ESCROW 

Section 2.01 . The County by the Bond Ordinance has authorized the issue and delivery of 

the B onds, proceeds of which, together with certain funds of the County on hand and legally 

avail able for such purpose, are to be used to refund the Refunded Bonds by the deposit on 

demand and to purchase on behalf of the County the Government Securities. Such deposit and 

securities, together with the proceeds from the reinvestment thereof, wil l  provide all moneys 

necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds when due, at maturity or 

upon redemption prior to maturity. 

Section 2.02. The County shall deposit $ ____ from the proceeds of the Bonds, 

$ ____ from the proceeds of the Refunded B onds and $ _ _ __ from funds on hand and 



legally available for the purchase of the Government Securities and the funding a beginning cash 

escrow deposit on demand in the amount of $ _____ . The beginning deposit and the 

Government Securities are held in an irrevocable trust fund account for the County to the benefit 

of the holders of the Refunded Bonds to pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds 

when due, at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity . 

Section 2.03. The Escrow Agent and the County have each received the report of Dunbar, 

B reitweiser & Company, LLP, Certified Publ ic Accountants , B loomington, I l l inois, attached 

hereto as Exhibit B, that the principal of and income and profit to be received from the 

Government Securities, when paid at maturity, and the cash held in accordance with Section 2.02 

hereof, wil l  be sufficient, at all times pending the final payment of the Refunded Bonds when 

due, at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity as evidenced by said Report. 

Section 2.04. The Escrow Agent will purchase the Government Securities on 

____ , 20 1 5 . If the Escrow Agent is unable to purchase the Intended Government 

Securities on ____ , 20 1 5  because of a fai led delivery of al l or a portion of the Intended 

Government Securities by the sel ler, as indicated on the trade ticket for the Intended Government 

Securities (the "Seller"), then it wil l  on ____ , 20 1 5 , purchase the Substitute Government 

Securities for the same purchase price. If the Escrow Agent purchases Substitute Government 

Securities on ____ , 20 1 5, then at the request of the Sel ler of those Substitute Government 

Securities, the Escrow Agent wil l ,  but only prior to ____ , 20 1 5, accept delivery of the 

Intended Government Securities in exchange for the Substitute Government Securities, but only 

if fol lowing such exchange, the Escrow Agent wil l  hold all of the Intended Government 

Securities, or wil l  hold another portfol io for which a report of the Verification Agent (or another 

accounting firm acceptable to the Escrow Agent), establ ishes that the principal of and income 

and profit to be received from the Government Securities, when paid at maturity, and the cash 

-4-



held in accordance with Section 2.02 hereof, will be sufficient, at all times pending the final 

payment of the Refunded Bonds, to pay all interest on and all principal of the Refunded Bonds 

when due, at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity as evidenced by said Report. 

ARTICLE Ill 

COVENANTS OF ESCROW AGENT 

The Escrow Agent covenants and agrees with the County as follows; 

Section 3.01. The Escrow Agent will hold the Government Securities and all interest 

income or profit derived therefrom and all uninvested cash in an irrevocable segregated and 

separate trnst fund account for the sole and exclusive benefit of the holders of the Refunded 

Bonds until final payment thereof. 

Section 3.02. The beginning cash escrow deposit shall not be invested by the. Escrow 

Agent. Otherwise, the Escrow Agent will reinvest all available uninvested balances (except for 

an amount under $2,000) in the Escrow Account on deposit from time to time, whenever said 

balances exceed $2,000 unless said balance is needed to pay principal of or interest on refunded 

bonds within 14 days, and acknowledges that the schedule of amounts available for reinvestment 

appears in the cash flow tables in the Verification Report and in Exhibit C. Investments so made 

shall be in direct obligations of the United States of America and shall be scheduled to mature on 

or prior to the interest payment date on the Refunded Bonds on which such proceeds will be 

needed to pay the principal of or interest on the Refunded Bonds. Such investments shall, to the 

extent possible, be in zero-yield obligations issued directly by the Bureau of Fiscal Service of the 

United States Treasury (currently designated '' U. S. Treasury Securities-State and Local 

Government Series Certificates of Indebtedness, Notes or Bonds") ( "SLGS''). Such investments 

shall be made only to the extent permitted by, and shall be made in accordance with, the 

applicable statutes, rules and regulations governing such investments issued by the Bureau of 

- 5 -



Fiscal Service. The Escrow Agent expressly recognizes that under current regulations all SLGS 

must be subscribed for not less than 5 days (7 days for amounts of $ 1 0,000,000 or more) nor 

more than 60 days prior to date of issuance. 

Exhibit C contains a l ist of scheduled reinvestments . The Escrow Agent is instrncted to 

subscribe for and take del ivery of SLGS as described in Exhibit C. 

If the Department of the Treasury (or the Bureau of Fiscal Service) of the United States 

suspends the sale of SLGS caus ing the Escrow Agent to be unable to purchase SLGS , then the 

Escrow Agent wi l l  take the fol lowing actions. On the date it would have purchased SLGS had it 

been able to do so, the Escrow Agent wi l l  purchase direct obl igations of the United States (the 

"Alternate Investment ") maturing no more than 90 days after the date of purchase and no later 

than the scheduled maturity date of such SLGS as shown on Exhibit C. The purchase price of 

the Alternate Investment shall be as close as possible to, but not more than, the principal amount 

of the SLGS that would have been purchased on such date if they had been available for 

purchase. The maturity date of the Alternate Investment shall be the latest poss ible date that 

( i) is not more than 90 days after the purchase date and ( i i) is not after the scheduled maturity 

date for the SLGS that would have been purchased if available as shown on Exhibit C. The 

Escrow Agent wi l l  purchase each Alternate Investment in the customary manner for such 

investments (in the secondary market or in a Treasury auction) at a price no higher than the fair 

market value of the Alternate Investment and wi l l  maintain records demonstrating compliance 

w ith this requirement. On the maturity of each Alternate Investment, the Escrow Agent shall pay 

the difference between the total of the receipts (principal and interest) on the Alternate 

Investment and the purchase price of the Alternate Investment to the County w ith a notice to the 

County that such amount may need to be paid to the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Rev. 

Proc. 95-47 or successor provisions including any final ized vers ion of Prop. Treas . Reg. 

-6-



Section l . 148-5(c). If the Alternate Investment matures more than 1 4  days prior to the next 

succeeding interest payment date on the Refunded Bonds on which such proceeds wil l  be needed 

to pay principal of or interest on the Refunded Bonds, the Escrow Agent shall treat such amounts 

as an uninvested balance available for reinvestment and shall take all reasonable steps to invest 

such amounts in SLGS ( or additional Alternate Investments as provided in this Section) . 

The Escrow Agent shall hold balances not so invested in the Escrow Account on demand 

and in trust for the purposes hereof and shall secure same in accordance with appl icable Il linois 

law for the securing of public funds . 

Section 3.03. The Escrow Agent will take no action in the investment or securing of the 

proceeds of the Government Securities which would cause the Bonds to be classified as 

"arbitrage bonds" under the Code, provided, it shall be under no duty to affirmatively inquire 

whether the Government Securities as deposited are properly inves ted under the Code; and, 

provided, further, it may rely on all specific directions in this Agreement in the investment or 

reinvestment of balances held hereunder. 

Section 3. 04. The Escrow Agent wil l  promptly col lect the principal, interest or profit 

from the Government Securities and promptly apply the same as necessary to the payment of 

principal and interest on the Refunded Bonds when due, at maturity or upon redemption prior to 

maturity as herein provided. 

Section 3.05. The Escrow Agent wil l  remit to the Paying Agent, in good funds on or 

before each principal or interest payment or redemption date on the Refunded Bonds, moneys 

sufficient to pay such principal, premium, if any, and interest as wil l  meet the requirements for 

the retirement of the Refunded Bonds, and such remittances shall fully release and discharge the 

Escrow Agent from any further duty or obl igation thereto under this Agreement. 

-7-



Section 3.06. The Escrow Agent wil l  make no payment of fees, charges or expenses due 

or to become due, of the Paying Agent or the bond registrar and paying agent on the Bonds, and 

the County either paid such fees, charges and expenses in advance as set forth in Section 3 .07 

hereof or covenants to pay the same as they become due. 

Section 3.07. The charges, fees and expenses of the Escrow Agent (other than any 

charges, fees and expenses incurred pursuant to Section 3 .08 hereof) have been paid in advance, 

and all charges, fees or expenses of the Escrow Agent in carrying out any of the duties, terms or 

provisions of this Agreement shall be paid solely therefrom. The Escrow Agent is also providing 

bond registrar and pay ing agent services for the Bonds, and the acceptance fee and first annual 

fee of the Escrow Agent for such bond registrar and paying agent services have been paid in 

advance, and al l remaining charges, fees or expenses of the Escrow Agent for such services shal l 

be paid by the County upon receipt of invoices therefor. 

Section 3.08. The County has called the Series 2009 Refunded Bonds for redemption and 

payment prior to maturity on October 1 ,  20 1 9. The Escrow Agent wi l l  cause the Paying Agent 

to provide for and g ive a timely notice of the call of such Series 2009 Refunded B onds. In the 

event the Escrow Agent determines that the Paying Agent wil l not g ive such timely notice, the 

Escrow Agent wi l l  give such notice. The form and time of the g iving of such notice shall be as 

specified in the ordinance providing for the issue of the Refunded Bonds .  The County shall 

reimburse the Escrow Agent for its actual out of pocket expenses incurred in the g iving of such 

notice, but the failure of the County to make such payment shal l  not in any respect whatsoever 

rel ieve the Escrow Agent from carrying out any of the duties, terms or provis ions of this 

Agreement. 

The Escrow Agent shall also give, or shall cause the Paying Agent to give, notice of the 

call of the Refunded Bonds, on or before the date the notice of such redemption is g iven to the 

-8-



holders of the Refunded Bonds, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB ") 

through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities d isclosure or 

through any other electronic format or system prescribed by the MSRB for purposes of 

Rule 1 5c2- 1 2  adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1 934, as amended. Information with respect to procedures for submitting 

notice can be found at https://msrb.org. 

Section 3. 09. The Escrow Agent has all the powers and duties herein set forth with no 

l iabi l ity in connection with any act or omission to act hereunder, except for its own negl igence or 

wil lful breach of trust, and shall be under no obl igation to institute any suit or action or other 

proceeding under this Agreement or to enter any appearance in any suit, action or proceeding in 

which it may be defendant or to take any steps in the enforcement of its, or any, rights and 

powers hereunder, nor shall be deemed to have failed to take any such action, unless and until it 

shall have been indemnified by the County to its satisfaction against any and all costs and 

expenses, outlays, counsel fees and other d isbursements, including its own reasonable fees, and 

if any judgment, decree or recovery be obtained by the Escrow Agent, payment of all sums due 

it, as aforesaid, shall be a first charge against the amount of any such judgment, decree or 

recovery. 

Section 3. 10. The Escrow Agent may in good faith buy, sell or hold and deal in any of the 

Bonds or the Refunded B onds . 

Section 3. 1 1 .  The Escrow Agent wi l l  submit to the Board a statement within forty-five 

(45) days after January 2 and July 2 of each calendar year, commencing January 2, 20 1 6, 

itemizing all moneys received by it and al l payments made by it under the provisions of this 

Agreement during the preceding s ix (6) month period (or, for the first period , from the date of 

del ivery of the B onds to January 2, 20 1 6) ,  and also l isting the Government Securities on deposit 

-9-

http:https://msrb.org


therewith on the date of said report, including all moneys held by it received as interest on or 

profit from the col lection of the Government Securities . 

Section 3. 12 .  If a t  any time i t  shall appear to the Escrow Agent that the available proceeds 

of the Government Securities and deposits on demand in the Escrow Account wil l  not be 

sufficient to make any payment due to the holders of any of the Refunded Bonds, the Escrow 

Agent shall notify the County Clerk and the B oard, not less than five (5) days prior to such date, 

and the County agrees that it wil l  from any funds legally available for such purpose make up the 

anticipated deficit so that no default in the making of any such payment wil l  occur. 

ARTICLE IV 

COVENANTS OF COUNTY 

The County covenants and agrees with the Escrow Agent as fol lows : 

Section 4. 01 . The Escrow Agent shall have no respons ibil ity or l iabil ity whatsoever for 

(a) any of the recitals of the County herein, (b) the performance of or compl iance with any 

covenant, condition, term or provision of the Bond Ordinance, and (c) any undertaking or 

statement of the County hereunder or under the Bond Ordinance. 

Section 4. 02. All payments to be made by, and all acts and duties required to be done by, 

the Escrow Agent under the te1ms and provis ions of this Agreement, shall be made and done by 

the Escrow Agent without any further d irection or authority of the County. 

Section 4. 03 . The County wil l  take no action regarding the proceeds of the Bonds which 

would cause the Bonds to be class ified as "arbitrage bonds" under the Code, and the County wil l  

take any and all further action necessary to ensure that adequate provision is made for the 

payment of the Refunded Bonds and that none of the Refunded B onds and the Bonds are 

class ified as "arbitrage bonds" under the Code. 

- 10-



ARTICLE V 

AMENDMENTS, REINVESTMENT OF 

FuNns, IRREVOCABfLITY OF AGREEMENT 

Section 5.01. Except as provided in Section 5.03 hereof, all of the rights, powers, duties 

and obligations of the Escrow Agent hereunder shall be irrevocable and shall not be subject to 

amendment by the Escrow Agent and shall be binding on any successor to the Escrow Agent 

during the term of this Agreement. 

Section 5.02. Except as provided in Section 5.03 hereof, all of the rights, powers, duties 

and obligations of the County hereunder shall be irrevocable and shall not be subject to 

amendment by the County and shall be binding on any successor to the officials now comprising 

the Board during the term of this Agreement. 

Section 5.03. This Agreement may be amended or supplemented, and the Government 

Securities or any portion thereof may be sold, redeemed, invested or reinvested, in any manner 

provided (any such amendment, supplement, sale, redemption, investment or reinvestment to be 

referred to as a "Subsequent Action"), upon submission to the Escrow Agent of each of the 

following: 

( 1) Certified copy of proceedings of the Board attthorizing the Subsequent Action and 

copy of the document effecting the Subsequent Action signed by duly designated officers of the 

County. 

(2) An opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or tax counsel nationally 

recognized as having an expertise in the area of tax-exempt municipal bonds that the Subsequent 

Action will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds or the 

Refunded Bonds, nor violate the covenants of the County not to cause the Bonds or the Refunded 

Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds" under the Code, and that the Subsequent Action does not 

materially adversely affect the legal rights of the holders of the Bonds or the Refunded Bonds. 

- 1  l -



(3) An opinion of a firm of nationally recognized independent certified public 

accountants that the amounts (which will consist of cash or deposits on demand held in trust, 

receipts from direct noncallable nonprepayable full faith and credit obligations of the United 

States of America or noncallable nonprepayable obligations the timely payment of principal and 

interest on which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, all of 

which shall be held hereunder, but shall not include money market mutual funds and unit 

investment rrusts) available or to be available for payment of the Refunded Bonds and the Bonds 

(to the extent of the Escrowed Interest Requirements), without regard to the reinvestment 

thereof, will remain sufficient to pay when due all principal and interest on the Refunded Bonds 

and the Bonds (to the extent of the Escrowed Interest Requirements) after the taking of t11e 

Subsequent Action. 

ARTICLE VI 

MERGER, CONSOLIDATION OR RESIGNATION OF ESCROW AGENT 

Any banking association or corporation into which the Escrow Agent may be merged, 

converted or with which the Escrow Agent may be consolidated, or any corporation resulting 

from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the Escrow Agent shall be a party, or any 

banking association or corporation to which all or substantially all of the corporate trust business 

of the Escrow Agent shall be transferred, shall succeed to all the Escrow Agent's rights, 

obligations and immunities hereunder without the execution or filing of any paper or any further 

act on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding. The 

Escrow Agent may at any time resign as Escrow Agent under this Agreement by giving 30 days' 

wriuen notice to the County, and such resignation shall take effect upon the appointment of a 

successor Escrow Agent by the County. The County may select as successor Escrow Agent any 

financial institution with capital, surplus and undivided profits of at least $75,000,000 and having 

- 1 2-



a corporate trust office within the S tate of I l l inois, and which is  authorized to maintain trust 

accounts for municipal corporations in I l l inois under applicable law. 

ARTICLE VII 

NOTICES 

Section 7.01 . All notices and communications to the County and the Board shall be 

addressed in writing to: The County of St. Clair, I l l inois, St. Clair County Bu ilding, 10 Publ ic 

Square, Bellevi l le, I ll inois 62220. 

Section 7. 02. All  notices and communications to the Escrow Agent shall be addressed in 

writing to: Amalgamated B ank of Chicago, 1 West Monroe S treet, Chicago, I l l inois 60602. 

ARTICLE VIII 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Section 8.01 . That, upon final d isbursement of funds sufficient to pay the principal and 

interest of the Refunded Bonds and the Bonds (to the extent of the Escrowed Interest 

Requirements) as hereinabove provided for, the Escrow Agent wil l  transfer any balance 

remaining in the Escrow Account to the County with due notice thereof mailed to the Board, and 

thereupon thi s  Agreement shall terminate. 

- 1 3-

9- e-..3.-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The County of St. Clair, I l l inois, has caused this Agreement to be 

s igned in its name by the Chairman of the Board and to be attested by the County Clerk and ex­

officio Clerk of the Board; and Amalgamated Bank of Chicago ,  Chicago, I l l inois, not 

individually , but in the capacity as hereinabove described, has caused this Agreement to be 

s igned in its corporate name by one of its officers and attested by one of its officers under its 

corporate seal hereunto affixed, aH as of the 

Attest : 

County C lerk and ex-officio Clerk of the 
County Board of The County of 
St. Clair, I llinois 

Attest: 

Its _____________ _ 

[BANK SEAL] 

day of _____ , 20 1 5 .  

- 1 4-

THE COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR, ILLINOIS 

By _____________ _ 
Chairman of the County Board of 

The County of St. Clair, I l l inois 

AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAGO 
Chicago , Il l inois 

By _____________ _ 
Its ____________ _ 



EXHIBIT A 

INTENDED GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 



EXHIBIT A-1 

SUBSTITUTE GOVERNMENT SECURJTIES 



EXHIBIT B 

VERIFICATION REPORT 



SUBSCRIBE 

BY 

PURCHASE 

DATE 

EXHIBIT C 

SCHEDULED REINVESTMENTS 

MATURITY 

DATE 

PAR 

AMOUNT TYPE RATE 

SLS-Cert 0% 

SLGSCert 0% 

If any date shown above is not a business day, the subscribe by date or purchase date should be 
adjusted to the next possible bus iness day. 

The Escrow Agent may submit a subscription for a scheduled SLGS purchase before the date 
shown, so long as it is not submitted more than 60 days prior to the purchase date. If  
subscriptions are not accepted on the date shown, the Escrow Agent should keep trying to submit 
such a subscription until five days before the scheduled purchase date. If the Escrow Agent is 
unable to purchase or subscribe for SLGS as shown above, the Escrow Agent should purchase an 
Alternate Investment as described in Section 3 .2 .  



Member ________ moved and Member _________ seconded the 

motion that said ord inance as presented and read by title by the County Clerk be adopted . 

After a full discuss ion thereof, the Chairman directed that the rol l  be cal led for a vote 

upon the motion to adopt sa id ordinance as read . 

Upon the rol l  being cal led , the fol lowing members voted A YE: 

and the following members voted NAY: 

Whereupon the Chairman declared the motion carried and said ord inance adopted , 

approved and s igned the same in open meeting and directed the County Clerk to record the same 

in the records of the County Board of The County of St .  Cla ir, I l l inois ,  which was done. 

Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at said 

meeting . 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried , the meeting was adjourned . 

County C lerk and ex-officio Clerk of the 
County Board 

9- e -..::J. 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF ST .  CLAIR ) 

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 

I, the unders igned , do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 
of The County of St .  Clair, I l l inois (the "County ") ,  and ex-officio Clerk of the County Board of 
the County (the "Board") ,  and as such official am the keeper of the records and fi les of the 
Board . 

I further certify that the foregoing is a ful l ,  true and complete transcript of that portion of 
the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the 26th day of May,  20 1 5 ,  insofar as the same 
relates to the adoption of Ord inance No. ___ entitled : 

AN ORDINANCE authoriz ing and providing for the is suance of 
$ _____ Taxable General Obl igation Refund ing Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source) , Series 20 1 5 , of The County of 
St .  Clair, IUinois ,  providing for the payment of certain outstand ing 
alternate bonds of said County, providing for the levy of a d irect 
annual tax suffic ient to pay the principal and interest thereon, 
authorizing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof and 
authorizing and d irecting the execution of an Escrow Agreement in 
connection therewith. 

a true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as adopted at said meeting appears in 
the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting . 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the County Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken 
openly, that said meeting was held at a specified time and p lace convenient to the pub l ic, that 
notice of said meeting was duly g iven to al l of the news med ia requesting such notice, that an 
agenda for said meeting was posted at the locat ion where said meeting was held and at the 
principal office of the County Board at least 96 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting, 
that a true, correct and complete copy of said agenda as so posted is attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
that at least one copy of said agenda was continuously availab le for pub l ic review during the 
entire 96-hour period preceding said meeting, that said meeting was cal led and held in strict 
compl iance was the provis ions of the Counties Code of the S tate of I l l inois ,  as amended, and the 
Open Meetings Act of the S tate of I l l inois , as amended, and that the County Board has compl ied 
with all of the provis ions of said Code and said Acts and its procedural rules in the adoption of 
said ordinance. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and seal of the County. Lhis 
26th day of May, 20 1 5. 

(SEAL) 

-2-

County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of the 
County Board 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF ST .  CLAIR ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the unders igned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qual ified and acting County clerk 

of The County of St .  C lair, I l l inoi s  (the " County ") ,  and as such officer I do hereby certify that on 

the _ day of _____ , 20 1 5 , there was fi led in my office a duly certified copy of 

Ordinance No. ent itled : ----

AN ORDINANCE authorizing and providing for the issuance of 
$ _____ Taxable General Obl igation Refunding Bonds 
(Alternate Revenue Source) , Series 20 1 5 ,  of The County of 
St. C lair , I l l inoi s ,  providing for the payment of certain outstand ing 
alternate bonds of said County, providing for the levy of a d i rect 
annual tax suffic ient to pay the principal and interest thereon, 
authoriz ing the sale of said bonds to the purchaser thereof and 
authoriz ing and directing the execution of an Escrow Agreement in 
connection therewith .  

passed by the County B oard of the County ,  on the 26th day of May,  20 1 5 ,  and approved by the 

Chairman of the County Board of the County , and that the same has been deposited in the 

offic ial fi les and records of my office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official s ignature and the seal of the County, 

th is __ day of _____ , 20 1 5 .  

(SEAL) 

County Clerk of The County of St .  Cla ir, 
I l l ino i s  



Ordinance No. 15-1120 

REVr.EWED BY : 

State ' s  Attorney ' s  Office 

Director of Administration 

FINANCE COMMITTEE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



FINANCIAL REIMBURSEMENT INTER GOVERNMENT AL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT AND 
THE COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR AND SHERIFF OF ST. CLAIR COUNTY 

This Intergovernmental Agreement is made effective and entered into thi s  _ _  
day of _ _ __ _ __ � 20 1 5, by and between the St. Clair County Transit D istrict 
("District"), the County of St. Clair  ("County"), and the Sheriff of St. C lair County 
("Sheriff') on the following terms and conditions: 

WHEREAS, the County and Sheriff are joint employers of sworn deputy sheriffs; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County and Sheriff contract with the Bi-State Development 
Agency of the Missouri-Il linois Metropolitan District ("Bi-State") to provide police 
services upon Metro Link trains and properties; and 

WHEREAS, the D istrict contracts with Bi-State to reimburse Bi-State for the 
costs of obtaining police services upon MetroLink: trains and properties from the County 
and Sheriff; and 

WHEREAS, the District, the County and the Sheriff have each determined that it 
is in their best interest, and the best interest of their respective citizens, to provide sworn 
St. Clair County deputy sheriffs upon Metro Link trains and properties to better protect 
their citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the agreements in place among the District, the County, the Sheriff 
and Bi-State provide for reimbursement to the County and Sheriff for the wages and 
benefits of the sworn deputy sheriffs performing work upon the Metro Link; and 

WHEREAS, the agreements in place among the District, the County, the Sheriff 
and Bi-State do not currently provide for reimbursement to the County and Sheriff of the 
self-insured retention costs associated with workers' compensation claims of the sworn 
deputy sheriffs performing work upon the MetroLink; and 

WHEREAS, the District, the County, and the Sheriff agree that is necessary and 
proper for the District to reimburse the County and Sheriff for the self-insured retention 
costs associated with workers' compensation claims of the sworn deputy sheriffs 
performing work upon the MetroLink: to ensure the continued viability of the 
arrangement providing for sworn deputy sheriffs performing work upon the MetroLink:; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District has agreed to reimburse the County and Sheriff for the 
self-insured retention costs associated with workers' compensation claims of the sworn 
deputy sheriffs performing work upon the MetroLink:; and 



WHEREAS, the District, 1he County, and the Sheriff believe it is in the best 
interest of their respective bodies to enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE THE DISTRICT, THE COUNTY, AND THE 
SHERIFF HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

I. Preambles. The preambles set forth above are true and correct and are 
hereby incorporated by reference. 

2. PtifJJOSe. The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to provide 
for full reimbursement to the County and Sheriff of the self-insured retention costs 
associated with workers,_ compensation claims of the sworn deputy sheriffs pe1forming 
work upon the Metro Link by the District to ensure the continued viability of the 
MetroLink patrol, and to better protect their citizens. 

3, Legal Basis. Th.is Agreement is executed pursuant to the provisions of 
Article VII, Section l 0, of the Constitution oflllinois of 1970 and pursuant to the 
provisions of the lntergovemmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/ 1 .  It is the intent of 
the parties to exercise to the fullest extent pem1itted by law the authority granted them 
under the constitutional and statutory provisions. 

4. 

5. 

County and Sheriff Obligations. The County and the Sheriff agree to: 

a) Exercise good faith in defending workers' compensation claims 
brought by sworn deputy sheriffs perfonning work upon the 
MetrnLin.k, provided that the County and Sheriff may opt in their sole 
discretion to resolve and/or settle any such claims; and 

b) Submit written requests for reimbursement to the District for self­
insured retention costs associated with workers' compensation claims 
of the sworn deputy sheriffs perfo1ming work upon the Metro Link; 
and 

c) Upon request from the District, provide non-privileged documentation, 
to the extent allowed by privacy laws, concerning the workers' 
compensation claims that are the basis for the reimbursement request. 

Distiict Obligations. The District agrees to: 

a) Provide for full reimbursement to the County and Sheriff of the self­
insured retention costs associated with workers' compensation claims 
of the sworn deputy sheriffs performing work upon the MetroLink 
pursuant to the Police Services Agreement entered into between Bi­
State and the County and Sheriff. 

Page 2 of 4 



6. Cooperation. The District, the County, and the Sheriff agree to cooperate 
and take all action necessary to effectuate the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement 
including but not limited to executing all documents or other writings necessary thereon. 

7. General Provisions and Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the 
entire Agreement of the parties and may only be amended in writing and by mutual 
agreement of the parties. The execution of any amendment to this Agreement shal I be 
authorized only by the passage of a resolution or ordinance of the corporate authorities of 
each party. 

8. Severability. l f  any part of this Agreement is adjudged invalid, such 
adjudication shall not affect the validity of this Agreement as a whole or any other part 
thereof. 

9. Non-Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred by 
any party hereto without the prior written consent of the other party. 

l 0. Te1mination. Any party may te1minate this Agreement by providing 
written notice to the other parties 90 days in advance of te1mination. Otherwise, this 
Agreement shall, te1minate when sworn deputy sheriffs cease to work upon the MetroLink 
pursuant to the Police Services Agreement with Bi-State. 

1 1 .  Continuing Effect. The District shall have a continuing obligation to 
make reimbursements as set forth in Paragraph 5 for any workers' compensation claims 
of swoni deputy sheriffs perfo1ming work upon the MetroLink in which the date of iajury 
precedes the date of te1mination of this Agreement 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

Mark Kem, Chairman, St. Clair County Board 

Attest (Seal) 

f>age 3 of 4 



Attest (SeaJ) 

FOR THE DISTRICT: 

Attest (Seal) 

Page 4 of 4 



104 United Drive 
Collinsville, IL 62234 

618-343-9120 
Fax 618-343-9132 

www.Ooodpreventiondistrict.org 

Board of Directors 
John Conrad 

Pre5'10eol 
Jim Pennekamp 

V.ce Prestdenl 

Dan Maher 
Secretary-Treasurer 

Paul Bergkoetter 
Bruce Brinkman 

Thomas Long 
Ron Molil 

AMn L. Parks Jr. 
Ronal d Polka 

Char1es M. Etwert 
Cniof Supeo,isor or 

ConSlf\JCllOn and tile Won<s-

Southwestern 

Illinois 

Flood Prevention 

District Council 

May 20, 2014 

Hon. Mark Kern, Chairman 
St. Clair County Board 
l O Public Square 
Belleville; IL 62220-1623 

Hon. Alan Dunstan, Chairman 
Madison County Board 
Madison County Administration Building 
157 N. Main Street 
Suite I 65 
Edwardsvi I le, IL 62025- l 962 

Hon. Terry Liefer, Chairman 
Monroe County Board 
l 00 South Main Street 
Waterloo, IL  62298 

Dear Chairmen Kern, Dunstan and Liefer: 

In  accordance with the Illinois Flood Prevention District Act (70 JLCS 750/), the 
Southwestern Il linois Flood Prevention District Council is requesting approval from 
your respective county boards to enter into contract with the fol lowing firm for the 
following construction project to improve the Mississippi River levee systems in 
Madison, St. Clair and Monroe counties: 

• TREVJICOS from Charlestown, Massachusetts for $ 1 3,991 ,000.00 to build the 
Lower Wood River Deep ( I  00 ft.-140 ft. in depth) Cutoff Wall, Clay Cap, 
Piezometers, Relief Wells and Incl inometers in the Wood River District with a 
ten percent funding contingency of $1 ,399, l 00.00 for a total of $1 5,390,1 00.00. 

Details about the contractor selection process are attached. The contractor selection 
was approved by the Council's Board of Directors at today's meeting. 

Please cal I me if you have any questions or if the county board requires any 
additional information. 

a reg iona l  partnership to rebuild Mississippi River flood.. protect ion 

http:15,390,100.00
http:13,991,000.00
http:www.f1oodprevenliondislrict.org


Hon. Mark Kem, Hon. Alan Dunstan, Hon. Terry Liefer 
Page 2 
May 20, 20 1 5  

Sincerely, 

Charles M. Etwert 
Chief Supervisor of Construction and the Works 

cc; Dan Maher 
Joe Parente 
Linda Lehr 
Board of Directors 



Memo to: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Southwestern 

Illinois 

Flood Prevention 

District Council 

Board of Directors 

Chuck Etwert 

Selection of Contractor for Construction Package #7B - Construction of the 
Lower Wood River Deep ( l  00 ft. - 1 40 ft. in depth) Cutoff Wall, Clay Cap, 
Piezometers, Relief Wells and Inclinometers in the Wood River District 

May 1 8, 20 1 5  

As you are aware the original contractor on  the BP 7B project, terminated their contract 
with the Southwestern I l l inois flood Prevention District (FPO) Council. Therefore, the 
Council issued an advertisement for construction bids for Bid Package 7B on March 16, 
2015.  Bid Package 7B is for construction of a cement-bentonite cutoff wail, constructed in 
panels, approximately I 00 ft. - l 40 ft. in depth, as well as a protruding clay cap along the 
riverside of the Jevee system along the cutoff wall, relief wells, piezometers, and other 
instrumentation. A copy of the invitation is included as an attachment. 

An advertisement for bid was published in the following newspapers the week of March 15, 
2015: the St. Louis Post Dispatch, Edwardsville Intell igencer, Belleville News Democrat, and 
the Republic Times. 

A pre-bid meeting was held on Wednesday, April I ,  201 5  at the council offices. The meeting 
was attended by 29 individuals, including Amee Foster Wheeler staff. 

On May 6, 2015, bids were received from two (2) companies and read aloud. Results are as 
follows: 

TREVUCOS South Corporation in the amount of: 
Brasfond USA Corporation in the amount of: 

The Engineer's estimate was $14,559,583.00. 

$1 3,99 1 ,000.00 
$1 4,793,622.80 

The apparent low bid was TREVHCOS South Corporation from Charlestown, Massachusetts. 
Due to the specialty nature of this work, none of the bidders were local; however, each bidder 
has ,included a list of subcontractors, some of which are well known local companies. Brasfond 
USA Corporation is from Wooster, Ohio. 

A regional partnership to rebuild Mississippi River flood protection 

http:14,559,583.00
http:14,793,622.80
http:13,991,000.00


Amee Foster Whee ler rev iewed/confirmed the fol lowing: 
• prequal ificat ion status as stated on  the b id form 
• addendums were acknowledged 
• arithmetic on  the schedule of va lues 
• b id form was s igned and attested 
• bid bond 
• schedu les prov ided 
• references 
• ut i l ization of M/D/WBE subcontractors 
• qual ificat ions of each both cutoff wa l l  contractors 
• resumes of key construction  personnel  

Amee Foster Whee ler further rev iewed the spec ificat ions, bond ing requ i rements, QA/QC 
mater ia l  testing procedures and payment procedures to verify the FPO Counc i l  is protected 
during construct ion and qua l i ty construction is provided. 

The high bidder, B rasfond USA, was $802,085 .62 (6%) h igher than the low b idder, 
TREVI ICOS South, I nc. Amee Foster Wheeler rev iewed the b ids for the primary d ifferences 
between the three bidders; the prices for the bid items var ied between b idders , but the major  
variat ions were : 

Line Description Difference Between Low 
Item Bid and Next Hi2hest Bid 
0002 Bonds & I nsurance $ 1 39,35 8.20 

00 1 1  Cement Bentonite S lu rry Trench Cutoff Wal l ( 80+ $6 1 9,097.80 
ft.) 

00 1 3  Geotechnical Instrumentation I nsta l lation $ 1 90,9 1 4 .02 

The deta i led schedu l e  of values are attached . 

Ne ither of the bidders met the fu l l  requ irement of the specificat ion with respect to prev ious 
cutoff wal l  project experience and/or resume qual ifications for the S lurry Trench Spec ia l ist 
(STS) and/o r the Project F ie ld  Superintendent (PFS) .  Th is extreme ly stri ngent specification  
requirement was imposed to ensure that on ly the  most q ual ified construct ion fi rms wou ld b i d  th is 
important specia l ty work; each firm that b id was very c lose in meeting the q uantity ,  years of 
experience, and prev ious  project deta i ls that were requ i red i n  the project specificat ions .  Given 
the specialty natu re of this work, and the demonstrated competence of the contractors who bid 
this project, the intent of the specification, with respect to previous cutoff wal l  project 
exper ience, STS experience, and PFS experi ence, has been  fulfi l led. 

TREVI ICOS South Corporation has proposed to use Wissehr Electric in Bel lev i l l e ,  IL for 
e lectr ical l ine work; Wissehr is an MBE, certified with IDOT. TREVIICOS South Corporat ion 
has proposed to use  B rewster Compan ies in Maryvi l le, IL for landscaping and env ironmental 
work; Brewster i s  an MBE, cert ified with IDOT. TREVIICOS South Corporat ion has also 
indicated on the i r  MBE Uti l izat ion Statement that A Strong Hau l i ng, LLC (Waterloo, IL) and 

2 

http:190,914.02
http:802,085.62


D.W. Mertzke Trucking (Troy, IL) trucking/haul ing w i l l  be uti l ized; Both A Strong and D.W. 
Mertzke are an MBE, certified with I DOT. 

TREVIICOS South Corporation's schedu le shows a completion date of May l ,  20 1 6  and the 
specification references completion by the same date. Add itional ly, their schedule shows a 
completion date for the cutoff wal l ,  c lay cap and rel ief wel ls by December 1 8, 20 1 5 . Wi th 
cooperative weather and river levels, Amee Foster Wheeler has no reason to bel ieve these dates 
w i l l  not be met. 

Based on their review, Amee Foster Wheeler concludes that TREVIJCOS South Corporation is 
qualified to perform the work and, therefore, recommends that the FPO Counci l  se lects th is 
company to perform the construction of B id  Package 7B.  

Brasfond 's  schedule of values contai ned arithmetic errors. The stated sum on Brasfond's  
schedu le of values i s  $ 1 4,793,622.80; however, the product of the Estimated Quantity and the 
each respective un i t  price sums to $ 1 4,793,085 .62. By correcti ng Brasfond's arithmetic, the 
Brasfond bid actual ly totals $537. 1 8  lower than that read aloud at the bid openi ng. This error i s  
bel ieved to  be  a resul t  of  Brasfond using a spreadsheet program to  back-calculate their un i t  costs 
and, therefore, the un i t  costs were calculated out past the hundredth of a doll ar. S ince Brasfond 
was the h igh bidder, this d iscrepancy was not d i scussed with Brasfond, as rectify ing it would 
not have changed the resul t  of th i s  recommendation. 

Recommendation 
Authorize the Chief Superv isor to execute a $ 1 3 ,99 1 ,000.00 contract wi th TREVIICOS South 
Corporation to perform construction of B id Package 7B wi th a total cost not to exceed 
$ 1 5,390, 1 00.00 ($ 1 3,99 1 ,000.00. p l us a 1 0% contingency) . 

3 

http:13,991,000.00
http:13,991,000.00


SOuthw.-,tctn 

Jlllnol.s 

Flood Pr,v1t11llon 

Ol"'rtct COunell 

Southwestern Illinois Flood Prevention District Council 
LEVEE CERTIFICATION DESIGN PROJECT (BID PACKAGE 7B) - BID TAB 

' 
amec_ J1' 
foster 
wheeler 

TREVIICOS Corporation Brasfond USA Corporation 
..... ----Qty Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost 

0001 Mobilization & Demobilization 1 LS $ 696,964.00 $ 696.964.00 $ 738.634.98 $ 738.634.9f ---------+-- -- ----- - -------0002 Bonds & Insurance 1 LS $ 350,000.00 $ __ 3_6_0.,_,o_o_0._0_0_,_$ ___ 4_8_9_,3_5_8_.2_o_s_ 489,358.20 
0003 Construclion Staking 1 LS$ 155,000.00 $ 155,000.00 $ 62,584.10 $ 62,584.1 0  
0004 Environmental Protection 1 LS $ 175,000.00+--$  ___ _ 17_ 5� ,0_ 0_0_ .0 _0 _ $�_ 183,808.93 $ 183,808.93 
0005 Establishment of Turf 1 LS '" $  175,000.00 $ 175,000.00 $ 120.473.56- $ 120,473.56 

1----'-0_00_6;___o_e_w_a_te_r_in....__Q ____ ::::::::::::�- - ,- - ---,L
....,
Sc-+-

--,,

$- -- _-5_-c-o....;.�.o_-c-o_o�.
"C'

o_o::
"C'

s'----_-_-_-�- _-5::o.,_,�o::o_o
,-

.::o_o
=-

....
.
... _--,,$::::::� __ 6_9� .o_s

_
8_.5_7--+--$ 69,058.57 

0001 stripprng 1 LS s 150,000.00 $ 150,000.oo __ s__ s
1
o
5 

.

. 
2
1
s
9

o
1

.
_
s
0
4
5
_ $ so ,290.94 

0008-Clearing & Grubbing 6 AC $ 7,000.00 $ 42,000.00 $ $ 91, 146.30 
0009 MaterialDisoosaf -- -- - -1 LS $ 1 ,250,000.00 $ _1 .:....,2_s_;o•c...o_oo_._oo--1---'-$ ___ 1 . 188,037.24 $ 1, 188,037.24 
0010 Cement Bentonile Slurry Trench 

,___ 
__01toff W� (0_-

....,
80_tt).,._. _____ _ 152,522 SF $ .. 35.00 $ - _5�, 3_3_a-'-.2_1_0._o_o _s _____ 3S.46_ s 5,408,430� 

001 1 Cement Bentonite Slurry Trench 
Culoff Wall (80+ ..!!) 

a. First 58,800 SF 58, 800 
14,076 

SF $ 26.00 $ 1,5281800.00--$ -- 32.55 $ 1,913,940.00 
b. Ailover 58.800 SF 

-- Cement Bentonite Slurry Trench 
SF $ 16.00 . $ _2_2_5-'--,2_1_6._0_0 +-$ _____ 3_2_.5_5_$ _____ 458. 173.80 

oo,2 Cutoff Wall (ROCK) 
___ _ a_._F_i_rs_t_82_o_s_F ______ _ a_2_o _ __ S=F J __ 100.00 s _a_2.._,o_oo_.o_o_s _____ 8_0_.6_2

+-s 
b. All over 820 SF __ 82_0 _S_F

--1- -'$ _ _ _ _  _.;;.5_0 . ..c.00
--1-...:.$ _______ 4-'1,000.00 _! 8.£:6t $ 

0013 Geotechnical Instrumentation 
Installation 1 LS $ 1 , 150,000.00 $. 1 , 150,000_0Q $ 

0�1_ Impervious Clay Fill 1 1 ,700 CY $ 60.00 $ 702,000.00 $ 
Waterline Removal & 

1 ,340,914.02 $ 
50.92 $ 

66. 108.40 
66,108.40 --

1.340.914.02 
595,764.00 

0015 __ Replacement 1 LS $ 100,000.00 $ 100,000,00 $ 33,702.93 � 33,702.93 
___ oo_1_6 _ _  Temporary Electrical Line __ 1 LS$ 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00 $ _ _4_2_.4_2 _9._9 _ _ 0, . ._.$ ____ 4_2 .• 4_29_._90-

0017 Slurry Wall Pan_e_l _C_or_ln�g ____ 
--=-

60
.,...,

0 LF $ 470.00 $ 282,000.00 - $  311.62 $ 186,972.00 
0018 Pilot Holes _ _ _ 630 VF 7 165.00 $ - 103,950.00 $ 126.58 $ 79.745.40 
0019 Relief Wells 560 VF $ 1 , 230.00 $ 688,800.00 $ 1.041.74 $ 583,374.40 
0
0

0
0

2
2

0
1 

-
-,S,..

it
.,,.
e
,.,.

.D_e
-:

m
:c-c
o_ti .,..tio_n

_,
a.,...n_d_R_e_s_to_ra_t_io_n __ 

--:-:
1: -:--_ LS $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00 $- 180,?SMS $ 180, 788.65 

DrillinQ Obstructions _12_5 _ _  -,-V
=

F
-+-

$
-

,--_ __ _ 2
�

00-.0
...,

.0
-+-

$ _ _ __ 2
_

,5-'-,0,
.,

,00-,0
...,

.0
-+-

$=--- -,-:,-.,8=-0...,.5--,,.7...,.4
........,

$, _ __ 1,..,o...,.o"-=, 7,....1-c-7 • ...,.5
.,,.....
0 

0022 Olin Ulilitv Protection 1 LS $ 150,000.00 $ 150,000.00 $ 222,756.98 $ 222 756.98 
- -'-0

.;_
02�3

----
-B-i-cy-c'-le

_
T

_,,.
r_a_il 

_R
_
el-oc.;_a

_
ti

_
o
_
n 
_ __ 

-
- 1 LS .._ $ -3-o

""'

o.'--0-00-.-00�""$----3 -0
-'

o.'-o -00.00$ 273,672T7 $ 273,672.87_ - -� - ---- -
0024 Cost to Execute Offn's Temporary 

License _ _ ___ _ _ __ __ 1 _ _ L� $ - $ • $ 84�59.82._ _$_ 84.85�.BQ.. 
0025 Cost to Obtain Insurance 

Required by Olin 1 LS_,....!_ - _$ ______ ·--11--$- 161,233,63 $ 161,233.63 

---- -
GRAND TOTAL - BID PACKAGE 7B $ 13,991,000.00 $ 14,793,085.62 

Prinled51l8/2015@8:44AM ,563170001-CIV-LST-OO IO_Bid Pkg 7B - Bid Tab Svmmary.xlsx Page 1 oft  



INVITATION TO BID 

(RE-BID) 

Notice is hereby given that the Southwestern I l linois Flood Prevention District Council 
(SIFP0C), the OWNER, will receive sealed Bids delivered to Mr. Charles Etwert at the 
SIFPDC Office, 104 United Drive, Collinsville, Illinois 62234 until 2:00 p.m. local time on 
Wednesday, May 6, 2015, for the construction of Southwestern Illinois Flood 
Prevention District Council Project (BID PACKAGE 7B - LOWER CUTOFF WALL). 
Bids will be publicly opened and read at the SIFPDC Office at 2:01 p.m. local time on 
Wednesday, May 6, 2015. 

A pre-bid conference will be held at 9:30 a.m. on Wednesday, April 1, 2015, at the 
SIFPDC Office, 104 United Drive, Collinsville, Illinois 62234. Representatives of 
OWNER (ENGINEER) will be present to discuss the Project. Bidders are required to 
attend the pre-bid conference. The ENGINEER will transmit to all prospective 
Bidders of Record such Addenda as ENGINEER considers necessary in response to 
questions arising at the conference. Oral statements may not be relied upon and will 
not be binding or legally effective. 

A site visit will be held shortly after the pre-bid meeting with representatives of OWNER 
(ENGINEER) to leave the SIFPDC Office, 104 United Drive, Collinsville, Illinois 62234 at 
approximately 10 :15 a.m. on Wednesday, April 1 ,  2015. The site is approximately 20-
minutes from the SIFPDC Office. The site visit is expected to last 30-60 minutes. 

The project consists of improvements to the Wood River Levee system including 
construction of: 

• Cutoff wall, cement-bentonite wall constructed in panels (100 ft. - 1 40 ft. in depth) 
• Clay cap 
• Piezometers 
• Relief Wells 
• Inclinometers 
• Bicycle Trail (removal and relocation) 
• Sheet Pile (Possibly, but not in lieu of cutoff wall - See Specifications) 

The improvements are along the Lower Wood River Levee system, between the 
intersection of IL-143 / Enviroway and IL-143 / Wood River Creek, in East Alton, Illinois. 

All Bidders are required to submit with their bid, qualification information as described in 
Document 00 200, Instructions to Bidders. 

Page 1 of 2 



Bidding Documents may be obtained after 12:00 p.m. (noon time) on Friday, March 
20, 2015, by submitting the following contact information to Kendra Mitcham 
(kendra.mitchom@amecfw.com) (618) 346-91 20. 

Contact Name: 
Company Name: 
Company Address: 
Company Phone: 
Cell Phone: 
E-mail Address: 
Contractor Type: 

PROJECT # SIFPDC-BP7B 

All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for ninety days after the day of Bid opening, 
but OWNER may, in its sole d iscretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior 
to that date. 

A Bid security in the amount of five percent of the Bidder's maximum Bid Price, 
including all optional work items, is required. The OWNER reserves the right to reject 
any or all Bids and to waive all informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the 
Work. 

Page 2 of 2 

9- f! -.S-

mailto:kendra.mitchom@amecfw.com


May 26, 20 1 

H onorable M a rk A. Kern, Chairm n 

St. C la i r  Cou nty Board 

10 Publ ic Squ are, Roo m  B-561 

Bel levi l le, I 6 2220 

County Board Members :  

The Salary C la i m  Sheets for the first a nd seco nd 

pay periods i May 26, 201 5  a re hereby subm itted to 

th is  Honorab le Body for approva l by rol l  cal l  vote. 

Respectfu l ly subm itted, 

NANCE COM M  

St. C la i r  County 

9-



May 26, 2015 

Honorable Mark A. Kern, Chairman 
St. Clair County Board 
#10 Public Square, Room B-561 
Belleville, IL 62220 

County Board Members: 

We, the Claims Subcommittee of the Finance Committee, submit to this 
Honorable Body the attached Expense Claim Sheet for the month of May, 2015. 

We have checked aH claims charged against the county appearing on the 
Claim Sheet and believe them to be in order. If there are any changes we wi l l 

handle them verbal ly when the matter comes to the floor of the County Board. 

Accordingly, we recommend they be a llowed and approved by roll can. 

Respectful ly submitted, 

CLAIMS SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

9- e. - ? 



Resolution # 2079-15-R 

R E S O L U T I O N  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 
TO ENTER INTO FEE FOR SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH YOUTH SERVICE PROVIDERS 

AS APPROVED BY THE MID AMERICA WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD. 

WHEREAS, St. Clair County as the Grant Recipient and the Intergovernmental Grants 
Department as Administrative Entity for Illinois Local Workforce Investment Area #24, has 

entered into an agreement with the State of Illinois to implement a Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act 0/VIOA) program in Clinton, Monroe, Randolph, St. Clair and Washington 

Counties, pursuant to the provisions of the Workforce Innovations and Opportunity Act of 2014. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the St. Clair County Board that the Chairman of the 
County Board be authorized to sign Fee for Services Agreements with Midwest Career Source 

Vocational School, Mers Goodwill St. Clair County; Mers Goodwill Clinton County, Mers 
Goodwill Washington County, Mers Goodwill Monroe County, Mers Goodwill Randolph County, 

SWIC St. Clair County, and SWIC Randolph County. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the St. Clair County Board in the State of 

I l linois, this ___ day of _______ ___ _ 

Date: 

MARK A. KERN, Chairman 
St. Clair County Board 

ATTEST: 

THOMAS HOLBROOK 
St. Clair County Clerk 

Grants Committee Members 



Resolution #  2 0 80 - 1 5 - R  
R.. E  S O L U T I O N 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN TO PREPARE, SUBMIT 
AND EXECUTE AN APPLICATION (THE 2015-2019 FIVE YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN AND 2015 ANNUAL 
ACTION PLAN, OR THE "ST, CLAIR COUNTY CONSOLIDATED PLAN"} TO THE UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 24, PART 91 OF 
THE U NITED STATES CODE (THE "CONSOLIDATED PLAN RULE")TO RECEIVE PROGRAM YEAR (PY) 201 5 
FUNDS PURSUANT TO THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDED (THE 
"CDBG ACT") AND TITLE ii OF THE CRANSTON"GONZALEZ NAT1ONAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACT OF 
1 990 (THE "HOME ACT") TO ASSIST THE COUNTY TO FULFILL THE REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINE D  IN THE 
ST. CLAIR COUNTY CONSOLIDATED PLAN. ITS GENERAL PURPOSE IS TO ASSIST UNITS OF LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT BY IMPROVING INFRASTRUCTURE AND CREATING AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUN ITIES PRINCIPALLY FOR PERSONS Of LOW OR MODERATE INCOME. 

WHEREAS, St Clair County ,  I l l inois desires to participate in  the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBC,,) and HOfiiE l nvest:nenl �-'"''"' '"''� \HOME) C>trnt as ,rn1horized by  the CDBG Act and 1he HOME 
Act; and 

WHEREAS, there is a GM!inu inq need for affordable housing ,  adequate infrastructuri:c. fair 
p rotectio n  of the environment, enhancement of civic des,gn , especially for those c:t,zens of low and moderate income 
and vigorous economic grov,1h for ali county citizens; and 

WHEREAS, St C,a i r  County shal l  be the appl icant and fiscal agent for an county. township and 1r1c;n1cipal 
projects iocated with in the St Clair County entitlement area elig ible for f,mding under the CDBG Act and the HOME 
Act. 

NOW THER.EFORE, BE lT RESOLVED, by the St Cla i r  Coun ty Board ,  Hmt the Chairn,cin of the County 
Board submit an  appl ication and Consolidated Pia,; to the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development under the CDBG Act and the HOME Act, and in acco0dance with the Consolidated Plan Ruie, to 
u nderteke esse::11al comr::unity dev"::!opmeni and lower income housrn9 and homeless assistancr,, activities ,  as 
specifically provided in said applicat,on and p ,an ,  

APPROVED AND ADOP1,ED at a regular meeting of the St Cla i r  County Board in the State of l l l in o,s, this 
day of May, /ill 5 .  

Attest: 

!HARK A, KERN, Chairman 
St. Clair County Board 

http:ADOP'{.ED


REVIEW OF EXECUTIVE SESS  ON 



RESOLUTIONS; 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS 

MONDAY, MAY 1 8, 201 5  

(St. Clair County & Fayetteville Township) Resolution awarding the low bid 
of $239, 1 28.00 to Perry County Construction for Section 1 4-07105-01-BR 
Pensoneau Road. 4-tOJ'I- /.,r_ �, 

(St. Clair County) Resolution to approve Highway Permit 2652 granting 
permission for work within the existing Right-Of-Way of County Highway 34, 
Bunkum Road. doi't'Jl'.:l -/s� R, 

(Mascoutah Township) Resolution to approve the unit price per ton of $15.09 
from Beelman Truck Company for furnishing and delivering air-cooled blast 
furnace slag (CA 1 3  or CM13) to Mascoutah Road District, Section 1 5-1 2000-
00-GM. IC<f/OJ'.:j - 1.s-- R-,-

(Marissa Township) Resolution to approve the unit price per ton of $10. 79 
for CA 1 5  and $9.47 for CA06 from Beelman Truck Company furnishing and 
delivering CA 1 5  and CA6 to Marissa Road District, Section 1 5-1 1 000-00-
GM. #oJ OP¢ - /S--R, 

(St. Clair County) Resolution to approve the unit price per gallon of $2.70 for 
MC-30, $2.60 for MC-800, $1 .669 for HFE-150, $1 .77 for CRS-2 and $1 .669 
for HFRS-2 and award the material contact in the amount of $1 ,580,950.00 
to JTC Petroleum Company for furnishing and applying bituminous materials 
for various County Highways and Road District Roads, Section 1 5-00000-
00-GM. /ltl.,U?J'.s-- I..S-- 'Kr-

(St. Clair County) Resolution to approve the unit price per gallon of $8.38 for 
White Paint and $8.23 for Yellow Paint; to approve the unit price per pound 
of $0. 30 for Glass Beads; to award the material contract for furnishing paint 
in the amount of $65,553.20 to Davies Imperial Coatings; and to award the 
material contract for furnishing glass beads in the amount of $1 3,200.00 to 
Swarco, Industries, Inc., Section 1 5-00000-00-GM. # d/PJ't,, .. /.s-- ;fr 

(St. Clair County) Resolution to approve the unit prices per foot of $6.50 for 
12" Diameter, $8. 1 8  for 1 5" Diameter, $9.71 for 1 8" Diameter, $1 2.99 for 24

,
, 

Diameter and $1 5.91 for 30" Diameter; and to award the material contract 
for furnishing Corrugated Steel Culvert Pipes to Metal Culverts, Inc. in the 

L 
amount of $36,242.00, Section 1 5-00000-00-GM. dd/P/77- /...r- � 

?--f--/  

http:36,242.00
http:13,200.00
http:65,553.20
http:1,580,950.00
http:239,128.00


(St. Clair County) Resolution to approve unit prices from suppl iers for asphalt 
materials. 

Macla ir  Asphalt Company 
(M1 9-07) 

Patch (M1 20-1 0 ) 
Hot M ix Asphalt M ix 
Hot M ix Asphalt M ix C 

Christ B rothers Asphalt 
(M 1 9-07) 

Patch (M 1 20- 1 0) 
Hot Mix Asphalt Mix D 
Hot Mix Asphalt M ix 

Asphalt Sales and Product 

$70.00/ton 
$ 1 20.00/ton 
$57.50/ton 
$50.50/ton 

.00/ton 
No Bid 
$57.50/ton 
$55.00/ton 

Patch (M 1 9-07) $71 .50/ton 
Patch (M 1 20-1 0) $ 1 20.00 
Hot M ix Aspha lt M ix $57.00/ton 
Hot M ix Asphalt M ix $53.90/ton 

Section 1 5-00000-00-GM iioi'PJ'F- ls-- .....-...-

(St. C lair County) Resolut ion to approve unit 
crushed stone and aggregates. 

Beelman Trucking (Quarry)  
CA06 $5. 70/ton 
CA07 $ 1 0. 1 5/ton 
CA1 6  $7.70/ton 
CA1 5  $7.85/ton 
CA1 3(s lag) $ 1 0 . 1 0/ton 
CA 1 1  (s lag ) No Bid 

Beelman Trucking (St. Libory Yard) 
CA06 $ 1 1 . 75/ton 
CA07 $ 1 5 .50/ton 
CA 1 6  $ 1 4.50/ton 
CA 1 5  $ 1 4. 75/ton 
CA1 3(slag) $ 1  75/ton 
CA1 1 (slag) No Bid 

Fal l ing Springs Quarry 
CA06 $5.50/ton 
CA07 $9. 75/ton 
CA1 6  $7 .50/ton 
CA1 5  $9. 00/ton 

3(slag) No Bid 
CA 1 1  (slag) No Bid 

/...S--1(1 

from suppl iers for 



RESOLUTION NO. __ 2_09_0_-_1_5_-R ______ _ 

WHEREAS, the County of St. Clair has undertaken a program to collect 
delinquent taxes and to perfect titles to real property in cases where the taxes 
on the same have not been paid pursuant to 35 ILCS, Sec. 200/21-90 and 35 
ILCS, Sec. 200/21-175 et seq. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to this program the County of St. Clair has acquired 
an interest in the following described real estate: 

(See attachment) 

and it appearing to the Trustee Committee that it would be to the best interest 
of the County to dispose of its interest in said property. 

THEREFORE, the Trustee Committee recommends the adoption of the 
following resolution : 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF ST. CLAIR COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, that the Chairman of the Board of St. Clair County, Illinois, be 
authorized to execute a deed of conveyance of the County's interest or 
authorize the cancellation of the appropriate certificate of purchase, as the 
case may be, on the above described real estate for the sum of One Hundred 
Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Five and 40/100 Dollars, 
($1 14,975.40) paid to the Treasurer of St. Clair County, Illinois, to be 
distributed according to law. 

Adopted by roll call vote on the 26th day of May, 2015.  

Chairman, St. Clair County Board 

ATTEST: 

Clerk of the Board 

http:114,975.40


05/1 4/20 1 5  Saint C lair County Monthly Resolution Ust - May 201 5 Page 1 of 2 

Total County Recorderj 
RES# Account Type Account Name Cotiecteo Clerk Auctioneer Sec of State Agent Treasu rer 

05-1 5-001 041 5228 SAL WILLIE C ADAMS 800 .50  58 8 1 1 1 , 25  1 08.50 4 50.00 1 7 1 ,94 

05-1 5-002 041 5230 SAL JAN D SCOTT 800.50 63 0 1  1 1 .25  78.50 450 .00 1 97,74 

05- 1 5-003 04 1 52c3 SAL DAN IEL L MYERS 800.50 (EO I l 1 .25  /8. 50 450 .00  1 97 .74 

05-1 5-004 20 1 00 1 940 REC EUGENE & VERDA COX 2 , 742 .00 1 2 1 1 7  0 . 00 78 .50 1 , 050 99 1 49 1 :14  

05-1 5-00!: 04 1 5 1 69 SAL DOR I S  MAYFIELD 800-50 30 56 1 1 . 25 78 .50 450 .00 230. 1 9 

05-1 5-006 041 5 1 60 SAL JOSEPH ADDISON 800 50 87.08 i 1 . 25 1 1 7.75 4 50 00 1 34 . 42 

05-1 5-007 041 5 1 85 SAL PAMELA S SAF>=ORE 800.50 76.86 1 1 .25 1 57 .00 450.00 1 05 .39 

05- 1 5-008 04 ! 5 1 136 SAL S (L VES TcH O'NEAL B00.50 230 .75 : 1 , 2:i 1 08 . 50 450 .00 0 .00 

05, 7 5 ,009 04 1 5248 SAL DONALD E COLUER 800 50 37 05  1 1 .2 5  78 ,50 450 .00  223 70 

05-i  5-0 1 0  04 1 5056 SAL ROS ELLO CORTEZ 800.50 34 .27 1 1 ,25 69 .25 450 00 235 .73 

05-1 5-0 1 1 04 1 5055 SAL ROSELLO CORTEZ 800.50 47.99 1 1 .25 99.25 450.00 1 92 .0 1  

05- 1 5-0 1 2  07i 32 1 4  SAL LEE A BROV\JN 3 ,578 .00 40 .38 4 8.15 69 .25 i . 050 1 0  2 .367 ,  i 2 

05- 1 5,0 1 :: 04 '1 5252 SAL KHRIS MC11.FE.E SCJ0.50 47. 1 3  , 1 .25  69 25 45C; 0 0  222_87 

0 5-1 5-0 1 4 04 1 5 1 5 1 SAL MEDGAR E STENN IS  !30 1 .00 2407 : 1 .25  78 .50 4 50 .00 237 1 8  

05-1 5-0 1 5  04 1 5075 SAL GREGORY D .  P.L\RKER 800 50  29 .88 : 1 .25  69 .25 450 00 240. 1 2  

05-1 5-0 1 6  200904787 REC ANTHONY T & GLORIA C 4 , 904. 1 2  1 03 .59 0 . 00 69,25 1 ,81 7.59 2 , 9 1 3 69 
Wt,LKER 

05-1 5-0 1 7  201 002280  REC SHELUE HOWARD 1 ,636. 00 83 .85 0 .00  78 , 50 570. 7 1  902. 94 

05-1 5-01 8 20 1 004901 REC DAMIAN CAffO 1 ,55 1 .29 1 08 .35 0 . 00  78 .50 660.29 704 . 1 5  

rJ 5  .. 'i 5 --0 I C: 2C1099C i 27 SUR VERNON O iCl<. INSON 744 . 62 57 1 0  0 . 00 0 .00 33?, 40 354, 1 2  

05-1 5-020 1 01 4395 SA. L  CRYSTI\L P. DIXON 2,806 24 0 00 52 . 50 78 50 7 1 4 . 48  1 960. 75 

05-1 5-02 1 1 01 4439  SAL ERIC G KNAUST 800 5 0  43 . 54 ,, 1 .25 78 .50 450.00 2 1 7 .2 1  

05-1 5-022 200904306 REC ROBIN SCOTT 5,823.70 85.26 0 , 00 69 .25  2 ,329 .48 3 .33971 

05-1 5-023 201 001 459 REC ROBERT ROBINSON 3 , 05 0.68 1 02.44 0 . 00 78 .50  1 , 1 36 .00  1 ,'i'33 .  74  

(.)5 , 1 5 024 04 1 5 1 90 SAL S HAM3RA C CUl.LUM f,C) •i ,00 56 94 1 12:; /8 ,5(.) 4b0. 00 204. 3 1  

05-- 1 5 ,025 04 1 5260 SAi. JF:SS!SA A MCCORK! . .  E 856 . 25 46 go 1 1 .25 '15 .0C 450 .00 253 20 

05- 1 5-026 1 7 1 3475 SAL CORNELIUS C .  WH ITE 5 , 809.25 26 84 82.50 69,25 i ,562 50 4 ,068 1 6  

05- 1 5-027 0 1 1 4 1 46 SAL TYRA HOWLIET 3 , 240 .75 58 7 1  45 .00 69 .25 906 .49 2 . 1 6 1 ,30 

05- 1 5-028 04 1 51 02 SAL KENTHAN MARTIN U,67 .75  86 .25  28.50 : 38 .50 475.00 1 .239 .50 

OS- 1 5-02�1 1 0 1 253:3 SAL INF IN iTY C/\PIT/\L GROUP 1 ,625 .<Ei 0 00 4 12: G9 .2�) 4 8 1 48 1 .033 . 5 '1 

')5- 1 5 030  04 1 5 1 75 SAL KE�JTHAN MARTiN 2 , 576.75 38. 8 1  37,50 : 1 7. 75 625 .00 1 757.69 

05-1 5-031  04 1 5 1 45 SAL GERTIE CARROLL 7 , 1 44 .25  4 3 . 54 1 05 . 00  78 .50 1 ,750 .00 5 . 1 67 2 1  

05-1 5-032 04 1 5073 SAL MOZZIE  BETTS 800.50 29 .88 1 1 . 25 69 .25 450.00 240. 1 2  

05-1 5-033 2 00904524 REC FELISHA D WATTS 1 2 ,545.46 9 1  5 3  0 . 00 78 .50 3 ,905 .62 8 ,469 .81  

05- 1 5-034 0 \ 1 5 1 68 SAL EUZASETH RODGERS 800.50 50 .25 1 '1 .25 78 , 50 4 50 .00 2 1 0 . 50 

05-1 5-035  0 1 1 5 1 67 SAL ELAIN E  FLAGG 800.00 43 . 54 1 1 . 25 78 .50 4 50.00 2 1 6 .7 1 

05-1 5-036 041 5 1 30 SAL Bl-STATE GROUP 6 , 1 29 .25  78.69 90 .00 1 57.00  1 ,500 .00 4 ,303 .56 

05- 1 5-037 041 5229 SAL FALCON LTD 800 . 50 57 .86 1 1 . 25  1 24 .75  450 .00 1 56 .64 

05- 1 5-038 04 1 5231 SAL MIDDENDORF INDUSTRIAL 800 .S0 56.52 1 1 .25  78 .50  450 .00  204.23 
GROUP, LLC 

0 5- 1 5-039 041 5025 SAL ANTHONY WHITE 800.50 1 9.86 1 1 .25  69 .25  450 . 00 250 . 1 4  

05-1 5-040 04 1 5053 SAL MELVIN L .  MCGEE,  JR 800 . 50 84.34 1 1 .25 99.25 450 .00 1 55 .66 

05-1 5-041 04 1 5054 SAL MAPLEWOOD 800. 50 36.63 1 1 .25  69 .25 450 .00 233 .37 
COOPERATIVE SALES 

05-1 5-042 041 5030 SAL MELVIN L .  MCGEE, JR 800.50 37 .89 1 1 . 25  78 .50 450.00 222 . 86 

05-1 5-043 041 5008 SAL CHRISTIAN ACTIVITY 1 , 1 55 .75 25.37 1 6 .50 69.25 450.00 594.63 

CE NTE R  
05-1 5-044 04 1 5 1 27 SAL NEW BETHEL MB CHURCH 800 . 50 6 1 . 1 2  1 1 , 25  1 1 7 , 75 450 .00 1 60 .38 

9- 1r - I 



05/14i2015 Saint Clair County Monthly Resolution List • May 2015 Page 2 of2 

Total County Recorder/ 
RES# Account Type Account Name Collected Clerk Auct

i
oneer Sec of State Agent Treasurer 

05-15-045 0415085 SAL LANDSDOWN LLC 800.50 0100 1 1 .25 69.25 450.00 270.00 
05-15-046 0415197 SAL KINNIS WILLIAMS SR 800.50 50.74 1 1 25 70.75 450.00 217.76 
05-15-047 0415001 SAL KILLIAN WEIR 800.50 0.00 1 1.25 46.25 450.00 293.00 
05-15-048 041 5086 SAL LANDSDOWN LLC 800.50 0.00 1 1 .25 69.25 450,00 270.00 
05-15-049 041 5009 SAL MELVIN L. MCGEE. JR 1 ,054.25 84.45 15.00 94,25 450,00 410.55 
05-15-050 0714247 SAL LARRIELL J. SALEH 10,279.35 0.,00 150.00 78,50 2,587.50 7,460.75 
05-15-051 ·0415004 SAL TRELOAR REAL ESTATE 800.50 56.52 1 1 .25 78.50 45000 204,23 

LLC 
05-15-052 20090401 4  DEF-REC ANDERSON JOHNSON 615.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 380.60 234.40 
05-15-053 200905050 DEF-REC MONTRICE BASS 700.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 409,94 290,06 
05-15-054 201000226 DEF-REC MAXINE SANDERS 4,393.00 50.45 0.00 0,00 2,016.12 2,326.43 
05-15-055 1 012045 DEF-SAL TRELOAR RESIDENTIAL 1,617.00 81.29 0.00 0.00 735.84 799.87 

REAL ESTATE LLC 
05-15-056 201090236 DEF-SUR ALBERT KEMP 350.00 61.76 0.00 0.00 229.33 58.91 
05-15-057 0 1 13363 DEF-SAL JAMES REYNOLDS 1 ,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 469.04 730.96 
05-15-058 0412011 DEF-SAL TRELOAR COMMERICAL 1 3,893.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 3,873,48 10,019.52 

REAL ESTATE LLC 
05-15-059 1012033 DEF-SAL TRELOAR COMMERICAL 15,232.00 186.26 0.00 0,00 4, 1 33,60 10,912.14 

REAL ESTATE LLC 
05-15-060 1 1 13402 DEF-SAL VIP COUNCIL LLC 1 ,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 406.49 593.51 
05-15-061 200904437 DEF-REC COURTNEY HOFFMAN 1 ,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 434.41 56559 
05-15-062 0713126 DEF-SAL JOHN W BACON JR 2,841.00 40.38 0.00 0.00 922.79 1,877.83 
05-15-063 1 012044 DEF-SAL TRELOAR RESIDENTIAL 1,990.00 92.30 0.00 0.00 822.96 1,074.74 

REAL ESTATE LLC 
05-15-064 200702885 DEF-REC EDWARD HARRISON 762.00 0.00 0.00 ◊-00 327.39 434,61 
05-15-065 1012344 DEF-SAL TRELOAR RESIDENTIAL 4,254.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 ,388.98 2,865.02 

REAL ESTATE LLC 
05-15-066 0114003 DEF-SAL TRELOAR RESIDENTIAL 1,219.00 102.93 0.00 0.00 442.70 673.37 

REAL ESTATE , LLC 
05-15-067 0713412 SAL MARKQUILL L. SUGGS 20,508.24 40,38 .300.00 69,25 5,156.49 1 4,929.62 

��d� 
$3,454.98 $1,361.25 $4,330.25 $60,456.79$107,190.17 

Clerk Fees $3,454.98 

Recorder/Sec of State Fees $4,330.25 

Total to County $114,975.40 

Committee Members 

http:114,975.40
http:4,330.25
http:3,454.96
http:60,456.79$107,190.17
http:4,330.25
http:1,361.25
http:20,508.24
http:1,219.00
http:4,254.00
http:1,990.00
http:2,841.00
http:1,000.00
http:1,000.00
http:15,232.00
http:13,893.00
http:1,200.00
http:1,617.00
http:4,393.00
http:10,279.35
http:1,054.25


COUNTY BOARD EXTENSION REQUEST 

PAYER.: Wi l l ie l<idd 

Account No. :  200906 1 57 Pa rcel 1. D. No. :  06-1 7 .0-1 20-003 

Property Description : 

Is th is p roperty: Occupied? _y_e_s ___ _ 
Rented or  leased "? _____ _ 
Generating Income? _·· _____ _ 

History of Account: (Payment dates and amounts) 

Opened : 3/7/1 3  

Purchase Price: $6474 .9 1 ---------------
Tot a I Paid to Account : _$_3_1_4_8_.9_2 ________ _ 
Balance Due : $3325 .99 as of 3/20/20 1 5  

Pro,;pects fo r  meeting Extended Payment: Schedu le :  

PR!OR EXTENSIONS GRANTED? ____________ _ 

Any local government support for  an extension? 

Has the Payer p urchased other p roperties '? _n_o _________ _ 

Evidence of short o r  long te rm owner? 

is Paye r  de l inquent i n  paying other real estate taxes? _n_o _________ _ 

Has the Buyer ever not paid ? 

What has Payer d one with p roperty? { insurance, repa i rs, maintenance , etc?) 

Has Payer attempted to secure p rivate financingr _n_o _____ _ 

Do economic cond it ions in the a rea warrant an  extension? 

Are there or were there other bidders for this property? 

With: ________ _ 

Other comments or reasons for the extension by the Trustee Committee: 

none 



COUNTY BOARD EXTENSION REQUEST 

PAVER: Stephan & Paine Mosley 

Account No. :  200904729 I 02-22.0-421 -033 Paree I. D. No. : --��----------
Louis, l L  

Property Description :  

Is this property: Occupied? no 
-----

Rented or Leased? ______ _ 
Generating Income? 

History of Accou nt: (Payment dates and amounts) 

Opened:  6/1 9/20 13 

Purchase Price : $5899.61 
---------------

Tot a I Pald to Account: $1 1 60 .. 00 
------------

Ba I a n c e Due : $4739.6 1 as of 3/20/201 5 

Prospects for meeting Extended Payment Schedule: __________ _ 

PRIOR EXTENSIONS GRANTED? ____________ _ 

Any loca l  gove rnment support for a n  extension? 

Has the Payer purchased other properties? _y_e_s _________ _ 

Evidence of short or  long term owner? 

Is Payer  delinquent in  paying other rea l e state taxes? _r
"'

_,o _________ _ 

Has the Buyer ever not paid? 

What has Payer done with p ro perty? ( insurnnce
1 repairs, maintenance , etc?) 

drywal l/doors/needs plumbing and ceil ings 

Has Payer attempted to secure private financing? _n_o ____ _ 
With: ________ _ 

Do economic cond itions in  the a rea warrant a n  extension? 

Are there or  were there othe r  bidders for th is p roperty? 

Other comments or reasons for the extension by the Trustee Committee:  

none 



COUNTY BOARD EXTENSION REQUEST 

PAYER: Darius Robinson 

Account No.: 201 001997 Parcel 1. D. No.: _0_2_-2_6_.0_-_4_1_0-_0_0_1 _____ _ 
Property Address: 730 N 88th Street, East St Louis, IL 

Property Description: 

Is this property: occupied? unknown 
Rented or Leased? _u_nk_n_ow_n ___ _ 
Generating Income? _u_nk_n_ow_n ___ _ 

History of Account: (Payment dates and amounts) 

Opened: _3_/2_7_/_1 4 ________ _ 

Purchase Price: $1 1 780.86 ----------------
Tot a I Paid to Account: $4000.00 ------------
Ba I an c e Due: $7780.86 as of 5/20/15 

Prospects for meeting Extended Payment Schedule: __________ _ 

PRIOR EXTENSIONS GRANTED? one --------------
Any local government support for an extension? 

Has the Payer purchased other properties? _n_o _________ _ 

Evidence or short or long term owner? 

Is Payer delinquent in paying other real estate taxes? yes - 829 N 71 st Street 

Has the Buyer ever not paid? _n_o _________ _ 

What has Payer done with property? (insurance, repairs, maintenance , etc?) 

unknown 

Has Payer attempted to secure private financing? unknown 

Do economic conditions in the area warrant an extension? 

With: ________ _ 

Are there or were there other bidders for this property? _n_/_a _____ _ 

Other comments or reasons for the extension by the Trustee Committee: 

none 

http:11780.86


COUNTY BOARD EXTENSION REQUEST 

PAYER: George E Smith 

Account No. :  07 1 4232 06-03.0-41 1 -045 Parcel I. D. No. :  _____________ _ ------------

Norbert Dnve, Cahokia, ! L  Property Adchess: 745 
----------------------------

Property Description :  

I s  this property: Occupied? _N_o----'----
Rented or Leased? �-----­
Generating I ncome? 

H istory of l\ccount.: (Payr:nent dates a nd ammmt:s) 

Opened : 7/30/201 4 

Purchase Price: $8234.25 ---------------
i • • 3· or.::i;:: oo Tdta l  Paid to Account: 4i oo. 
------------

Ba ! an  c e oue: $51 79.25 as of 3/20/201 5 

Prospects for meeting Extended Payment Schedule: __________ _ 

PRIOR EXTENSIONS GRANTED? ____________ _ 

Any local government support for  an  extension? 

Has the Payer pun::ha:sed other properties? _y_e_s _________ _ 

Evidence of short o r  long term owner? 

no Is Payer delinquent i n  paying other rea l estate taxes? 

Has the Buyer ever not paid? _n_o _________ _ 

What has Payer done with p roperty? (insurance, repairs, maintenance , etc?) 

plumbing/wiring/painted/drywal l  

Has Payer attempted to secure private financing? _n_o _____ _ With : ________ _ 

Do economic conditions i n  the a rea war rant a n  extension? 

Are there or were there other bidders for th is  property? 

Other comments or reasons  for the extension by the Trustee Committee: 

none 



COUNTY BOARD EXTENSION REQUEST 

PAYER: Edward O While 

Account No. : 041 41 81 Pa rcel 1 .  D. No. :  02-23.0-306-007 ---------
Prope rty Address: _7_1 _________ s_;_, _'s-O_" u_i_s_, _h_,,, _____________ _ 

Property Description: 

Is  this p roperty: Occupied? _n_o ___ _ 
Rented or leased? ______ _ 
Generating I ncome? 

History of Accou nt: (Payment  dates and a mounts)  

Opened : _·1_-/:_?_31_1_'1_· ____ _ 
Purchase P rice: $6254.25 

--------

Tot a I Pa id to Account: $2364 oo 
Ba lance Due : $3890,25 as ot 3/20/2015 
P rospects for meeting Extended Payment Schedule: __________ _ 

PRIOR EXTENSIONS GRANTED? ____________ _ 

Any loca l  government support for  an extens ion? 

Has the Payer pu rchased other properties? _n_o ______ ___ _ 

Evidence of short o r  long term owner? 

Is Payer del inquent i n  paying other rea l estate taxes'? _n_o _________ _ 

Has the Buyer ever not pa id ?  _ri_.o ___ ______ _ 

What has Payer done with property? (insurance, repai rs ,  maintenance , etc?) 

gutted/wiring/drywall 

Has Payer attempted to secure p rivate financing? _n_o ________ _ 

Do economic conditions  i n  the a rea war rant  a n  extension? 

Are the re oi' were the re other bidders for this p roperty? 

With : ________ _ 

Other comments or  reasons  for the extension by the Trustee Committee: 

none 



MARK A. KERN 
CHAI RMAN 

Dislncl 5 
LONNIE MOSLEY 

VICE·CHArRMAN 

BOARD MEMBERS 

D,s1nc1 1 

ROBERT L. ALLEN, JR 

0iStrlC12 

JOAN I MclNTOSH 

0,s1ricl3 
OLIVER W. HAMILTON, SR. 

Disok14 
NICHOLAS J, MI LLER 

Disi,1016 

ROY MOSLEY JR 

Olslncl 7 
EDWIN L. COCkRELL. SR 

Ois1nc1 8 
KEN EASTERLEY 

O,stricl 9 
C RICHARD VERNIE A 

Ois1r.:t 10 

DIXIE M, SEIBERT 

District 11 
JERRY J. DINGES 

OiSlflCI 12 
ANGELA l GROSSMANN,ROEWE 

Oislrocl 13 
STEPHEN E, REEB 

Ois1rlc1 14 

ROBERT J. TRENTMAN 

Oislrlct 15 
JOHNW. WEST 

Dis1ric1 16 

JUNE CHARTRAND 

Oistuct 17 

CUAT!S JONES, M 0. 

o,s1nc1 1a 

CRAI G W, HUBBARD 

OtSlricl 19 
C DAVID TIEDEMANN 

0,sl!iel 20 
MICHAEL L. BAKER 

Olslrict '21 
FRANK X HEILIGENSTEIN 

DI SlhCI 22 
MICHAEL O'DONNELL 

DistnCI 23 
FRED BOCH 

Dls\roct 24 
MARTY T. CRAWFORD 

Ois1nc12s 

CURTIS L McCALL, JR. 

OiSlrict 26 
LARRY W, STAMMER, JR 

Oislr«:l 27 
KENNE'TH G. SHARKEY 

0.Slncl 28 
JOSEPHJ KASSLV, JR 

OiSlrici 29 

CAROL 0. CLAR� 

ST. CLAIR COUNTY BOARD 
1 0  PUBLIC SQUARE, ROOM 8-561, BELLEVILLE, ILLINOIS 62220-1623 

(618) 277-6600 Ext. 2201 • FAX: 825-2740 

May 1 3, 2015 

Mark A. Kern, Chairman 
St. Clair County Board 
10  Public Square 
Belleville, Illinois 62220 

Dear Chairman Kern: 

The St. Clair County Board's Grants Committee submits the payroll and 
expense claims for the pay periods in April, 2015. 

These claims involve the expenditure of programmatic and administrative 
funds associated with the Community Development Group, Workforce 
Development Group and the Community Services Group. 

These expenditures have been processed by the administrative staff of 
the St. Clair County Intergovernmental Grants Department. They have 
been reviewed and approved by the Grants Committee and are 
recommended for County Boa.rd approval by the Grants Committee. 

Respectfully submitte
.
,d, 

71 
seph Kassly, Jr., Chairman 

St. Clair County Board Grants Committee 



Tracey L. Biennann. O,C. 
r�-r�1den1. Board or Heallh 

Kevin o. Hulchison. rt,\'.. M,S, , ,\1.P.H. 
E.W'<lll/l 't' / Ji/'(:'( lf,Jr 

,\dministraIive/Fiscill 
618.233 7703 
(il8.823AH3 l,t\ 

Community HenII11 
6I8.2J3,7703 
blx.2.)J.77U fa� 

Commwiicable Disease 
618.2,13.61 7.:i 
6I8.'.23J.9336 /ll\ 

Environmental / 
Emergency Preparedness 
GIB 133,7769 
618.2%.0<i,!i fi1, 

Personal llealth 
1>18.233.6 170 
6I8.2:lG.082 I lo.\ 

ST. CLAIR COUN1Y HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
19  PUBLIC SQL'ARE, SLIITt. 150 

l�ELLEVILLE.. ILUNOIS 62220-1624 
\ V\'\'\ v.l1eal tll . co .St-Clair.ii. us 

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
April 2015 

I _HEALfHPROTE.CJiOK 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEAL TH 
FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM 
Rouline Inspection 
Relnspection 
Opening Inspections 
Food Recall Notifications 
Foodborne Illness lnvesli,galions 
Complaint Investigations 
In-services 
# of Participants 
Consultations/Plan Reviews/Fires/Disasters 

NUISANCENECTORITANNING 
Complaint Investigations & Rechecks 
Smoke Free ll Complaints 
Smoke Free IL Citations 
Consultations (Smoking, Tanning, Vector) 
Tanning Inspections & Rechecks 
Vector Surveillance (May - October) 

POTABLE WATER PROGRAM 
Well Permits Issued 
Well Inspections 
Sealed Well Inspections 
Analysis Reviewed 
Consultations 

PR/VA TE SEWAGE PROGRAM 
Permits Issued/ Consultations 
Systems Inspected 
Complaints, Investigations & Rechecks 
Home Loan Inspections 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION and 
POLLUTION PREVENTION 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
LANDFILL PROGRAM 
Landfill, Compast. Open Dump inspections. FUis 
New Open Dump Siles Closed 
Complaint tnvestigalions, Rechecks 
Consultalions 

POLLUTION PREVENTION PROGRAM 
Single Stream Recycling Comm./Drop Off Sites 
School Paper Program Partlcipants 
Workshops/Presentations 
Consullations/Projecls 
Materials Dislribuled 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
Public Outreach/Presentations 
External Conferences/Workshops 
Partnership Meetings 
Materials Distributed 
fnlernal Training/Project Actvilies 
Number or Personnel Trained (SCCHD & MRC) 
lncidenUAsslslance 

MAR 

189 

49 

4 
31 

1 

18 

3 
80 

202 

1 1  

3 
0 

28 

3 
0 

1 

0 

1 

1 2  

47 

147 

3 
32 

1 

1 2  

1 

20 

57 

0 

0 

0 

3 

125 

35 

3 

17 

86 

1 
59 

0 

A� l no 1Tj YT0111 j 

213 789 8081 
34 121 121 

1 15 l9 
23 102 21 
0 1 2 

17 66 76 
1 5 2 

100 188 32 

193 683 850 

6 20 4 
3 6 1 1  
0 0 2 

97 149 90 

0 4 ,3 

0 0 0 

10 13  10  
0 3 s 
1 7 2 
3 32 22 

19 117 86 

202 634 607 

2 15 25 
29 79 48 
0 1 3 

7 41 35 
2 4 4 

16 88 50 
49 193 07 

0 75 75 

0 87 Bi 

2 2 2 

4 10 ◄2 
500 683 850 

42 102 88 
2 5 4 

13 39 18 
200 436 437 

0 12 23 
0 109 96 
0 0 0 

@If 
Public Health 
•r •rnt "'to, h •• l 

http:healtll.co.st-clair.il


Tracey L. Oiermann, D.C. 
Pre.sicttn1 BoarcJ of 11callh 

Kevin o. Hutchison, RN .. �1.s .. .\!.P.H. 
[.\('Cl 11/1 •c Oirct"liJr 

Admil1is1ra1ive/Fisral 
Gl8 233. 770J 
Gl8.823 . .J.H3 ia, 

Co111muni1y Health 
Cil8.233. 7703 
618.133.7,13 f,1,\ 

Co1mnunicablr Disease 
618.233.u I 75 
Cil8.23J.D33/i kl\ 

Erivlronmenlal / 
Emergency Pre.pan•dness 
618.233.1,139 
Ii lll.2'JG.067G f<t.\ 

Personal 1-ICilllh 
HIS.233.61,0 
618.2313.082 I id.\ 

SL CLAIR COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
19 PL'BLIC SQL;t\RE, SUITE. 150 

BELLEVILLE. ILLl�OIS 62220- 1624 
\ \'\ V\ ,1. l1ca1111. C<) .St·Clclir. il . l  lS 

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
April 2015 

AeXtfA P@tectioA (Cont1nuec1> 
INFECTIOUS DISEASE 
PREVENTION SERVICES 
COMMUNICABLE DISEASE CASES 
Chickenpox 
Chlamydia 
Cryptosporidiosls 
E -Coll 
Gonorrhea 
Group A Streplococcal (Invasive} 
Hepatitis A 
Hepatitis B 
Hepatitis C 
HIV+ 
Influenza 

FIU-llke Symptoms (Non-Specific) 
Flu-like Symptoms (Specific) 
H1N1 

Meningitis (Bacterial) 
Meningitis (Viral) 
MRSA 
Pertussis (Whoop1ng Cough) 
Pneumonia 
Salmonella 
Shfgella 
Shingles 
Strep Pneumonia 
Strep Throat 
Syphilis 
TB CONTROL 
Freid Visits (Directly Observed Therapy) 
Client Contacts 
Clients Served (by Physician) 
Client Contacts (Clinic) 
Chest X-Ray 
Medication Dfspensed 
Skin Testing 
Sllin Tests 
Positive Skin Tests 
MTB Cases 
Suspects 

EMPLOYEE HEAL TH SERVICE 
Employee Health Assessments 
Influenza 
OSHNBlood-borne Training 
Pneumonia 
Tdap 
Vaccine Preventable Vaccinations 
Zostavax 

ILLNESS INVEST/GA T/ONS-CONSUL TATJONS 
Off-site 
Office 
Phone 
OOJ • Out of Jurisdiction 
Documentation Sent • Phys1cians / Medical Service 
Providers 

Qr, I 

MAA 

0 

73 

1 

0 

1 5  

0 

0 
6 

33 

1 0  

25 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

3 

1 
0 
4 

10 

0 

0 

10 

13 

38 

47 

5' 
123 

5 
17  

71  

7 

0 
1 

0 
1 
5 
0 
0 
0 
3 

0 

0 
420 

36 

0 

APR I YTD 15 I YTD " I 

2 2 41 
83 263 279 
0 3 5 
0 0 0 

26 69 �3I 
0 2 9 
0 0 4 
5 20 a1 

43 147 105 
2 18  2 
0 2.31 67 

0 0 6 
2 2 59 
0 0 2 
0 1 0 

0 0 0 
0 3 2 
4 12 , 
0 2 3 
1 10 !, 
2 25 1 
0 1 i 
2 2 0 

17  35 63 

10 32 13 

65 170 60 
73 190 43 

4 19 10 
135 455 562 

6 25 5 
21 66 28 

70 217 '1:14 
5 28 9 
2 3 , 
1 7 2 

2 2 6 
0 3 '30 
3 66 63 
0 0 0 
1 2. 4 

0 0 7 

4 16  9 

0 7 1 
32 256 304 

322 1.488 , 633 
34 191 40 

31 548 794 

Public Health 
.. ◄ l"r, '°"' I! , 

http:st�clair.il
http:18.233.f5


.�,,,,, --� O f  S ,� 

,:'

.::,

�.>-··"''.""·({( •• 

,, 0 ... ·-."� .. ,,.,, ;,.'i. I. : ' • \ 
'- � %' :::. i t 
' .,.\ ),J, /.,, ,; •♦ ,,.-... • J ....... ,, 

'V,-•,.. ..-�o..,,, 
,, ·o;-··i•(;..'..:r 

,,,�-♦-

Tmcey L. Biermann, D.C. 
11f('jl/ /l'Jll 130.ircl or Heallh 

Kevin o. Hutchison. RN .. M.S .. M.RH. 
l::.XCOl//l't lJir<'('l(I/ 

Mminis1rr11i11e/r-istal 
(i18, 233.i703 
618,82;';,o+H.1 la� 

co111111uni1y Hea111, 
fill:!.2J3.7iUJ 
M! U33.iil:l r,1 :--

communicable Disease 
618.2:H.t.:il 73 
Gl8.:.!3:3,035b lax 

Environmental / 
F.merge1\cy Pleparectness 
Gl8.233.77GU 
(iJ8,236. ll6ili 1·;1.\ 

Personal lieallh 
b1fUJ3.G I ,(I 
GIS.236.()82 l ra., 

ST. CLAIR COUN1Y HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
19 PUBLIC SQL',\RE. SL'ITE 150 

BELU:.VILLE, ILLINOIS 02220· 1624 
,vww.l1cc1l1h .co.sr-clair. il .us 

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
April 2015 

I 
MAR i APR i 

I COMMUNITY HEAL l1i 

HIV/AIDS CARE REGION 
Caseload 496 493 

Enrollments 19• 13  

Discharged 22 10 

Remaining Caseload 493· 496 

HIV testing 1,mder Care & Prevention US grant 97 49 

HIV positive under Care & Prevention US grant 1 0 

Hepatitis C Testing St. Clair County Jail 94 49 

Hepatitis positive St. Clafr County Jail 3 3 

* Correction 

BREAST & CERVICAL CANCER PROGRAM 
Enrollments 24 24 
Younger Symptomatlc Referrals 1 1 
Referrals/Treatment Act 1 2 

Cancer within BCCP 1 2 

Cancer outside BCCP 1 0 

COMMUNITY HEAL TH & EDUCA T/ON 
Schools 5 1 
Worksites 1 0 

General Public 0 0 

Youth Board 0 0 

Coalition Meetings 0 1 
Community Organizations/Agencies 1 0 

Total Attendance 393 2 

Total Presentations 7 125 

SOCIAL MEDIA 
Website Hits 1599 2321 

Twitter Followers added 8 4 

Twitter Reach Hits 891 795 

Facebook Likes added 8 6 

Face book Views 1050 890 

,<...o t\HlfH o�p 
,f'■ · •-,,

'1-$" 'i:. 
I : . � • l 

.,, 0 

� � 1', �o 
�"< ,,ct 

1)..,4CCR�0\11'--

YTDt5 i YTD14 

493 

47 

67 

473 

240 
1 

237 

1 4  

99 

4 

5 

5 

1 

15  

8 

0 

2 

4 

3 

1 ,862 

169 

7, 126 

39 

4,146 

26 

4 ,411  

4 80 
74 
62 

92 
la 
la 
la 
la 

4 

n 
n 
n 
n 

1 

1 

29 
0 
6 
.3 
.3 

n 

35 
3 
7 
la 
la 
a 
5 
0 

n 

4,95 
6 

7,44 
3 
4 
8 
1 
l 
8 

1 .71 
17 

4,07 

Public Health 
,-, _,,,_, l•J t •ll f o, l 

http:hcalth.co.st�clair.i1.us


-�,,,,, --� o ,  sr \ 
;

.::,'¢.�

i

········: .. ·•· ,.'{< '•• tFo
�
' ··!� .. "' '-f r".,. � ,,.. : ., � \ "/." l:: f � 

, • .,,'. 4. /., ,,, ♦�;-.. " ./o� 
., I' ·············�,�. �- OF l� ,_ ,,,,.,,..--

Tracey L. Biermann, D.C. 
Prf$ic/1'111. Bo<1rfl or Health 

Kevin D. Hu!rllison, RN., i\l.S.. M,l�H. 
l:Xff l /Iii'(' f )lfe'CII 1r 

Administrative/Fiscal 
618.2..33.7703 
fit8,823A+43 fil,\' 

Con11nunif)' Healll1 
()18.233, 7703 
(5I8.:!3JJ7 I J  1(1.\ 

communlcahle Disease 
h18,'.n3.017:i 

Gl8.23J.935G l,1� 

Environmental / 
Emergency Preparedness 
lll8.233.,7b!J 
(il8.23(i.<\/ii(i iu.\ 

rersoMtl Health 
li18.23J 6 I 70 

tilS.236.()82 l f,l.\ 

ST. CLAIR COUN'IY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
I �J PCBUC SQL:ARE, SUITE 150 

BELLl::VILL�, ILLINOIS 62220·1624 
, ,·ww.l1t'ulll1,co .s1-clair. i i .  us 

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
April 2015 

I PER!ONAL HEALffl 

HEAL THY KIDS SERVICES 
Immunizations 
Developmen1,al Screenings 
Edinburgh Perinatal Oepress,on Screenings 
Perinatal Suicide Prevention Materials 
Lead Screenings 
Well Child Screening 
Denlal Fluoride 
Hs.A/.IH'f. HOM!;_S LEAD FQLLQW-(lP PRO� 
Homev,sits 
New Enrollments 

GENETICS PROGRAM 
Screenir19s 

CASE MANAG�ENT SER�CES 
Total Caseload 

New Enrollments 
Intensive Prenatal Caseload 

New Enrollments 
Services Provided 

H/,;_A/. T!:J. INS.fl.RANCE APPf.lCA T!QNS• 
Heallhy Start (MPE) Prenatal 
Add a Baby 
All Kids 
Add a Family Member 
SNAP (FoOd Assistance) 
TANF (Cash Assistance) 

WQMEN JNFAl'j_TS � CHILDREN 
NUTRITION PRQGB.AM. • /WIC) 
Assigned Caseload 
Cl\enls Picking Up Food Instruments 
Achievement Percentage 
Clients Cerlifled 
NutriI,on Education Attendance 

BR�STFEEDING PE/'i_R CQ!J.NSE�QB. PRGM 
Caseload 
Client Contacts 
New Enroll ments 

VACQN/;. FQR CH/f.QR{;_N PRQVIQER 
CQMPLIANCE PRQJECT 
Provider Phone Contacts 
Meetings Attended 
Educational Programs 
VFC Compnance Storage/Handling & New 
Enrollment Visits 

HEALTHY QHILOQAR!;; ILLI NQIS 
Day care Provider Visits 
Educational Programs 
Attendance 

CQMMUNITY OUTREACH 
Health Fairs 

Total Attendance 
Preseniations 

Total Attendance 
Meetlngs/Conferences/Worl\shops 
Face to Face Visits 
Phone Contacts 
Mail 
Email 
Other Outreach Contacts 

I 
MAR I 

189 
254 
152 

6 
43 , 
29 

I �
I 

I 551 

1,206 
175 
71 
16 

1,907 

3 
29 

6 
4 
9 
3 

3,260 
2,087 
64% 
267 
367 

96 
285 

32 

3 
0 

0 

2 

4 
4 

so 

0 
0 
4 

50 
12 
86 

5 
0 

20 
50 

APR I 

190 
274 
125 

3 
50 

1 
1 1  

�I 
421 

1,172 
154 
72 

9 
1,961 

7 
1 3  
13 
0 
8 
5 

3.260 
2,055 

63% 
254 
349 

91 
182 

1 1 

1 1 
2 
2 

0 

2 
2 

35 

2 
500 

2 
35 

9 
41 

2 
1 
5 

25 

YTD 15 ! YlD ,. I 

843 1.096 
929 , 0601 
557 664 

1 6  2S 
234 so, 

8 Na 

80 95 

�I �I 
2151 2651 

nla Ola 
661 699 
n/a W'a 

54 36 
7.447 7 065 

31 70 

89 86 

38 54 
7 14 

26 3C 
14 18 

nla Illa 
8,401 & 253 

n/a !Ila 
1,069 un 
1.351 , o-87 

n/a n.li!. 
806 938 

76 178 

19 ll8 

4 • 
2 2 

2 8 

24 20 
13 1 l 

149 271 

2 0 
500 f>/Jj 

29 ll 

174 201 

41 5 

200 n/a 
20 nla 

1 nla 
775 nia 
145 2.83 

\l l'i'-l ,,_, 0 
'" tp 

t:,:J' . . ... .,,, I � • • . ---� 

i 0 

0� '1- q; 

-s-e,, c...f' 
""•1cc11to"" -

Public Health 
"' ��,_,,. jU ltll'V'lr 1 

http:618.233.77


Vendor Inquiry - Warrant Details Page 1 of I 

( •· I _/ [��, Vendor 
r I Warrants 
Vendor 

ST CLAIR 

COUNTY 

TREASURER Summary Contracts Payments 

Home 

Warrant/EFT#: EF 0016694 

Fiscal Year: 2015 

Warrant Total: $513,695.54 

Agency 

492 - REVENUE 

IOC Accounting Line Details 

Issue Date: 05/07/1 5  

Warrant Status: 

Contract Invoice Voucher 

AG789951 SAG789951 
Agency Amount 

$513,695.54 

Fund Agency Organization Appropriation Object Amount Appropriation Name 

0188 492 27 44910055 4491 $513,695.54 DISBURSE CNTY/MASS TRANS SALES 

Payment Voucher Description 

Line Text 

1 IL DEPT. OF REVENUE AUTHORIZED THIS PAYMENT ON 05/05/2015 

2 COUNTY .25 % SHARE OF SALES TAX 

3 LIAB MO: FEB. 2015 COLL MO: MAR. 2015 VCHR MO: MAY. 2015 

4 ?'S PHONE: 217 785-6518 EMAIL: REV.LOCALTAX@ILLINOIS.GOV 

61 COUNTY .25 % SHARE OF SALES TAX 

Click here for assistance with this screen. 

https://www.wh l .ioc.state.il.us/Vendor/VendWarrDetl.cfm?Warr . . .  5/1 3/20 1 5  

https:llwww.whl.ioc.state.il.us/Vendor/VendWarrDetl.cfm?Warr


Vendor Inquiry - Warrant Details Page I of l 

J 
l--""'!!ii; 

I Vendor 
I w·arrants 

Vendor 

ST CLAIR 

COUNTY 

TREASURER S u m mary Contracts Payments 

Home 

Warrant/EFT#: EF 0016695 

Fiscal Year: 2015 

Warrant Total: $99,265.60 

Agency 

492 - REVENUE 

IOC Accounting Line Details 

Issue Date: 05/07/15 

Warrant Status: 

Contract Invoice Voucher 

AG789952 5AG789952 

Fund Agency Organization Appropriation Object Amount Appropriation Name 

Agency Amount 

$99,265.60 

0189 492 27 44910055 4491 $99,265.60 DISTR!BUTE MUNI/CNTY SALES TAX 

Payment Voucher Description 

Line Text 
•---------- - ---- -- - - - - - -

1 IL DEPT. OF REVENUE AUTHORIZED THIS PAYMENT ON 05/05/2015 

2 COUNTY 1 % SHARE OF SALES TAX 

3 LIAB MO: FEB. 2015 COLL MO: MAR. 2015 VCHR MO: MAY. 2015 

4 ?'S PHONE: 2 17 785-6518 EMAIL: REV.LOCALTAX@ILLINOIS.GOV 

61 COUNTY 1 % SHARE OF SALES TAX 

Click here for assistance with this screen. 

https://www.wh l . ioc.state. il .usNendor/VendWarrDetl.cfm?WatT . . .  5/1 3/20 1 5  la?. 

https:llwww.whl.ioc.state.il.us/Vendor/VendWarrDetl.cfm?Warr
http:99,265.60

	County Board meeting 5-26-2015 (1)
	County Board meeting 5-26-2015 (2)

